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Corporate Information
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PLACE OF LISTING
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

STOCK CODE
00951
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Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Mingming (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhou Longrui

Ms. Yang Yunfei

Mr. Yang Xinxin

Non-executive Director
Ms. Fang Jianjun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wang Jigiang
Prof. Ouyang Minggao
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Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Mingming
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Zhou Mingming (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Jigiang

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai
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Unit 907, Level 9, Fairmont House, 8 Cotton Tree Drive
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS
China Construction Bank, Changxing Jie Fang Dong Road Sub-branch
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CONSOLIDATED (rMB'000)

RMB'000
AR¥TT

Revenue
Gross profit
Profit attributable to the owners of
the Company
Earnings per share — Basic (RMB)
Proposed final dividend per share (RMB)

Financial Highlights
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BREARETFT)

For the year ended
31 December
BE+t-A=+t—HLEFE

2016 2015

—E-AF —T—hHF

WA 21,454,756 18,870,205

EH 3,085,681 2,409,665
PIN/NETE ¥ = DN X b D

503,796 331,669

SREFN — ER(ARET) 0.48 0.33

ERSRARIBRE (ARET) 0.068 0.097

REVENUE (rRvB mn)

L ONON=L =T

REVENUE BREAKDOWN BY PRODUCT

(RMB mn Proportion of Total Revenue)

BARERE D
(ARHEEETLAARAL)

Li-ion Battery
SERETEM

154% 329

|

1.10% 208

|

Electric Bike Battery
BEHHTEEM

72.28%
75.23%

15,507

|

14,196

|

Electric Vehicle Battery
and Special-purpose

Electric Vehicle Batte

BEEEMRFRAL

3,792 17.67%
3,545 18.78%

]

Others
EAth

1,826 8.51%
4.89%

1
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company, | am pleased to present to shareholders the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the
“Year").

In 2016, the Group developed its businesses aggressively and
achieved remarkable results as follows:

10

The business maintained steady growth with revenue reaching
RMB21,455 million and gross profit margin increased to 14.4%.

The industry leadership remained solid and topped its industry
peers among the “Fortune Top 500 Chinese Companies K81 = »
FRE50054)", “Top 500 Chinese Enterprises (A B> % 50054)"
and “Top 500 Chinese Private-owned Enterprises (#F B R &1
%50035%)". The Group was also on the “Top 100 Enterprises in
China Light Industry (P B 8 T 2 & 58 1> 2 5 &)" list and
placed first in “Top 10 Enterprises of New-energy Battery
Industry in China Light Industries (fp Bl T 35 RE 1T
TR E)"

The Group continued to boast industry-leading technological
strengths and was accredited as a “National Model Enterprise
of Technology Innovation (B4 X # 17 &1 %1 /= & 1 %)" and
“National Model Enterprise of Intellectual Property (B &0z &
BREE)"

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2016
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

ELAFLMBIRERE T ARBEMNITEREMMN KR
MIZMmEERE  CER T AKER A RIMKFE
MEAARENEERE ARERAFERG
PRERRE  TEBENATETEREE

These achievements and awards are testament to the leading
position and brand advantage of the Group in the industry, with
advanced technologies, and shrewd judgement and strategic vision.
The remarkable results of the Group during the Year were mainly

attributable to the following factors:

1.

INDUSTRY REMAINING STABLE WITH PROFITS

REBOUNDING

In recent years, the PRC government has stepped up efforts in
inspection and verification of environmental protection work
and encouraging optimization and upgrade in the industry.
These efforts bore fruits in 2016. At the regulatory policies
introduced by the authority and the industry making
adjustments, competition, which had been fierce in the past
several years, has eased and the lead-acid motive battery
industry has seen its profit rebound in general.

As a leading enterprise in the industry, the Group not only
focuses on pushing for organic growth, but also places major
efforts on promoting healthy and orderly development of the
industry. During the Year, the Group actively responded to the
policies and guidelines issued by the PRC government and also
enhanced control over its production capacity. In addition to
absorbing the market share released from eliminated
production capacities, the Group strived to increase profits and
worked hard at helping the industry rebound to its historical
peak.

TEERRE - FEKFEA

PEBFLE T RERRZENE - 518
TTERETE  R_T—RNFYRUEAR - &
BEREMITERBNEST  TEHEFD
TTEBFHBEMN it HERITEERR
MBEERTT -

ERITERBELE  AEELENHIEH
TERENRE  TABEREMNITERE
MEME ] - RAFE @ AEBERBRGEESD
BT ERIE D] - T E 1 oa AR 8 4 EE A
R A ERE RO M EHENEE -
BAORSFIEKFE #HBSTERAZEL &
FEKF -
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE
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DIVERSIFYING BUSINESS AND EXPLORING
NEW GROWTH DRIVERS

During the Year, the Group actively expanded its business and
product mix and refined the new-energy industrial chain, gave
itself a more diversified operation with constituents having
sound growth potential. On 29 February 2016, the Group
officially launched the CHILWEE Black Gold Series High-energy
Value-regulated Lead-acid (VRLA) Battery (the “BG Battery”),
the industry’s first successful attempt at applying Graphene
technology into a commercially viable, mass produced
rechargeable lead-acid battery. Market response to the BG
Battery has been very positive as users are impressed by the
advanced technology it embeds and also its outstanding high
power performance.

Seeing huge growth potential of the domestic energy storage
market, the Group established a cooperative relationship with
General Electric Company (“GE Company”) on 30 December
2016. The two parties agreed to set up a joint venture to
undertake research and development (‘R&D"), production and
sale of energy storage product using proprietary technology and
know-how. With the joint venture having the complementary
strengths of the two partners, the Group has formally forayed
into a new market with substantial growth potential.

In addition, the lithium-ion battery and start-and-stop battery
businesses of the Group recorded satisfactory progresses. To
meet the increasing market demand for lithium-ion battery, the
Group has continuously expanded its production capacity for
the battery. Production of start-and-stop batteries commenced
in the fourth quarter of 2016.

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2016
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ENCOURAGING TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATION
AND ENHANCING RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT

The Group's products excel those of its peers in the market
and have been well received by the industry and consumers.
This achievement is owed much to the effective R&D system
and outstanding technological advantages of the Group. The
Group has persisted on product innovation and focused on
R&D. It has set up various technological innovation platforms,
including a nationally-recognised technology centre, a
nationally-accredited laboratory, a national environmental
protection engineering technology centre and provincial key
research institute, and also an overseas research institute in
Germany. In 2016, the Group enhanced its technological
strengths and made remarkable achievements in technological
R&D.

The Group is open to exchange and cooperation with
international academic institutes and enterprises with
advanced and sophisticated technologies as well as
professional talents. In 2016, the Group cooperated with
Stanford University (“Stanford University”) in the United States
in developing the new generation of lithium-ion battery, and
that has enhanced our lithium-ion battery technology. Such
landmark partnerships which give birth to new technologies
and new applications will consolidate our leading technological
advantages and fortify our foundation for future growth.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE
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OPTIMIZING SALES NETWORK AND
STRENGTHENING BRAND VALUE

The Group is one of the largest suppliers of motive batteries in
the world and has a nationwide sales network in the PRC. It will
continue to optimize production capacity, advance production
technique and enhance technological innovation so as to
solidify its industry leadership.

To buttress sales, the Group has expanded both the primary
and secondary distribution markets. In addition to maintaining
cooperation with various leading electric vehicle manufacturers,
the Group in the Year has increased the number of independent
distributors in the secondary market to 2,135. Furthermore, the
Group has implemented lean management by refining and
removing layers in sales channels, boosted the loyalty of
customers to the “"CHILWEE" brand. Our marketing strategy has
been expanded from promoting channel expansion to cover
also brand building, which means reputation of the “CHILWEE"
brand will be enhanced with dedicated efforts, helping it gain
market attention and praise as well as strengthen customer
loyalty.

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2016
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Looking forward, having the leverage of supportive government
policies and with green living gaining endorsement by all in the
community, plus the industry itself going through integration and
reorganization and also a rapidly growing electric vehicle market, the
industry has promising prospect. The Group will closely monitor the
market and keep abreast of industrial trends, and timely and
proactively adjust its production and marketing strategies to seize
every appropriate business opportunity and consolidate its industry
leader standing. In addition, the Group will continue to enhance
brand building efforts, its R&D capacity, employee training and
strategic cooperation with international business partners, as well as
improve its industrial layout and new-energy industrial chain.

The year of 2016 was a significant strategic milestone year for the
Group. Various projects made exciting achievements. On behalf of
the Group, | would like to express my gratitude to our shareholders,
customers and business partners for their long-standing support
and faith in the Group. | would also like to thank the Board, the
management team and our staff for their wholehearted commitment
to the Group’s success. With the community giving us attention and
encouragement and the diligence and wisdom of our staff, the Group
looks forward to taking its business to new heights in 2017.

Zhou Mingming
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

25 March 2017
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The Group will stay true to its strategic objective

of “maintaining leadership in talent and technology, product

quality and cost controls as well as branding”. Its hope is to realize the

aspiration of becoming an industry leader who can “influence technical
development and set standards for production model”.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BIEE R wm M AT

Strategically located production facilities
to seize market opportunities
REMEEME BhmEEH

The Group's production facilities have been
strategically located in regions with higher

demand of lead-acid motive batteries.
AEBICEEREEZ D MR SEEE)

Hebei i7it

## Henan

Shandong I | &8 T e

Z# Anhui

% JLE Jiangxi Zhejiang #iiL ‘
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Management Discussion & Analysis

The Group principally engages in manufacturing and sale of lead-acid
motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries and other related products,
which are widely used in electric bikes, electric vehicles and special-
purpose electric vehicles, etc. Armed with advanced technologies
and R&D prowess, the Group plans to manufacture and sell other
products, including start-and-stop battery for automobiles in the
future.

During the Year, the Group recorded satisfactory results. With
leading production technologies, outstanding brand awareness
among customers and an efficient distribution network, the Group
has maintained a leading position in the industry. The Group
enhanced R&D of technologies through exchange and cooperation
with top international companies via various channels during the
Year. In addition, to meet new demands bred by social development,
the Group expanded the scope of its business and product offerings,
adding batteries that afford better performance. The above-
mentioned strategies have enhanced the Group’s advantages in the
industry.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Booming demand from electric vehicle market
Benefiting from favorable government policies and increasing public
awareness of the importance of environmental protection, the
electric vehicle market in the PRC is the fastest growing in the world.
The electric bike is a more and more popular transport among the
Chinese people because it is environmentally friendly, very practical
and relatively inexpensive. It has very promising growth potential in
both the primary and secondary markets. Another electric vehicle,
the electric tricycle, has also been in demand, thanks to the rapidly
developing delivery and logistics industries in cities and counties.
Driven by the thriving storage and logistics industry, the demand for
forklifts is increasing too. All taken into account, the Group expects
demands for its products to continue to boom.

BIEE S Mo
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BEIEE R wm Mo

Furthermore, new-energy vehicles, which are seen as an ideal
energy-saving and emission reduction solution for urban
transportation system, have remarkable growth potential and are
expected to be the development focus of the vehicle industry in the
future. To support the development of new-energy vehicles, the PRC
government has introduced a series of policies. According to the
“Industry Development Planning for Energy-saving and New-energy
Vehicles (2012-2020)" (& g B2 BEIR )T 2 B 36 2 R 3R 81 (2012-2020
F))), the plan is for the accumulated production and sales volume
of those vehicles to increase to more than 5 million units by 2020,
representing a projected compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of
nearly 60%. In October 2016, the “Technical Development Planning
for Energy-saving and New-energy Vehicles” ({&hgE BT 88 R /T HE %
fit B #& @ )) was issued and has the planned proportion of new-
energy vehicles to total vehicle sales at approximately 7%, 15% and
40%, and the estimated sales volume reaching 2.10 million units, 5.25
million units and 15.20 million units in 2020, 2025 and 2030,
respectively. Moreover, the new policy on subsidies for new-energy
vehicles jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the Ministry of
Science and Technology, the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology (“MIIT") and the National Development and Reform
Ccommission of the PRC took effect on 1 January 2017. Subsidies
were adjusted downward, as expected by the market, and more
severe requirements were imposed on the technologies of new-
energy vehicles. The more stringent production requirements and
continuing subsidy policy are expected to release the purchasing
power of consumers for new-energy vehicles. Thus, the new-energy
vehicle industry will continue to grow rapidly in 2017.

Rebound of profits of the lead-acid motive battery
market

With merits in capacity, safety, stability and performance, the lead-
acid battery has an absolute advantage and is currently the most
popular motive battery. Market demand for electric bikes and
special-purpose electric vehicles has been stable and electric
vehicles are required to replace their batteries in a specific
timeframe. Both factors work in favor of the continuous growth in
demand for lead-acid motive batteries. According to a Frost &
Sullivan report, the sales volume of lead-acid batteries for electric
bikes in the PRC is expected to experience a steady growth at a
CAGR of 5.4% from 2016 to 2021.

20 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2016
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Management Discussion & Analysis

In recent years, the PRC government has stepped up regulation of
production of lead-acid batteries, tightening related environmental
protection requirements. After the “Regulatory Standards of Lead-
acid Battery Industry (2015 Edition)” ({$5 & T b 1T 2 38 #0151 (2015
& 7)) and the environmentally friendly development guidelines
listed in the country’s “13th Five-Year Plan” were implemented, the
lead-acid battery industry has been eliminating obsolete capacities
since 2016 and it has a healthier structure now. Government
regulatory policies plus adjustment of the industry itself had helped
ease competition, which had gone on for several years, among
industry players and as such the overall profits of the industry
rebounded.

Upgraded production standard of lithium-ion battery
Along with the climb in sales volume of new-energy vehicles, the
market is paying more attention to the lithium-ion battery. At the
same time, the government has introduced more stringent
production requirements on lithium-ion battery manufacturers. In
September 2015, the MIIT published the “Regulatory Requirements
on Lithium-ion Battery Industry (€ $2 g 7 & 3t 17 3 R & & 1)) 7,
which contains tightened requirements on the production capacity
and product performance of lithium-ion battery manufacturers. And
in the “Consultation Paper of Regulatory Requirements for the
Automobile Battery Industry (2017) (/R B &) 1 Bt 77 2 MR & 15 14
(2017 F )k E R H5)" issued by the MIIT in November 2016, even
tighter requirements are set out in relation to the annual production
capacity, R&D and level of automation in production of a lithium-ion
battery manufacturer, which reflected the determination of the PRC
government to regulate production of lithium-ion batteries.

Despite the tightened regulatory policies, the Group maintained an
outstanding production performance. On 17 June 2016, the MIIT
announced the fourth batch of enterprises to be listed in the
“Standardized Requirements for the Automobile Power Storage
Battery Industry (/5 8 8) 7 & T it 17 3 IR #K 1F ) & ¥ B &))"
catalogue. Zhejiang Chaowei Chuangyuan Industrial Co., Ltd. (37T &8
EAITTE ¥ AR AR, a subsidiary of the Group made the list. This
speaks to the Group's leading position in the industry. As one of the
industry leaders with technological, cost and scale advantages, the
Group will benefit from the industry and capacity consolidation. The
Group aims to cement its leadership by enlarging the market share
of its safe, advanced and quality products.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BEIEE R wm Mo

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Consolidated industry leadership and increased
profitability of products

During the Year, continuing on the uptrend of the previous year, the
Group recorded revenue of RMB21,455 million, representing an
increase of 13.7% against the previous year. Its gross profit margin
increased by 1.6 percentage points to 14.4%. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company increased to RMB504 million, up by 51.9%
when compared with the previous year. During the Year, the Group’s
major product lead-acid motive batteries had the best performance
in the industry with unit price up several times. It brought to the
Group RMB15,507 million in revenue with a market share exceeding
40%.

The Group’s superb industry position was highly recognised by the
government and in the industry as evidenced in it ranking first in the
industry for three consecutive years and being on the “Fortune Top
500 Chinese Companies ( 81 &= ) # E15003%)", “Top 500 Chinese
Enterprises (A B{>2£ 50038)" and “Top 500 Chinese Private-owned
Enterprises (FR BI R & 12 50058 )" lists in 2016. During the Year, the
Group was also included on the list of 2015 “Top 100 Enterprises in
China Light Industry (| EI# T % Hoa 25 8)" and placed first in
2015 “Top 10 Enterprises of New-energy Battery Industry in China
Light Industries (1 B T 258 R E 1T 3+ a8 B %)

Enriched product mix and expanded to the global
battery market

In 2016, via pursuing strategic cooperation in different areas, the
Group was able to seize every appropriate market opportunity and
enrich its product mix. The Group focused R&D and marketing efforts
on the BG Battery, which was launched on 29 February 2016 and has
met with a favourable market response. The product is the industry’s
first successful attempt at applying Graphene technology in a
commercially viable, mass produced rechargeable lead-acid battery.
During the Year, the sales volume of the BG Battery and its share of
contribution to total sales had both kept increasing.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

During the Year, the Group managed good progress with the
development of lithium-ion battery. Adopting a pouch-type technigue
and featuring excellent safety-in-use, size flexibility and specific
energy, the Group is looking to produce lithium-ion batteries that are
smaller, lighter and capable of offering a greater driving range.
During the Year, sales of lithium-ion battery products amounted to
approximately RMB329 million. The Group will continue to closely
monitor the increasing demand in the lithium-ion battery market,
expand its production capacity and improve the functions of lithium-
ion battery products, so as to realize mass production and meet the
anticipated boom in demand for lithium-ion batteries in the future.

As for the development of start-and-stop battery products, the Group
has been cooperating with the German battery manufacturer,
Akkumulatorenfabrik MOLL GmbH & Co. KG since 2014 and officially
commenced production in the fourth quarter of 2016. The Group is
of the view that the demand for quality energy saving products will
continue to rise in the future and the start-and-stop battery market
has huge growth potential.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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On 30 December 2016, the Group signed a contract with GE
Ccompany, pursuant to which a joint venture will be established to
carry out R&D, production and sales of energy storage product using
proprietary technology and know-how. This joint venture will enjoy
the complementary advantages of the two partners and as such the
capability to capitalize on the opportunities arising in the flourishing
energy storage industry. This latest endeavor is another important
step made by the Group in becoming a leading energy storage
battery manufacturer.

Facilitated development through production
innovation and continuously improving production
technologies

Product innovation is crucial to the sustainable development of an
enterprise. In 2016, the R&D expenses of the Group amounted to
RMB577 million, representing approximately 2.69% of the total
revenue. As at 31 December 2016, the Group owned a total of 1,278
patents and had 300 patents under application. The Group is a
National Model Enterprise of Technology Innovation ([ & & 1i7 &l #7
T~ # & %) and has to its name various technological innovation
platforms, including a nationally-recognised technology centre, a
nationally-accredited laboratory, a national environmental protection
engineering technology centre and provincial key research institute,
an academic work station and a post-doctoral research station, and
also an overseas research institute in Germany. In 2016, the Group
cooperated with Stanford University on development of the new
generation of lithium-ion battery, which has enhanced the Group'’s
lithium-ion battery technology. In addition, the Group has devoted
greater effort to patent application for the core technologies related
to the BG Battery. As at 31 December 2016, 2 patent certificates had
been obtained while 6 other applications were still being processed.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

The Group has strived to develop its own research team and bring in
industry professionals to help it maintain technology leadership in
the industry. It has actively recruited world-class industrial elites over
the years. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had engaged more
than 20 top experts from both across the country and all over the
world, including 3 talent from the “Program of One Thousand Talent
(F AsTE))", whose expertise spans from basic theory and materials
to industrial batteries, motive batteries and lithium-ion batteries.
Moreover, the Institute of Lithium-ion Motive Battery and Storage
Battery established by the Group was recognised as a provincial level
institute in Zhejiang Province, the PRC during the Year — a testament
to the Group's pioneering efforts in research and innovation.

The Group will continuously introduce internationally-leading
technologies and embark on product R&D and innovation to achieve
persistent improvement in R&D and in turn provide customers with
more reliable and high quality products.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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Distribution of Independent Distributors of CHILWEE and JINCHAOWEI
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Total number of independent distributors for the “CHILWEE” brand
(including CHILWEE, JINCHAOWEI and JINTAIYANG) in secondary markets
ERmE(BEEE  £8E KB —ATEE L KHEHAY

2016 2,135
2015 2,028
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Management Discussion & Analysis

Increased profitability through optimizing sales and
distribution network and reputation

The Group has a nationwide sales and distribution network covering
all primary and secondary markets. To serve primary markets, the
Group maintained cooperation with a number of top electric bike
manufacturers in the PRC, including such respected brands as
Yadea, Lima, Evermaster, Byvin and Luyuan, during the Year. And, in
secondary markets, the Group has the independent distributors,
which totaled at 2,135 as at 31 December 2016.

The production facilities of the Group are strategically located in
regions with higher demand for lead-acid motive batteries, including
Zhejiang, Henan, Jiangsu, Anhui, Shandong, Jiangxi and Hebei
Provinces. This sensible strategy has given the Group much flexibility
to seize developing opportunities, reduce storage and logistics costs
as well as speed up time-to-market for its products, and ultimately
enhance profitability.

The Group adopts a flat and refined approach in managing its
distributors. It has launched a more market-driven agency
mechanism, removing intervening layers in sales channels, and as a
result enhanced its sales channels and brand competitiveness. The
Group also provides technical training and consultancy services to its
independent distributors helping them enhance profitability. At the
same time, the Group has fully optimized its marketing services to
help build its brand and strengthen customer services. It continued
to engage the renowned movie star, Mr. Donnie Yen, as brand
spokesperson to boost its brand reputation, market recognition and
customer loyalty.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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Committed to environmental protection and people-
oriented principle

The Group adheres to the principle of operating advanced, safe and
environmentally friendly production and promotes the use of green
energy that can protect the environment without compromising
economic efficiency. The Group has upheld its corporate mission,
which is to “Advocate Green Energy, Perfect Human Life", and
followed the environmental protection principle of “minimize energy
consumption, pollution and emissions”. With planet earth enduring
adverse situations, including climate change, shortage of resources
and pollution, the Group has been keen at technological innovation,
applying green production processes, controlling pollutants (exhaust
gas, sewage and solid waste) and noise, reducing emission of
greenhouse gases, conserving energy and adopting innovative
pollution prevention measures to protect the natural environment.
The Group is a leading green energy brand in the PRC, known and
respected for its effort to promote environmental protection and
become an enterprise dedicated to “resource conservation and
being environmentally friendly”.

The Group has taken the lead to develop and fully apply cadmium-
free enclosed battery formation process and has been promoting it
in the industry. As such, the production of lead-acid batteries is
relying more and more on the application of cadmium-free enclosed
battery formation process. The Group initiated a lead recycling
project named “Atom Economy (/R F 4 & )%)". By converting lead-
acid batteries into lead powder through a chemical process, the
Group achieves a 99% recycling rate of lead and the emission of
smoke, sewage and exhaust gas is reduced accordingly, setting a
benchmark for the lead-acid battery production and recycling
industry.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Looking ahead, the Group sees the industry continuing to restructure
and optimize. As one of the leading enterprises in the battery
industry, the Group will apply its profound strength and tap into the
use of energy network to effectively grow its business in two areas:
(1) motive batteries, motive systems and electric vehicles, and (2)
storage batteries, energy storage stations and energy storage
systems. In 2017, the Group will continue to:

1. Strengthen its market leadership

The Group will continue to optimize industrial deployment to
cover various new energy aspects, including motive batteries,
energy storage batteries, pure electric vehicles, solar energy
generation and distributed energy storage stations. It will seek
to capitalize on opportunities brought by favorable government
policies. It will keep its eyes on enhancing the competitiveness
of its products, as well as strengthening its market leadership
with improved product technologies and an optimized and
more differentiated product mix. The Group is dedicated to
becoming one of the largest suppliers of motive batteries and
energy storage batteries in the world and offering better
returns to investors.

2. Spur innovation and take up responsibility for

environmental protection

The Group will remain steadfast in implementing its advanced
development strategies and focusing on the development of
new energy vehicles, high-end equipment, new materials and
energy conservation and environmental protection. It will also
set up various national innovation platforms. With the support
of leading technological talent, the Group will continue to
develop more patented technologies and strive for
breakthroughs that can provide it with catalyst for growth. In
line with government intention, the Group will honor its
responsibility to the industry, the community and the
environment, pushing for sustainable development and the
achievement of a harmonious and symbiotic relationship
between the enterprise and the community. The Group’s
pursuit of the vision “Advocate Green Energy, Perfect Human
Life” will continue in parallel with its development.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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Expand sales network to boost brand value

The Group will adhere to its strategic production master plan
and expand sales network coverage through continuous
collaboration with partners. It will keep abreast of changing
market dynamics and employ measures that can allow it to tap
those forces and capture target consumers. At the same time,
the Group’s marketing strategy will be broadened to cover
brand building in addition to channel expansion, the goal of
which is to bring the spotlight on to the virtues of the
“CHILWEE" brand.

The Group will stay true to its strategic objective of
“maintaining leadership in talent and technology, product
quality and cost controls as well as branding”. Its hope is to
realize the aspiration of becoming an industry leader who can
“influence technical development and set standards for
production model”.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue amounted to approximately RMB21,454,756,000
in 2016, increased by approximately 13.7% over approximately
RMB18,870,205,000 for 2015, which was primarily attributable to the
growth in sales amount of electric vehicle batteries, special-purpose
electric cars batteries and li-ion batteries.

Gross profit

The Group's gross profit amounted to approximately
RMB3,085,681,000 in 2016, representing an increase of
approximately 28.1% over approximately RMB2,409,665,000 for 2015.
The gross profit margin in 2016 was approximately 14.4% (2015:
approximately 12.8%) and the increase in gross profit margin was
mainly due to the increase in average selling price of batteries.

Other income

The Group’s other income amounted to approximately
RMB159,655,000 in 2016, representing a decrease of approximately
49% from approximately RMB313,167,000 in 2015, which was mainly
due to decrease of approximately RMB113,916,000 in government
grants and decrease of approximately RMB9,175,000 in interest from
bank deposits in 2016.

Distribution and selling expenses

The Group's distribution and selling expenses amounted to
approximately RMB813,088,000 in 2016, representing a slight
increase of approximately 1.9% from approximately RMB798,063,000
for 2015, which was primarily attributable to increase in after-sales
service expenses and transportation costs in 2016. For 2016, the
distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of revenue were
approximately 3.8% (2015: approximately 4.2%).

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses were approximately
RMB663,253,000 in 2016, representing a rise of approximately 12.7%
over approximately RMB588,620,000 for 2015, which was primarily
attributable to increases in staff expenses, depreciation and
professional fees in 2016. The increase in administrative expenses
was in line with the Group’s business expansion.
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Research and development expenses

R&D expenses amounted to approximately RMB576,890,000 in 2016,
representing an increase of approximately 21.4% over approximately
RMB475,188,000 for 2015, which was primarily attributable to
increases in costs of research materials as a result of a greater
number of R&D projects being undertaken, including R&D in new
products.

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs decreased by approximately 13.7% from
approximately RMB223,837,000 for 2015 to approximately
RMB193,123,000 for 2016. The decrease in finance costs was
primarily due to a decrease in interest expenses on outstanding
convertible bonds which were all converted on 11 November 2016
and bank borrowings.

Profit before tax

For the above reasons, the Group’s profit before tax increased by
approximately 29.2% to approximately RMB705,070,000 in 2016
(2015: approximately RMB545,872,000).

Taxation

The Group's income tax expenses increased by approximately 48.6%
to approximately RMB86,012,000 in 2016 (2015: approximately
RMB57,866,000). The increase in taxation was in line with the
increase in profit before tax. The effective tax rate of approximately
12.2% in 2016 (2015: approximately 10.6%) was mainly due to tax
deduction on R&D expenditure, preferential tax rate in certain
subsidiaries and utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

In 2016, profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB503,796,000. Profit attributable to owners of the
Company for 2015 was approximately RMB331,669,000.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB581,679,000 (31 December 2015: net current
assets of approximately RMB520,015,000). Cash and bank balances
were approximately RMB588,439,000 (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB960,960,000). Total borrowings, including bank
borrowings, corporate bonds, obligation under finance leases and
convertible bonds were approximately RMB3,700,770,000 (31
December 2015: approximately RMB3,285,407,000), which were
mainly used to finance the capital expenditure and daily working
capital of the Group. They were denominated in RMB, EUR or HKD, of
which approximately RMB1,984,037,000 bore interest at fixed rates
and approximately RMB2,361,093,000 were repayable within one
year. The Group adopts centralised financing and treasury policies in
order to ensure that the Group’s funding is utilised efficiently and it
monitors its interest rate risks in a conservative manner.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s current ratio (current assets/
current liabilities) was 1.08 (31 December 2015: 1.1) and gearing ratio
(total borrowings/total assets) was approximately 28.5% (31
December 2015: approximately 30.5%). The Group has sufficient cash
and available banking facilities to meet its commitments and working
capital requirements. This strong cash position enables the Group to
explore potential investment and potential business development
opportunities to expand its domestic market share.

Exchange rate fluctuation risk

As the Group’s operations are mainly conducted in the PRC and the
majority of the sales and purchases are transacted in RMB, the
Directors are of the view that the Group’s operating cash flow and
liquidity are not subject to significant foreign exchange rate risks.

Contingent liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2016 (31 December 2015: nil).
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Charge on assets

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group's assets were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The
aggregate carrying amount of the assets of the Group pledged at the
end of each of the reporting periods are as follows:

Buildings BF
Land use rights P A A
Bills receivable FEU &

Restricted bank deposits SRRFIERITIER

Capital commitments

Contracted but not provided for

Human resources and employees’ remuneration
As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed a total of 18,705 (31
December 2015: 18,187) staff members in the PRC and Hong Kong.

During the Year, the total cost of employees amounted to
approximately RMB1,112,961,000. The Group sought to further
strengthen staff training by offering focused training programmes
and study tours to management and professional technical
personnel, and disseminating the latest information of government
policy on the lead-acid motive battery industry to staff. The Group
continued to strive for the enhancement of professional standards
and overall qualities of its staff. The Group also provided competitive
salary packages to its staff, encouraging them to be fully dedicated
in their work and to leverage their capabilities in serving its
customers.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

Significant investment, material acquisition or disposal
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

There were no significant investments held, no material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the
Year, nor was there any plan authorized by the Board for other
material investments or additions of capital assets at the date of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme on 7
June 2010 (the “Share Option Scheme”), which became effective on
7 July 2010, for the purpose of giving the eligible persons an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Group and motivating
them to optimize their future performance and efficiency to the
Group and/or to reward them for their past contributions, attracting
and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going relationships with
such eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or
success of the Group, and in the case of executives, enabling the
Group to attract and retain such individuals with experience and
ability and/or to reward them for their past contributions. As at the
date of this annual report, the Share Option Scheme has a remaining
life of approximately 3 years and 5 months.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of shares in issue as at 7 July 2010, being the listing
date of the Shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange, being
100,000,000 shares, which represented about 9.03% of the total
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report. No options may be granted to any participant of the Share
Option Scheme such that the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to
that person in any 12-month period up to the date of the latest grant
exceeds 1% of the Company’s issued share capital from time to time.
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Subject to the provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), the Board may
in its absolute discretion when offering the grant of an option impose
any conditions, restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in
addition to those set those in the Share Option Scheme as the Board
may think fit, including the time or period before the right to exercise
the option in respect of all or any of the shares shall vest, provided
that such terms or conditions shall not be inconsistent with any
other terms or conditions of the Share Option Scheme.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by
the Board and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant
under the Share Option Scheme. There is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised. Participants
of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the Company
HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on or before 28 days after the
offer date. The exercise price of the options is determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever
is the highest of:

(@  the nominal value of a share;

(b)  the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s
daily quotations sheets on the offer date; and

(c) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the offer date.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from the adoption date, after which no further options will
be granted or offered. No options have been granted under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption to 31 December 2016.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the Year was the
Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance in the interests of shareholders. The Company
has complied with all code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 14 (the “Code”) of the Listing Rules
throughout the Year, except for the deviation as stated below.

Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code requires the roles of chairman of
the Board and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou
Mingming is currently both the chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer of the Company. The Board considers that the
current arrangement facilitates the execution of the Group’s
business strategies and maximizes efficiency of its operation and is
therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions of the Directors, senior
management and relevant employees (who, because of their office
in the Company, are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information) of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all of them have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
Year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee. Its primary
duties include, among other things, the review and supervision of
the Group's financial reporting process and risk management and
internal control system. The Audit Committee comprises all 4
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr.
Lee Conway Kong Wai (“Mr. Lee”), Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang
Minggao and Mr. Ng Chi Kit. Mr. Lee is the chairman of the Audit
Committee. Mr. Lee has professional qualification and experience in
accounting and financial matters.

The Audit Committee has met and discussed with the external
auditors of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and has
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and the audited results of the Group for the Year. The Audit
Committee considered that the consolidated results of the Group for
the Year are in compliance with the relevant accounting standards,
rules and regulations and that appropriate disclosures have been
duly made in accordance with Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules in this
annual report.
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PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF
REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company (the "Register of
Members”) will be closed from 5 June 2017 to 8 June 2017 (both days
inclusive), for the purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement
to attend the forthcoming annual general meeting (the "AGM"),
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending the AGM, the
shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, No. 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration by no
later than 4:30 p.m. on 2 June 2017.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of RMB0.068 per share for shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Members on 16 June 2017. The Register of
Members will be closed from 14 June 2017 to 16 June 2017, both
days inclusive, and the proposed final dividend is expected to be
paid on 27 June 2017. The payment of dividends shall be subject to
the approval of the shareholders at the AGM of the Company
expected to be held by 8 June 2017. In order to be qualified for the
proposed final dividend, shareholders should deliver share
certificates together with transfer documents to the Company’s
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 13
June 2017.

APPRECIATION

The future robust development of the Group hinges on the full
support of its shareholders, clients and business partners as well as
the dedicated commitment and hard work of our staff. The Board
would also like to take this opportunity to express its sincere
gratitude to them. The Group intends to continue its concerted
efforts to advance its business development to new heights while
bringing lucrative returns to the supporters of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Mingming (/E838R), aged 48, is the founder of the Group,
the chairman of the Board, an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Group. Mr. Zhou is mainly responsible for
the Group’s overall strategy planning and investment decisions.
Mr. Zhou received a bachelor’s degree in chemistry from
Hangzhou Normal University (471 /1| B &5 2 Bz ) in July 1990, and has
over 20 years experience in the lead-acid battery industry. Mr. Zhou
is the younger brother of Mr. Yang Xinxin, and the son of Mr. Zhou
Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, all being executive Directors. Also, Mr.
Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive Director.

Mr. Zhou Longrui (E#Es), aged 78, is an executive Director of the
Group. He is mainly responsible for the overall supervision of the
technical aspects of our production process. Mr. Zhou joined the
Group in January 1998. Mr. Zhou has rich experience in the lead-acid
battery industry gained at the Group and through previous
employment. Early in 1994 and since then, Mr. Zhou published
several professional articles in the field of lead-acid batteries
on various magazines such as Batteries ({ & & A )), International
Power Information (B4 FR & JR 515 )) and Power Technologies ({&
JRELAITY), etc. Mr. Zhou was appointed the vice-chairman of the First
Session of Lead-acid Battery Committee (55— fE$i A E T HEES
E&R|ETZ E) by China Electrotechnics Technology Academy (/
BT HETE <) in August 2008 and a member of National Lead-
acid Battery Standardization Technology Committee (& B $5 84 &
Z (b £ fiT & B &) in July 2007. He is the father of Mr. Zhou
Mingming and Mr. Yang Xinxin and the spouse of Ms. Yang Yunfei,
all being executive Directors. He is also a father-in-law of Ms. Fang
Jianjun, a non-executive Director.

Ms. Yang Yunfei ($55E ), aged 74, is an executive Director of the
Group. She is mainly responsible for the management of the Group'’s
procurement and building. She has been with the Group since
January 1998. Ms. Yang has worked in several battery manufacturing
factories, responsible for manufacturing or overall operation of the
factories and worked for the establishment preparation of the Group.
Ms. Yang has accumulated rich experience in the lead-acid battery
industry gained at the Group and through previous employment. Ms.
Yang Yunfei is the mother of Mr. Zhou Mingming and Mr. Yang Xinxin
and the spouse of Mr. Zhou Longrui, all being executive Directors.
She is also a mother-in-law of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive
Director.
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Mr. Yang Xinxin (#537%7), aged 50, is an executive Director of the
Group. He is mainly responsible for assisting Mr. Zhou Mingming in
the discharge of Mr. Zhou's duties in the overall management of
the Group. Mr. Yang joined the Group in August 2011. He has
vast experience in the management of sizeable organisations.
Immediately prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yang was the secretary
of the party committee (2 Z & #2) and deputy head (&l Bz &) of
Zhejiang Design Institute of Water Conservancy and Hydroelectric
Power (7 JT & 7k # 7k & &) 8] &% &1 Bt), and had served in such
positions since August 2006. Mr. Yang was the deputy head (8|8 &)
of the People’s Government of Anji County, Zhejiang Province (#1771
B2 E B ARBUT) between June 2001 and August 2003. Mr. Yang
was the deputy director of Water Resources Department of Zhejiang
Province (41T & 7K F &) between August 2003 and August 2006.
Mr. Yang is a professor-level senior engineer (20#% 4% = A T2 AM).
Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor degree from Anhui University of
Science & Technology (Z &8 T X&), formerly known as Huainan
Mining Institute (¥ & 1% % 2263), in July 1988 and a master degree
from Zzhejiang University (47 /I KX £) in March 1991. Mr. Yang is an
elder brother of Mr. Zzhou Mingming, the son of Mr. Zhou Longrui and
Ms. Yang Yunfei, all being executive Directors. He is also a brother-
in-law of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive Director.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Fang Jianjun (75 & E), aged 48, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Group on 17 November 2013. Ms. Fang
received a bachelor’s degree in chemistry from Hangzhou Normal
University (47 1 Bl #8 KX &) in July 1990. From August 1990 to
October 1998, Ms. Fang was a teacher at Hongxi Middle School (4T
JEFE) in Zhejiang Province, the PRC. Ms. Fang is the spouse of
Mr. Zhou Mingming, an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board, and the controlling shareholder (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of the Company. She is also a daughter-in-law of Mr.
Zhou Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, a sister-in-law of Mr. Yang
Xinxin, all being executive Directors.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jigiang (Z#5®), aged 77, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Group. Mr. Wang has more than 50 years of experience in
the field of electrochemistry. Before he retired in December 2008, Mr.
Wang has been working in the 18th Research Institute, China Electronics
Technology Group Corporation (FEE FEHE £ AR E+/\WFEFT)
since October 1962 as a vice-chief engineer. In addition, Mr. Wang
received various awards of national and provincial levels for his
achievements on development of new battery technology, such as the
first class award on science and technology advancement (EHE2 543 25
—%48) from the former Ministry of Electronics Industry (presently known
as MIIT) on his research on lithium rechargeable battery technology in
October 1999. Mr. Wang received a bachelor’s degree in electrochemistry
from Fudan University in 1962, and went to Stanford University in the
United States as a visiting scholar on government sponsorship from 1982
to 1985. After returning to China, he received the title of professor and
mainly in charge of new battery technology development. After his
retirement, Mr. Wang has continued to assist China Industrial Association
of Power Sources (F B{L 28R ERTTERE) to organise various
international and domestic technology exchange activities, including
China International Solar Photovoltaic Industry Fair ((fEIEIFR Bt iE S <
BRI E) which is held biennially.

Prof. Ouyang Minggao (&fz 83 %), aged 58, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Group. Prof. Ouyang graduated from
the Technical University of Denmark with a doctorate degree in
Engineering in 1993. He worked at Tsinghua University (& A £2)
since 1994 at which he held various titles including Ministry of
Education Scholar Chang Jiang Special Professor (B Sl &I 2& %
HEZ4#5%) and supervisor of the National Key Laboratory for Automobile
Safety and Energy-saving Research (RBE L2 HEERREMUERE
F{T). Prof. Ouyang is a Standing Member of the National Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (F B AR
BerthEmeasRELZEE® R L E). Prof. Ouyang served as
independent non-executive Director of Sinotruk (Hong Kong) Limited
(Stock Code: 3808), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from July 2007 to December 2015, Shanghai Diesel Engine
Company Limited (Stock Code: 600841) (_E/&4mH# D AR A R)), a
company listed on the Main Board of Shanghai Stock Exchange, from
May 2012 to May 2015, Aerospace Hi-Tech Holdings Group Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 000901) (M ABHXIZREBER KD B R AF) and
Chongging Changan Automobile Company Limited (Stock Code:
000625) (BEERL/AERMH AR AR, both companies listed on the
Main Board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from December 2011 to
March 2013 and from May 2012 to March 2016, respectively.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEhEREREE

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (Z=#), aged 62, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Group. Mr. Lee received a bachelor’s
degree in arts from the Kingston University (formerly known as the
Kingston Polytechnic) in London in July 1980 and obtained his
postgraduate diploma in business from the Curtin University of
Technology in Australia in February 1988. Mr. Lee served as a partner
of Ernst & Young for 29 years until 2009 and had held key leadership
positions in the development of such firm in China. Mr. Lee is a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, the Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Macau
Society of Registered Accountants. Mr. Lee currently also serves as
an independent non-executive director of West China Cement
Limited (Stock Code: 2233), China Modern Dairy Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1117), GOME Electrical Appliances Holding Limited
(Stock Code: 493), Tibet Water Resources Ltd. (Formerly known as
Tibet 5100 Water Resources Holdings Ltd.) (Stock Code: 1115), NVC
Lighting Holding Limited (Stock Code: 2222), Yashili International
Holdings Ltd (Stock Code: 1230), GCL New Energy Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 451), China Rundong Auto Group Limited (Formerly
known as China Greenland Rundong Auto Group Limited (Stock
Code: 1365) and WH Group Limited (Stock Code: 288), all being
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since
July 2010, October 2010, March 2011, March 2011, November 2012,
November 2013, May 2014, July 2014 and August 2014, respectively.
Mr. Lee also served as an independent non-executive director of
China Taiping Insurance Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 966), China
Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1237) and CITIC Securities Company Limited (Stock Code:
6030), all being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from October 2009 to August 2013, from July 2014 to
September 2015 and from November 2011 to May 2016, respectively,
and Sino Vanadium Inc. (Stock Code: SVX), a company listed on the
TSX Venture Exchange in Canada, from October 2009 to December
2011. Mr. Lee has been appointed as a member of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference of Hunan Province in
China since 2007.

42 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

TRERE Q2 RASEEBUIENTES
R —NJ\EF+ A% i ZKingston University (A
8§ A& Kingston Polytechnic) X2 & 8 - HIER
— LA J\F = A % B M Curtin University of
Technology B2 REXE - HE_ZTZTNF - =
EETEBLKEAMEBACERANEDF B
ZMBERETEEGRELEIEZEEEAC - FTEER
REFERBERASTERMAEEE  BRANT
MFAAFBTMAEEE - ARSI SETAD
ARETE HECHMAEETE BMEMes
MAgE8 - BRI FRENE-ZE—ZF+A -
—E2-Z2FF+R-ZE2—F=R - ZF2—F
=R ZF—=F+—H ZF—=%+—H"
ZE-WNERA  ZEHFEARZE—NF
NABEEPBEAIAEER DG (RMHRE
2233) « FRBERBEZERBR A (BRMDA
1M17) IEBERERER 2 Al (& H K% :
493) ~ FEEVKE IR B R A F (B8 51007k &
RIERAERAR - RO 1115) ~ B TREEAE
AR A T (B8R - 2222) « HE+ FI B ER 4% A%
BRAR(BMHARSE : 1230)  BEFHERIZERE
PRAF (BRMHAEE : 451)  AEUERAEEEHBR
Aal (AR BgEERTEREBR AR - IKH
R5% - 1365) R EMNEBR B R A& (RN R :
288) (M ARERMTER LT 2 AR 2B FEH
TES - ZRENR_ZTZNFT+AZ-_T—=
FNABHE —E—WFLAE-T—HFNA
BEMAZE——F+— AT "FHAH
Mo REERBEKFREBZERER QA (BROR
5% 966) « REMEWIEIR AR AR (R RSE
1237) R EBHFRDER A A (KROS5 - 6030)
(BHAREBRZER EM2RAR) MBLIERITE
£ URRZZEENF+RAEZZT—F+=A
BRI #E (T Sino Vanadium Inc. (— KR IIEXZ®
LRERPAIER ETZAR - BHARKE:
SVX) MBI FEHITESE - BZZTLFR - Tk
E—EREZTATENEETRARBGGHEE

2o o
m= B e



Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Ng Chi Kit (RE#t), aged 43, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Group on 2 December 2010 and was re-designated as
an independent non-executive Director on 10 February 2017. Prior to
that, Mr. Ng was the Group's chief financial officer and company
secretary. Mr. Ng holds a bachelor degree in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is an Associate Member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow
Member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. Ng worked in the Assurance and Advisory
Business Service Department of Ernst & Young. Mr. Ng has over 17
years of experience in accounting and auditing.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Jingning (FR#&E28), aged 43, is the investment director and
head of the new energy division. Mr. Chen graduated from the
University of Science and Technology of China (A B &£ 3 i K E£)
with a bachelor’s degree in Industrial Automation in 1995 and
obtained a Master of Business Administration from University of
Science and Technology of China in 2005. Mr. Chen joined the Group
in 2003 as assistant to chairman and has since 2011 held his current
position as investment director.

Prof. Chen Tixian (PBRE&#7), aged 78, is the head of the research and
development department and is responsible for leading the research
activities of the Group. Prof. Chen graduated with a bachelor’s
degree in chemistry and physics from Xiamen University (& P9 A£)
in 1961. Prof. Chen has over 30 years of experience in the lead-acid
battery industry. Prof. Chen lectured in the chemistry department of
Xiamen University between 1961 and 1989 when he retired as a
professor. Prof. Chen joined the Group in April 2004 and has since
held his current position as the head of the research department of
the Group.

Mr. Pan Xuexiang (E2%£), aged 42, is the marketing director and
is responsible for, among others, marketing planning, brands
management and products planning. Mr. Pan graduated with a
bachelor’s degree in economic management from Hefei University of
Technology in Anhui in June 1997. Mr. Pan joined the Group in 2009
and has held several positions including deputy director of sales
channel department and marketing director.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEhEREREE

Mr. Qian Shunrong (& JE8), aged 47, is the head of the production
department of the Group and assistant to Mr. Yang Xinxin and is
responsible for the overall management of the production
department. Mr. Qian completed his junior high school education in
1985. Mr. Qian joined the Group in 2003 and has held several positions
in the Group including deputy general manager of Henan Chaowei,
head of the supervision and management department and deputy
general manager of the production department.

Mr. Leung Wai Yip (R{2%), aged 41, was appointed as the Group’s
chief financial officer and company secretary (the “Company
Secretary”), on 2 December 2010. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Leung
was the financial controller and the company secretary of Tiangong
International Company Limited (X TEIRAERAR]) (Stock Code: 826),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from June
2007 to November 2010. Prior to such appointment, Mr. Leung was an
internal auditor of the Swire Group and was previously a manager with
the assurance and advisory business services department of Ernst &
Young, Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Leung graduated with a
Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Alberta in
Canada in 1998 and obtained a Master of Business Administration
degree from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
2010. He is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and an Associate Member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Leung also served as an independent
non-executive director of Miko International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1247), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from December 2013 to February 2016.
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The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance. The Company acknowledges the important role of the
Board in providing effective leadership and direction to the
Company's business, and ensuring transparency and accountability
of the Company’s operations. The Board sets appropriate policies
and implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the
conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance in the interests of shareholders. The Company
has complied with all code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 14 (the “Code”) of the Listing Rules
throughout the Year, except for the deviation as stated below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code requires the roles of chairman of
the Board and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou
Mingming is currently both the chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer of the Company. The Board considers that the
current arrangement facilitates the execution of the Group’s
business strategies and maximizes efficiency of its operation and is
therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership, control and management
of the Company and oversees the Group’s business, strategic
decision and performances in attaining the objective of ensuring
effective functioning and growth of the Group and enhancing value
to investors. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing business strategies and management of the daily
operations of the Group’s business to the management. The Board
exercises a number of powers which include:

o formulating long-term strategy

o approving public announcements

o approving financial statements, including interim and annual
results

o approving major acquisitions, disposal and capital projects

] authorising significant changes to the capital structure and
material borrowings

o any issue or buy-back of equity securities under the relevant
general mandates
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o making recommendations and/or declaration of dividend and
reviewing dividend policy

o approving appointments to the Board

o setting the Group remuneration policy

o reviewing operational and financial performance

o reviewing the effectiveness of internal control

The Board meets at least 4 times a year and additional meetings are
held when required to discuss significant events and issues. The
Company Secretary assists the chairman of the Board in preparing
agenda for Board meetings. Board meetings are held with at least 14
days’ advance notice, and all Directors would be served with an
agenda with supporting papers at least 3 days before the Board
meetings, so as to ensure that there is timely access to relevant
information. The Group ensures that all the Board members are
informed of the Group’s latest developments and thereby assists
them in the discharge of their duties. The Directors may take
independent professional advice as and when appropriate, at the
Company's expenses. Minutes of the Board and Board committees
are taken by the Company Secretary. Such minutes of the Board and
the Board committees, together with supporting papers, are made
available for inspection by any Director following reasonable notice.
Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records.

The Company has arranged directors and officers liability and
company reimbursement insurances for the Directors and officers of
the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. It includes the review and
monitor of the training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and the senior management of the Group; the
Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; the development, review and monitoring of
the code of conduct of the Company’s employees and Directors; and
review the Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 4 executive Directors (Mr. Zhou
Mingming, Mr. Zhou Longrui, Ms. Yang Yunfei and Mr. Yang Xinxin), 1
non-executive Director (Ms. Fang Jianjun) and 4 independent non-
executive Directors (Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof. Quyang Minggao, Mr.
Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Ng Chi Kit who was re-designated
from a non-executive Director to an independent non-executive
Director on 10 February 2017). Among the executive Directors, Mr.
Zhou Mingming is the younger brother of Mr. Yang Xinxin. They are
both sons of Mr. Zhou Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, and Mr. Zhou
Longrui is the spouse of Ms. Yang Yunfei. Also, Ms. Fang Jianjun is
the spouse of Mr. Zhou Mingming. Biographical details of the
Directors of the Group as at the date of this annual report are set out
on pages 39 to 44 of this annual report. Independent non-executive
Directors account for more than one-third of the members of the
Board. The independent non-executive Directors come either from
the battery industry or have related professional background,
bringing valuable expertise and experience that promotes the best
interests of the Group and its shareholders. The role of the
independent non-executive Directors is to provide independent and
objective opinions to the Board for its consideration.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the Year, the Board has held a total of 4 Board meetings for
the main purposes of formulating business development and
prospects of the Group, reviewing and considering the financial and
operating performance.

The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings are set out
below:
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Attendance/Number of
Board Meetings

Name of Directors EEEE HERE, EESERIH
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Zhou Mingming FEIBRRR S A 4/4
Mr. Zhou Longrui et E 4/4
Ms. Yang Yunfei SERZ L 4/4
Mr. Yang Xinxin CE ik it 4/4
Non-executive Director FHITES

Ms. Fang Jianjun HEFELL 2/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAEHTES

Mr. Wang Jigiang TR d A 4/4
Prof. Ouyang Minggao BXR5 B & 0% 4/4
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai BN e 4/4
Mr. Ng Chi Kit (re-designated on 10 February 2017) REBEE W2 —F=A+BEHD) 4/4
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code requires the roles of chairman of
the Board and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou
Mingming is currently both the chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer of the Company. The Board considers that the
current arrangement facilitates the execution of the Group’s
business strategies and maximizes efficiency of its operation and is
therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

INDEPENDENCE OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company has received confirmation from each independent
non-executive Director about his independence as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and continues to consider each of them to
be independent.

On 10 February 2017, Mr. Ng Chi Kit was re-designated from a non-
executive Director to an independent non-executive Director.
Although Mr. Ng was appointed as a non-executive Director in 2010
following his resignation as the chief financial officer and the
company secretary of the Company, the Board is satisfied and has
demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Stock Exchange that the re-
designation of Mr. Ng as an independent non-executive Director is
justified for the following reasons:

(1) Mr. Ng does not have any interest in shares in the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO"),

(2)  as a non-executive Director, prior to the re-designation as an
independent non-executive Director, Mr. Ng mainly attended
Board meetings, served as a member of the Audit Committee,
and provided other advices to the Board from time to time, and
was not involved in the day-to-day operations of the Company;

(3)  his appointment is not specifically to protect the interests of
any shareholders of the Company;

(4)  other than serving as a hon-executive Director of the Company
since December 2010 and as the chief financial officer and the
company secretary from January 2010 to December 2010, he
has no other relationship with the Company or its core
connected persons, the controlling shareholders of the
Company, the Directors of the Company and each of their
close associates;
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(5) other than the annual remuneration of RMB350,000 (plus
discretionary bonus (if any)) under the director service
agreement entered into between Mr. Ng and the Company,
there is no other benefit being provided to Mr. Ng for his
directorship in the Company;, and

(6)  to the best knowledge of the Directors, Mr. Ng is not financially
dependent on the Company and is independent of any
connected person and substantial shareholder of the
Company.

The Company believes that Mr. Ng is able to exercise his professional
judgment and draw upon his extensive knowledge in strategic
planning, risk management, internal control and corporate matters
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole, in
particular, the independent shareholders. Accordingly, the Company
is in the opinion that his role as a non-executive Director immediately
prior to his re-designation as an independent non-executive Director
will not affect his independence as an independent non-executive
Director and considers that he will be able to carry out his duties as
an independent non-executive Director impartially and
independently.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time
either by shareholders’ resolutions in general meetings or by
resolutions of the Board. New Directors appointed by the Board as
an addition to the Board during the Year are required to retire at the
first general meeting following their appointments and new Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy during the Year are
required to retire at the first general meeting following their
appointments, and in both cases, the acting Directors will be eligible
for re-election at such general meeting. All Directors are required to
retire by rotation at least once every 3 years at the AGM, subject to
re-election by the shareholders. All non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) are appointed for a
term of not more than 3 years.
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DIRECTORS' CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. All Directors are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Directors have
been informed of the requirement under Code provision A.6.5 of the
Code regarding continuous professional development. The Company
updates the Directors on the latest development regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from time
to time, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors during the Year is as follows:

EERAEXRERTE

EERIBHERE ARRBBMEERSH
SEHEXER UBRKEBREMNB N &
FEAETROTAEXEASIRBERBISERR
BEROBRTE - AR TERESREME ETRRA
REMEREERENRMERLN - UERE
FETRIENGEERATR  XRAEGRGD
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EYORNE

Type of Continuous

Professional
Development
Programmes
Name of Directors BEEEE BESERRETEER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhou Mingming IEEEEEP s A B
Mr. Zhou Longrui Bk $2p e A, B
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERLZ L A, B
Mr. Yang Xinxin EEIE: (b A B
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Fang Jianjun TEFELZ+ A, B
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHITES
Mr. Wang ligiang TR A A, B
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B 5 BA = 2R A B
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai BB EE A B
Mr. Ng Chi Kit (re-designated on 10 February 2017) REGLEER-E—+FE-A+BHET) A B
Notes: it
A: attending training sessions and/or seminars A I RIER ST S
B: reviewing materials and updates relating to the latest development of the Listing ~ B: B ETTARIREMEFEERTRTEROME

Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 Board committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the "Nomination
Ccommittee”) for overseeing the particular aspects of the affairs of
the Company. All the Board committees have been established with
defined written terms of reference, which are posted on the
Company’s website “www.chaowei.com.hk” and the website of the
Stock Exchange and are available to the shareholders upon request.
All the Board committees would report to the Board on their
decisions or recommendations made.

All the Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises 4 independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai, Mr.
Wang Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao and Mr. Ng Chi Kit. Mr. Lee is
the chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. Lee has professional
qualification and experience in accounting and financial matters.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is mainly
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system
and internal procedures, reviewing the financial information of the
Company and overseeing the relationship with external auditors.
These include reviewing and recommending for the Board's approval
of the interim and the annual financial statements; reviewing the
external auditors’ independence, objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process; and reviewing and recommending to the Board for
approval of the external auditors’ remuneration and reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems
of the Group.
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During the Year, the Directors’ attendance of the meetings of the
Audit Committee is set out as follows:

REE BEFHEEZZESZRNBAEIIM
T

Attendance/Number of

Audit Committee

Meetings

Name of Directors BEEEE HERY, BEREESY
SERY

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai =Y e 2/2
Mr. Wang ligiang pask L tas 2/2
Prof. Ouyang Minggao E{CEEISE €5 2/2
Mr. Ng Chi Kit (re-designated on 10 February 2017) REGEEE R —+E=-F+AHE) 2/2

The meetings were held together with the external auditors of the
Company and the chief financial officer of the Company, and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
which included the review of the interim and annual financial
statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises 1 executive Director,
namely Mr. Zhou Mingming, and 2 independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Wang ligiang.
Mr. Lee is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure and the remuneration packages
of the Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration, in which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual and
the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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During the Year, the remuneration packages of the Directors and the
senior management of the Group were reviewed and discussed at
the meetings of the Remuneration Committee. The Directors’
attendance of the meetings of the Remuneration Committee is set
out as follows:

overnan

AFEE  FHEEERNG LB NRIRAEEE
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Attendance/Number of
Remuneration
Committee Meeting

Name of Directos EEEE ERE FHEES

BERH
Mr. Zhou Mingming JEIRARA S 4 11
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai THEERE 11
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR A 11

Details of the remuneration of each Director of the Company for the
Year are set out in note 10 to the financial statements contained in
this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises 1 executive Director, namely
Mr. Zhou Mingming, and 2 independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Wang Jigiang. Mr. Zhou is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The principal
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the corporate strategy. The Nomination Committee is
also responsible for identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and selecting or making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships; assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for the Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”). The
purpose of the Policy is to set out the basic principles to be followed
to ensure that the Board has appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of
corporate governance. Under the Policy, the selection of the Board
candidates shall be based on a range of diversity perspectives with
reference to the Company’s business model and specific needs,
including but not limited to gender, race, language, cultural
background, educational background, industry experience and
professional experience, which are the measurable objectives for
implementing the Policy.

The Nomination Committee has primary responsibility for identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board and
shall give adequate consideration to this policy in selection of the
Board candidates. Board nomination and appointments will continue
to be made on merit basis based on its business needs from time to
time while taking into account diversity.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
Policy, developing and reviewing measurable objectives for
implementing the Policy and monitoring the progress on achieving
these measurable objectives. The review of the Policy and the
measurable objectives shall be carried out at least annually to ensure
the continued effectiveness of the Board.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has considered the
Policy and whether the Board has the appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of
corporate governance. After due consideration, the Nomination
Committee has concluded that based on the Company’s existing
business model and specific needs, the current composition of the
Board satisfies the Policy for the Year.
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During the Year, the Directors’ attendance of the meetings of the
Nomination Committee is set out as follows:

&
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REE BFRLHERELZEGEENBEAHIIN
T

Attendance/Number of

Nomination Committee

Meeting

Name of Directors BEELR HERE REEEE

=E PN

Mr. Zhou Mingming JERARR e A 171

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai =Y 11

Mr. Wang ligiang THEER A 11
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL EERBEHRROSEME

STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the Year, which were prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The reporting responsibility of the external auditors of the
Company on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are
set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 81 to 87.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Wai Yip, the Company Secretary, reports to the chairman
of the Board. The details of his biography is set out in the section
headed "“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
Mr. Leung also confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours
relevant professional training during the Year .

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its overall responsibility for the Group'’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness in order to safeguard the interest of the Group and the
shareholders, and to review and monitor the effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management systems on an ongoing basis
to ensure that the systems in place are adequate.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are
featured with a defined management structure with limits of
authority and well-rounded policies and procedures, and are
designed to facilitate effective and efficient operations, to ensure
reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, to identify and manage potential risks, and to
safeguard assets of the Group. Such systems are designed to provide
reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s systems of risk management and
internal control covering all material controls, including financial,
operation, compliance and internal controls as well as risk
management functions. During the Year, it identified material risks of
the Group and formulated corresponding solutions to manage the
risks after taking into account the risk tolerance of the Group.

The Group has an internal audit department (the “Internal Audit
Department”), which is responsible for the internal audit of the
Group, independent assessment of risks, and internal control
procedures and systems, and reports its findings, with
recommendations, to the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit
Department assesses the risks to which the Group is exposed, and
formulates an audit plan on that basis annually, so as to ensure that
the internal audit covers all areas of high risks. The annual audit plan
will be submitted to the Audit Committee for approval. The scope of
audit review is determined based on the risk assessment results and
special reviews will be conducted on matters which are of concern
to the management or the Audit Committee. During the Year, no
major issues but areas for improvement have been identified. All of
the recommendations from the Internal Audit Department will be
properly followed up to ensure that they are implemented within a
reasonable period of time.

The Board considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group to be adequate and effective for the Year. The
Board and the Audit Committee also considered that the key areas
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of our accounting, internal audit and financial reporting staff, and
their training programs and budget, are reasonably implemented and
the Group has fully complied with provisions of the Code regarding
risk management and internal control systems in general for the
Year.

The Group strictly follows the requirements of the SFO and the
Listing Rules and ensures that inside information is disclosed to the
public as soon as reasonably practicable. Before inside information
is fully disclose to the public, such information is kept strictly
confidential. The Group has further enhanced the procedures with
the establishment of a continuous disclosure policy and provided
with relevant training to all relevant staff of the Group. The Board
considered that the procedures and measures in relation to the
handling and dissemination of the inside information to be effective
and adequate.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS
The Group's external auditors are Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,

Certified Public Accountants. In order to maintain their
independence, objectivity and effectiveness in performing the audit
services, the audit committee pre-approved all audit services and
discussed with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public
Accountants the nature and scope of the audit services.

During the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants in respect of audit services
was RMB2,326,000. The fee paid or payable to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants for non-audit services,
namely review of unaudited interim results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2016, was RMB850,000.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding the
Directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Own Code") on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Each
Director has been given a copy of the Own Code. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, each of them has confirmed that
they have complied with the Own Code and the Model Code
throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the "Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company and/or its securities. No incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by relevant employees was noted by
the Company during the Year. The Company will notify the Directors
and relevant employees of any restricted period for dealings in the
Company's securities in advance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board and the senior management recognise the importance of
communication with the shareholders and accountability to
shareholders. Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive
operational and financial performance information to the
shareholders. The senior management also maintains close
communication with investors, analysts and the media by other
channels including roadshows, briefings and individual meetings. The
Group has set up its own website “www.chaowei.com.hk”, which is
updated on a regular basis, as a means to provide updated
information on the Company to investors.
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GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s AGM provides a useful platform for direct
communication between the Board and the shareholders. Separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the
general meetings.

The 2016 AGM was held on 2 June 2016. The attendance record of
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the Directors at the 2016 AGM is set out below: THET -BER - AREEREAFTASH
ey
Attendance/Number of
General Meeting
Name of Directors BEELH HERE,
BERAERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhou Mingming JERARE % A& 1
Mr. Zhou Longrui Bk $ptas 0/
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERZ T 071
Mr. Yang Xinxin R bt 1”71
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. Fang Jianjun FEEL T 01
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. Wang Jigiang Tt HERR A 11
Prof. Ouyang Minggao BA RS B = 2% 1/
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai EHEEE 1l
Mr. Ng Chi Kit (re-designated on 10 February 2017) REGLEE R+ F-A+BHED) 11

The Company's external auditors also attended the 2016 AGM.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of
the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory
disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the Code:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting
("EGM") to be called by the Board. The written requisition must
specify the business to be transacted on the meeting, which shall be
held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 907,
Level 9 Fairmont House, 8 Cotton Tree Drive, Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary.
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If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the
Board fails to proceed to convene an EGM, the shareholder(s)
concerned may themselves convene an EGM, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the shareholder(s) making the requisition as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed by the
Ccompany.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

Address: Unit 907, Level 9, Fairmont House, 8 Cotton Tree Drive,
Central, Hong Kong
Email: ir@chaowei.com.hk

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholder(s)” enquiries
and concerns to the Board and/or relevant Board committees of the
Company, where appropriate, to respond to the shareholder(s)’
questions.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Any shareholder of the Company who wish to put forward proposals
at general meetings of the Company shall submit such proposals to
the Board in writing for the Board’s consideration not less than 7
days prior to the date of a general meeting through the Company
Secretary of the Company whose contact details are set out in the
paragraph “Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board” above.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There has been no change in the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company during the Year.
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The Board is pleased to submit this annual report together with the
consolidated financial statements for the Year which have been
audited by the Company’s auditors Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
Certified Public Accountants and reviewed by the Audit Committee
of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and sales
of lead-acid motive batteries and other related products. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the business review of the Group for the Year, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Business Development” in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
An indication of the future development in the Group’s business is
shown on pages 29 to 30 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the Year and the state of the Company’s
and the Group's affairs as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 88 to 231.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
88.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of RMB0.068 per
share for the financial year ended 31 December 2016, which shall be
subject to approval of the shareholders at the AGM of the Company
to be held on 8 June 2017. The proposed final dividend is expected to
be paid on 27 June 2017.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
Please refer to notes 4, 44 and 45 of the consolidated financial
statements for risks and uncertainties.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted
to approximately RMB5,858,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2016,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law (Cap. 22) (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to approximately RMB464,125,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Mingming

Mr. Zhou Longrui

Ms. Yang Yunfei

Mr. Yang Xinxin

Non-executive Director
Ms. Fang Jianjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jigiang

Prof. Ouyang Minggao

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai

Mr. Ng Chi Kit (re-designated from a non-executive Director to an
independent non-executive Director on 10 February 2017)

The Directors will retire by rotation in accordance with the
requirement of the articles of association of the Company and the
Listing Rules. The non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors are appointed for periods of 3 years.

A confirmation of independence has been received from each of Mr.
Wang Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao, Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and
Mr. Ng Chi Kit and the Company considers each of them is
independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Article 164 of the Company's articles of association provides that the
Directors, secretary and other officers and every auditor for the time
being of the Company and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for the
time being acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company and
everyone of them, and everyone of their heirs, executors and
administrators, shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them, their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators, shall or
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty,
in their respective offices or trusts; and none of them shall be
answerable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of the other or
others of them or for joining in any receipts for the sake of
conformity, or for any bankers or other persons with whom any
moneys or effects belonging to the Company shall or may be lodged
or deposited for safe custody, or for insufficiency or deficiency of
any security upon which any moneys of or belonging to the Company
shall be placed out on or invested, or for any other loss, misfortune
or damage which may happen in the execution of their respective
offices or trusts, or in relation thereto; PROVIDED THAT this indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any of said persons.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests of the Directors and the
Company’s chief executive in the shares (the “Shares”) or debentures
of the Company or associated corporations, within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO, which will have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and/or short positions which he/she is
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein or which will be required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code contained in the Listing Rules are set out below:
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Interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying shares and

RARR REMBAE R D - BERD kEF

debentures of the Company and its associated corporations: HREZS AR
Long positions in the Company RAEAQTNERE
Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding in
the Company/
Associated
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of Shares Corporations
ERERT
TR A B IR
R B REmE R EE BHAEDE
Mr. Zhou Mingming®@a Interest in controlled corporations and 401,087,500 36.20%
(“Mr. Zhou") interest in spouse
JEIBAER 5 4 020 ([ & 5 4 1) R AE R MBS
Ms. Fang Jianjun® Interest in a controlled corporation and 401,087,500 36.20%
HEEz L interest in spouse
R EE R R AR
Mr. Zhou Longrui® Interest in a controlled corporation and 68,362,500 6.17%
EReR S E® interest in spouse
LB R R AR
Ms. Yang Yunfei® Interest in a controlled corporation and 68,362,500 6.17%
BERLLTO interest in spouse
R EEER R AR
Mr. Yang Xinxin® Interest in a controlled corporation 20,000,000 1.81%

BEF LD

Notes:

Ry AE S

Bt

(1) Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Great State (1)
Investments Limited (“Great State”) and is therefore deemed to be interested in
the 242,145,000 Shares held by Great State.
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Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jolly Pride (PTC) Limited
(“Jolly Pride”) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 58,942,500 Shares
held by Jolly Pride. In addition, pursuant to a trust deed dated 14 June 2010 and
deeds of exclusion of beneficiaries dated 30 May 2014 and 13 October 2014,
entered into between Mr. Zhou and Jolly Pride in favour of 49 individuals who are
employees of the Group (collectively, the “Jolly Pride Trust Deed”), the economic
interest of all the Shares which it holds from time to time shall belong to the said
49 employees. However, other than the economic interest in the Shares, all other
rights as shareholders (including but not limited to voting rights and right to
participate in shareholders meetings of our Company) shall not be exercisable by
the said 49 employees and shall be exercised by Jolly Pride exclusively. AS Mr.
Zhou is the sole director of Jolly Pride, Mr. Zhou also controls the exercise of the
shareholders rights (other than economic interest) of all the Shares held by Jolly
Pride by virtue of the terms of the Jolly Pride Trust Deed.

Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun. Pursuant to the SFO, he is also
deemed to be interested in 100,000,000 Shares which Ms. Fang Jianjun is
interested by reason of her being the sole shareholder of Bai Xiang Limited (“Bai
Xiang”).

Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested in the entire issued share capital of Bai Xiang and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the 100,000,000 Shares held by Bai Xiang.
In addition, as Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse of Mr. Zhou, pursuant to the SFO,
she is also deemed to be interested in the 242,145,000 Shares and 58,942,500
Shares which Mr. Zhou is interested by reason of his being the sole shareholder
of Great State and Jolly Pride.

Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested in the entire issued share capital of High Joy
Investments Limited (“High Joy”) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the
32,137,500 Shares held by High Joy. In addition, as Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse
of Ms. Yang Yunfei, pursuant to the SFO, he is also deemed to be interested in
the 36,225,000 shares which Ms. Yang Yuntei s interested by reason of her being
the sole shareholder of Shiny Century Limited (“Shiny Century”).

Ms. Yang Yunfei s interested in the entire issued share capital of Shiny Century
and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 36,225,000 Shares held by Shiny
Century. In addition, as Ms. Yang Yunfei is the spouse of Mr. Zhou Longrui,
pursuant to the SFO, she is also deemed to be interested in the 32,137,500
Shares which Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested by reason of him being the sole
shareholder of High Joy.

Mr. Yang Xinxin is interested in the entire issued share capital of Tong Sheng
Limited (“Tong Sheng”) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the
20,000,000 Shares held by Tong Sheng.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, so far as the Directors were aware, the
following persons have interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.

Interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Group:

FERRRAQFARG REERD S
BERAR

RZFB-—ARE+ZA=+—H8 BEFMAN M
TALTHEBARBEREZRAEEROIEXVEE2 R F
377 BBHY ISR T IR ER M AR 2 B B SR AR RE A A Y
BEIAR  REERKEEEEHARNNAAE
BRTRAEBERKERFABRRAE LIREK
EAAT4R RN AR AN TEI (B 10% 3k A E R As ©

KA B MARR I a0 MOR R -

The Company b /N
Approximate
Percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of Shares Shareholding
£1B B REmME ROEBE BFREHMIEISHL
Mr. Zhoue) Interest in controlled corporations and 401,087,500 (L) 36.20%
A5 0es interest of spouse
LB R R EER
Great State®? Beneficial owner 242,145,000 (L) 21.86%
kA EREAA
Jolly Pride® Beneficial owner 58,942,500 (L) 5.32%
REO EmEAA
Ms. Fang Jianjun® Interest in controlled corporations and 401,087,500 (L) 36.20%
FREELL® interest of spouse
LB R ML BER
Bai Xiang® Beneficial owner 100,000,000 (L) 9.03%
AE® EnEEA
Mr. Zhou Longrui® Interest in a controlled corporation and 68,362,500 (L) 6.17%
BRI ED interest of spouse
LB R R AR
High Joy® Beneficial owner 32,137,500 (L) 2.90%
St EREAA
Ms. Yang Yunfei© Interest in a controlled corporation and 68,362,500 (L) 6.17%

BERL L0

interest of spouse
LB R ML EER
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Approximate
Percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of Shares Shareholding
£1B B RmE BROBE BFRESAIEIL
Shiny Century® Beneficial owner 36,225,000 (L) 3.27%
4CRR© BB A
UBS AG Beneficial owner, person having a security 50,599,438 (L) 4.57%
interest in shares, and interest in
controlled corporations
EmBEAA  RROPHEEERERZA 29,678,620 (S) 2.68%
T REEEBE RS
UBS Group AG Person having a security interest in shares 50,475,560 (L) 4.56%
and interest in controlled corporations
RIRD AR ERER 2 AT RZIEEE 30,689,620 (S) 2.77%
R
FIL Limited Investment Manager 72,227,000 (L) 6.52%
BEKE
(L):  Long position L : 4FE
(S):  Short position (S : XKE
Notes: Biet

(1)

@

&

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Great State and is
therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Great State.

Mr. Zhou Is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jolly Pride and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the 58,942,500 Shares held by Jolly Pride. In
addition, pursuant to the Jolly Pride Trust Deed, the economic interest of all the
Shares which it holds from time to time shall belong to the said 49 employees.
However, other than the economic interest in the Shares, all other rights as
shareholders (including but not limited to voting rights and right to participate in
shareholders meetings of our Company) shall not be exercisable by the said 49
employees and shall be exercised by Jolly Pride exclusively. As Mr. Zhou is the
sole director of Jolly Pride, Mr. Zhou also controls the exercise of the
shareholders rights (other than economic interest) of all the Shares held by Jolly
Pride by virtue of the terms of the Jolly Pride Trust Deed.

Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun. Pursuant to the SFO, he is also
deemed to be interested in all the Shares which Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested by
reason of her being the sole shareholder of Bai Xiang.

(1)

@)

3
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Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested in the entire issued share capital of Bai Xiang and is
therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Bai Xiang. In addition,
as Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse of Mr. Zhou, pursuant to the SFO, she is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares which Mr. Zhou is interested by reason
of him being the sole shareholder of Great State and Jolly Pride.

Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested in the entire issued share capital of High Joy and is
therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by High Joy. In addition,
as Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse of Ms. Yang Yunfei, pursuant to the SFO, he is
deemed to be interested in all the Shares which Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested by
reason of her being the sole shareholder of Shiny Century.

Ms. Yang Yunfei Is interested in the entire issued share capital of Shiny Century
and is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Shiny Century.
In addition, as Ms. Yang Yunfei is the spouse of Mr. Zhou Longrui, pursuant to the
SFO, she is also deemed to be interested in all the Shares which Mr. Zhou Longrui
is interested by reason of him being the sole shareholder of High Joy.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Director of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the Senior
Management are set out on pages 39 to 44.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme on 7
June 2010 (the “Share Option Scheme”), which became effective on
7 July 2010, for the purpose of giving the eligible persons an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Group and motivating
them to optimize their future performance and efficiency to the
Group and/or to reward them for their past contributions, attracting
and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going relationships with
such eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or
success of the Group, and in the case of executives, enabling the
Group to attract and retain such individuals with experience and
ability and/or to reward them for their past contributions. As at the
date of this annual report, the Share Option Scheme has a remaining
life of approximately 3 years and 5 months.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of shares in issue as at 7 July 2010, being the listing
date of the Shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange, being
100,000,000 shares, which represented about 9.03% of the total
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report. No options may be granted to any participant of the Share
Option Scheme such that the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to
that person in any 12-month period up to the date of the latest grant
exceeds 1% of the Company’s issued share capital from time to time.
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Subject to the provisions of the Listing Rules, the Board may in its
absolute discretion when offering the grant of an option impose any
conditions, restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in addition to
those set out in the Share Option Scheme as the Board may think fit,
including the time or period before the right to exercise the option in
respect of all or any of the shares shall vest, provided that such
terms or conditions shall not be inconsistent with any other terms or
conditions of the Share Option Scheme.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by
the Board and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant
under the Share Option Scheme. There is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised. Participants
of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the Company
HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on or before 28 days after the
offer date. The exercise price of the options is determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever
is the highest of:

(@ the nominal value of a share,

(b)  the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets on the offer date; and

() the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the offer date.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from the adoption date, after which no further options will
be granted or offered. No options have been granted under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption to 31 December 2016.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the Year was the
Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS, CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest in, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the financial year under review
or at any time during the financial year save as disclosed under the
sub-section headed “Connected Transaction” below and “Related
Party Transactions” in note 49 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHARE HOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected Transactions”
below and “Related Party Transactions” in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements, no Director or controlling
shareholder or any of their respective subsidiaries had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group, to which the Company, or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a part,
during the Year.

During the Year, no contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries was made.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is
not determinable by the employing company within 1 year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of its securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the Code
throughout the Year except for the deviations to the code provision
A.2.1. For details, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report
on page 45 of this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee. For details,
please refer to the paragraph headed “Audit Committee” of the
Corporate Governance Report set out on page 51 of this annual
report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group emphasises the importance of personal development of
individual employees. The Group has in place remuneration policies
to ensure providing adequate rewards to employees with recognised
experience for the assigned roles and duties. The Group also
provides other benefits including bonuses and shares as incentives.

The Group places high priority on maintaining good relationship with
our customers. The Group always strives to maximize customers
satisfaction and to add value for our customers. The Group identifies
areas for improvement. Customer’s complaints once acknowledged
and reported will be dealt with timely, fairly and diligently.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers during the financial
year ended 31 December 2016 is as follows:

3.86%/15.37%
8.31%/33.36%

The largest customer/supplier
Five largest customers/suppliers in aggregate

At no time during the Year had the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any interest
in these major customers and suppliers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
During the Year, the Group achieved 100% cadmium-free production
and has fully applied cadmium-free enclosed battery formulation
process.

In parallel with enlarging its economic benefits and continuously
enhancing production technology, the Group has adhered to its
environmental protection philosophy of minimizing consumption of
resources, pollution and emissions. The Group continues to advocate
the harmonious and symbiotic relationship between business and the
environment to fulfil its long-term goal of “green production”. To guide
the lead-acid battery industry towards green, healthy and sustainable
development, the Group has united enterprises both upstream and
downstream in a lead-acid battery industry alliance for promoting
green development and recycling during the Year. Through a series of
activities intended to improve the brand image, the Group has strived
to become the top green energy brand in the PRC.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group's establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC and Hong Kong. During the Year and up to the date of this
annual report, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC in all material aspects.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the Group's related party transactions for the Year are set
out in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements, some of
which also constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
above-mentioned transactions. The connected transactions
conducted by the Group in the Year, which was required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules, are set out as follows:

One-off Connected Transactions

1.  Formation of Joint Venture
On 21 March 2016, Chaowei Power Co., Ltd. (FBE ERB R A
Al) (“Chaowei Power”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Mr. Zhou Mingming, signed the articles of
association, pursuant to which the parties agreed to form a
joint venture company, Zhejiang Pulangte Electric Vehicle Co.,
Ltd., I ERAFE &R E AR A ) (“Zhejiang Pulangte”) to
engage in, among others, provision of technical development
and technical service of new energy automobiles, subject to
the approval of the local administration of industry and
commerce.
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The registered capital of Zhejiang Pulangte is R\MB150,000,000.
The capital commitment of Chaowei Power and Mr. Zhou in
Zhejiang Pulangte is RMB72,500,000 and RMB77,500,000,
representing 48.33% and 51.67% interest, respectively.

Mr. Zhou is the controlling shareholder and executive Director
of the Company and therefore a connected person of the
Company. Accordingly, the above transaction constituted
connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the said transaction was set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 21 March 2016.

Capital Increase Agreement

On 24 August 2016, Zhejiang Chaowei Chuangyuan Industrial Co.,
Ltd. G TR BT & B R A 7)) (“Chaowei Chuangyuan”), an
indirectly non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into a capital increase agreement (the “Capital Increase
Agreement”) with Mr. Zhou Mingming and Mr. Sun Yanxian.
Pursuant to which Mr. Zhou and Mr. Sun agreed to contribute
approximately RVB8,630,000 and approximately RMB960,000 by
cash respectively. Upon completion of such capital increase,
Chaowei Chuangyuan will be held as to 60% by Chaowei Power,
9% by Mr. Zhou, 1% by Mr. Sun and the remaining 30% by other
minority shareholders who are not connected persons of the
Group.

Mr. Zhou is the controlling shareholder and executive Director
of the Company and therefore a connected person of the
Company. Mr. Sun is a director of Chaowei Chuangyuan and
therefore also a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the above transaction constituted connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Further details of the said transaction was set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 August 2016.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The following transactions entered into by members of the Group
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company
subject to announcements and reporting requirements but exempt
from shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
by reason of any of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the
profits ratio) being less than 5% on an annual basis and the annual
cap amount exceeding HK$3,000,000:

Description of transaction Parties
1. Purchase of battery Chaowei Power and Zhejiang Doulan
production equipment Intelligence Equipment Co., Ltd

(MISEEaeRERNBRAF)
("Zhejiang Doulan”)

2. Provision of battery production ~ Chaowei Power and Xiamen Mate
materials processing services High-Technology New Energy Co., Ltd.
(EFSFaRmERERAR)
("Xiamen Mate”)

1. Purchase of battery production equipment

Chaowei Power and Zhejiang Doulan, a connected person of
the Company by virtue of Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules,
entered into a battery production equipment purchase
agreement (the "Battery Production Equipment Purchase
Agreement”) dated 29 December 2015, by which Zhejiang
Doulan has agreed to supply batteries intelligence
manufacturing equipment and ancillary facilities to Chaowei
Power for a term of 3 years from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2018, renewable upon expiry (subject to compliance
with the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules regarding
continuing connected transactions). Zhejiang Doulan is 60%
owned by Mr. Zhou Mingming and is therefore an associate of
Mr. Zhou and a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to the Battery Production Equipment Purchase
Agreement, Chaowei Power will purchase batteries intelligence
manufacturing equipment and ancillary facilities from Zhejiang
Doulan from time to time at price with reference to actual
costs (including labour costs, costs of materials, technology
development costs, rental expenses and depreciation
expenses related to batteries intelligence manufacturing
equipment and ancillary facilities ordered by Chaowei Power)
plus reasonable gross profit margin of Zhejiang Doulan, ranging
from 20% to 25%, which is, to the best knowledge the
Company, in line with the then market practice as for the
Company engaged in the similar industry and with the similar
scale, which shall not, in any event, be higher than the prices
of the products with comparable nature and scale charged by
other independent third party suppliers. For the purpose of
ensuring the consideration being fair and reasonable, the
Company has taken into account the following factors:

(1) the quotations from independent third parties for similar
projects; and

(2)  the historical price of similar projects procured by the
Group.

For the 3 years ending 31 December 2018, the proposed
annual cap amounts for the transactions under the Battery
Production Equipment Purchase Agreement are set at
RMB80,000,000, RMB110,000,000 and RMB150,000,000,
respectively (tax excluded).

During the Year, purchase of batteries intelligence
manufacturing equipment and ancillary facilities from Zhejiang
Doulan amounted to approximately RMB13,169,000, which is
within the 2016 annual cap of RMB80,000,000.

Further details of the said transaction was set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 December 2015.
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Battery Production Materials Processing Agreement
Chaowei Power and Xiamen Mate, a connected person of the
Company by virtue of Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules,
entered into a battery production materials processing
agreement (the “Battery Production Materials Processing
Agreement”) dated on 4 May 2016, by which Xiamen Mate has
agreed to provide battery production materials processing
services to Chaowei Power for a term from 4 May 2016 to 31
December 2016, renewable upon expiry (subject to compliance
with the provisions under the Listing Rules regarding continuing
connected transactions). Xiamen Mate is 50% owned by Mr.
Zhou Mingming and is therefore an associate of Mr. Zhou and
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Battery Production Materials Processing
Agreement, Chaowei Power will engage Xiamen Mate to
provide battery production materials processing services from
time to time at fees with reference to Xiamen Mate's actual
costs (including labour costs, costs of processing materials and
related expenses) plus a 10% gross margin of the actual costs,
which shall not, in any event, be higher than the fees for
services with comparable nature and scale charged by other
independent third party service providers. For the purpose of
ensuring the consideration being fair and reasonable, the
Company has taken into account the following factors:

(1) the quotations from independent third parties for similar
services; and

(2)  the historical fees for similar services procured by the
Group.

If there are government-prescribed prices for the battery
production materials processing services from the government
of the PRC, the consideration under the Battery Production
Materials Processing Agreement will be set in accordance with
such government prescribed prices.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, the proposed annual cap
amount for the transactions under the Battery Production Materials
Processing Agreement is set at RMB200,000,000 (tax excluded).

During the Year, the engagement of battery production materials
processing services from Xiamen Mate by Chaowei Power amounted
to approximately RMB13,980,000, which is within the annual cap of
RMB200,000,000. The Battery Production Materials Processing
Agreement expired on 31 December 2016.

Further details of the said transaction was set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 4 May 2016.

On 23 December 2016, Chaowei Power renewed the Battery
Production Materials Processing Agreement by entering into a
battery production materials processing agreement (2017) (the
"Battery Production Materials Processing Agreement (2017)") with
Xiamen Mate for a further term of 1 year from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2017, renewable upon expiry (subject to compliance with
the provisions under the Listing Rules regarding continuing
connected transactions).

For the year ending 31 December 2017, the proposed annual cap
amount for the transactions under the Battery Production Materials
Processing Agreement (2017) is set at RMB150,000,000 (tax
excluded).

Further details of the said transaction was set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 December 2016.

REVIEW BY INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS AND THE AUDITORS OF THE
COMPANY

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions of the Group and have confirmed
that these transactions have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) onnormal commercial terms; and
(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditors of the Company to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on pages 75 to 78 of this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF
NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Zhou Mingming, Great State and Jolly Pride (collectively
the “Controlling Shareholders”) has confirmed that for the Year, each
of them has complied with the deed of non-competition (the “Deed
of Non-competition”) dated 7 June 2010 executed by the Controlling
Shareholders in favour of the Company. There has not been any
opportunity in any restricted business (being business which is or
may be in competition with the business of any member of the
Group from time to time) being referred by the Controlling
Shareholders to the Company for the Year. The independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the compliance of the Deed of
Non-competition by the Controlling Shareholders for the Year and
considered the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the
Deed of Non-competition during the Year.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
A financial summary of the Group is set out on page 232 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the Year, and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and/or administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, during
the Year and as at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants who will
retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the Company
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Mingming
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
25 March 2017
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; a
‘uditor S Report

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHAOWEI POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chaowei
Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 88 to 231,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs"). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’” Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How

REELER
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our audit addressed the key audit matter

RRELSEE BREERTEEFARELSERANG A

Warranty provision

We identified warranty provision as a key audit matter due  Our procedures in relation to warranty provision included:

to the significance of this provision to the consolidated
financial statements and management’s estimates involved o
in estimating warranty provision at the end of the reporting
period.

Estimated costs related to product warranty are accrued at o
the time of sale and are based upon past warranty claims
and unit sales history and adjusted to reflect actual costs
incurred, as information becomes available.

Details of the key estimation uncertainty of warranty

provision are set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RERAE

Evaluating the appropriateness of the methodologies
used by the management for estimating warranty
provision;

Testing the underlying data and challenging the
assumptions used by the management based on past
events in estimating warranty provision and changes
in market conditions; and

Comparing actual warranty outflows subsequent to
the end of reporting period, where significant, to
those expected at the end of reporting period.
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Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BAEERTRERRERSENS

Impairment assessments on loan receivables

We identified recoverability of loan receivables as a key
audit matter due to the significance of these receivables to
the consolidated statement of financial position and
management’s estimates and judgements involved in the
recoverability assessment.

Management takes into consideration the collectability of
these receivables and identifies the objective evidences of
impairment and evaluates the present value of the
underlying future cash flows from recovering of these
receivables for impairment assessment purpose.

Details of the key estimation uncertainty of recoverability of
loan receivables are set out in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to recoverability of loan
receivables included:

o Analyzing relevant consideration and objective
evidences used by the management in assessing the
recoverability of loan receivables; and

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the supporting

evidence for the estimated future cash flows and the
historical settlement records.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Yam Siu Man.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2017

HREEALBRNFET  RABEEHAHRE
REMBRRBITEHEENEH  AMKSEE
REZEH - RMERBMREPHAZEER
BRIFERIERTAT AREEZETER  RAE
BHFRENBERLT  HaBRBERMBESHE
BRERENNEARRBHELNRIRAER
APRETEEREHEEZFA °

AR I ZBEBENETRE EBAREA
Y o

=E e MERS AT
HEEATAD
0

—2—+F=A=-+HA

BRABNZERERRA o 20165 R 87



For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE_Z—RE+A=1T—RHILLFE

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B aE ARHETT ARETT
Revenue WA 5 21,454,756 18,870,205
Cost of sales SHER AR (18,369,075) (16,460,540)
Gross profit EF 3,085,681 2,409,665
Other income and other gains E U A R B A a 6 159,655 313,167
Distribution and selling expenses DIHRIHER X (813,088) (798,063)
Administrative expenses TR X (663,253) (588,620)
Research and development expenses e (576,890) (475,188)
Other expenses and other losses EmFS R EAMEE 7 (287,500) (88,219)
Finance costs EhE A 8 (193,123) (223,837)
Share of result of associates JEILES & N R SR (6,685) (3,679)
Share of result of joint ventures EIEEEREFER 273 646
Profit before tax 5 B A 9 705,070 545,872
Income tax expense FriS®if 12 (86,012) (57,866)
Profit for the year FRFE 619,058 488,006
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hizm (Bs) WA
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently E&ske@E#HEEA
to profit or loss: BmmWIEE
Exchange differences on translation of BREGINEBTERED
financial statements of foreign operations ERER (1,055) (1,023)
Profit and total comprehensive income FRFEREERABRE
for the year 618,003 486,983
Profit attributable to: LA ALREEFDE
owners of the Company FiN/NEIE Y =N 503,796 331,669
Non-controlling interests FEERR 115,262 156,337
619,058 488,006
Profit and total comprehensive income AT A FE(EF)E K&
attributable to: FHEMWMALEE :
Owners of the Company KRBHEA A 502,741 330,646
Non-controlling interests FEVERR 115,262 156,337
618,003 486,983
Earnings per share R AT 13
— Basic (RMB) —EXR(ARETT) 0.48 0.33
— Diluted (RMB) —EE(ARBIT) 0.48 0.33
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2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T AR®TF T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - MENMKRE 15 4,081,373 3,728,701
Prepaid lease payments AR ERIE 16 275,858 253,345
Investment properties LB 17 41,815 36,868
Deferred tax assets R IEE = 18 353,028 266,848
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WY - BB &G
plant and equipment Fridi&® 59,350 55,207
Goodwill R 19 49,447 49 AL7
Intangible assets mpARE 20 17,818 20,194
Interests in associates NI 22 49,002 48,491
Interests in joint ventures RELBE R 23 130,419 57,646
Prepayments and other receivables TENREREMMERRIE 29 28,153 44,808
Loan receivables FEME K 24 74,210 266,710
5,160,473 4,828,265
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 25 2,315,830 2,066,792
Trade receivables FEUE SRR 26 1,610,574 1,128,623
Bills receivable EREE 27 1,168,573 540,268
Prepayments and other receivables FARRIEREMEKRIE 29 1,292,230 742,111
Amounts due from related parties JFE U B B 5 718 49(c) 96,538 43,742
Prepaid lease payments TEFEE 7R IE 16 6,128 5,636
Loan receivables EE R 24 199,511 46,000
Derivative financial instrument TESRIT A 40 18,905 -
Held-for-trading investments FEEERE 41 2,178 =
Restricted bank deposits ZIRESRITIER 30 526,778 404,723
Bank balances and cash IRITHB NI 30 588,439 960,960
7,825,684 5,938,855
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables FERTE SR 31 1,652,039 1,821,875
Bills payable FERT R 32 1,076,491 641,916
Other payables and accruals H NIRRT &R 33 1,455,608 972,488
Amounts due to related parties FET AR 5 5B 49(c) 10,358 201
Income tax payable FET TSR 144,467 78,186
Obligations under finance leases BEREETHEML 37 100,781 51,555
Corporate bonds TEES 38 595,287 -
Provision B 35 543,949 462,890
Bank borrowings RITEHE 36 1,665,025 1,389,729
7,244,005 5,418,840
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEETFHE 581,679 520,015
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES REERRBEE 5,742,152 5,348,280
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At 31 December 2016
RZE—RF+_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E2—XRE —ZE—RF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 5T AR® T ARETTT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E
Share capital &N 42 74,961 69,320
Reserves H & 43 3,228,003 2,515,320
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 7K B1# B A FE(h ez 3,302,964 2,584,640
Non-controlling interests IR AR RS 848,457 730,892
TOTAL EQUITY R 4,151,421 3,315,532
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred income RIEUA 34 249,286 183,011
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBAE 18 1,768 5614
Obligations under finance leases BMEREERMT 37 74,219 174,353
Bank borrowings RITEE 36 1,265,458 771,938
Convertible bonds Al AR (E S 39 - 303,845
Corporate bonds TEEH 38 - 593,987
1,590,731 2,032,748
5,742,152 5,348,280

The consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 231 were $8EZE 231 HEMEHMAEMBREE R =Z
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson 25 —tF=A=-t+HhBEZEFEHERTETE
March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: WHETHEERRES

Zhou Mingming
JEI B B
DIRECTOR
EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_ZT—RE+-_A=t+—HILEE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

RARREAELER
Equity
Convertible attributable
Statutory honds Exchange to non-
Share Share  surplus equity Other fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  reserves reserve  earnings Total interests equity
EE TERES Ex FERER
Brx  ROEGE R2HEE  BRBE  HtRE  XBRE  REERA & EEER  @itER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETr ARETR ARETr ARETr ARETR ARETr ARET: ARETR
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-5%5-f-H 68,140 1,089 274258 59,643 319,164 127 1,483,349 2,206,270 575,05 2,781,326
Profit for the year ERFE = = = = = = 331,669 331,669 156,337 488,006
Total comprenensive expenses FREEHXEE
for the year - - - - - (1,023 - (1,023) - (1,023
Dividend paid to non-controlling BisERER RS
Interests - - - - - - - - (1,901) (1901)
Issu of shares upon conversion of B A& R AR
convertible bonds (Note 39) {3 (B339) 1,180 76507 - (7.067) - - - 70620 - 70620
Redemption of comvertible bonds ~ BEAIERES
(Note 39) (PH3£39) = - - (22,39) - - - (22,39) - (22,8%)
Capital contribution by FERERRTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 1,400 1,400
Transfer 0 reserves N - - 45,050 - - - (45,050) - - -
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1F
+-A=1-H 69,320 77,596 319,308 29,680 319,164 (896) 1,770,468 2,584,640 730,892 3,315,532
Profit for the year FRFE = = = = = = 503,796 503,796 115,262 619,058
Total comprenensive expenses FREEHXEE
for the year - - - - - (1,055) - (1,055) - (1,055)
Acquisition of addtional interest WE-FHEATN
in subsidiaries (Notg) BiMER () - - - - (698) - - (698)  (22974)  (23,672)
Issu of shares upon conversion of B A& R AR T
convertible bonds (Note 39) {3 (B339) 5,641 339,705 - (29,680) - - - 315,666 - 315,666
Dividend paid to owners of the BAARAREARS
Company (Note 14) (PH3E14) - - - - - - (99,385) (99,385) - (99,385)
Dividend paid to non-controlling BijERER RS
nterests - - - - - - - - (15,856)  (15,.856)
Capital contribution by FERERNTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 41,133 41,133
Transfer to reserves YN - - 82,359 - - - (82,359) - - -
At 31 December 2016 RZE—E
+=A=f—H 74,961 417,301 401,667 - 318,466 (1951) 2,092,520 3,302,964 848,457 4,151,421
Note: On 22 January 2016, the Group (defined in Note 1) acquired 35% equity interestin Ml : R=ZF— X "F—A=-+—-H XEE(EZRLME1) UK

a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, Z &k 1BE) R AR A F (Anhui
Yongheng Power Technology Co., Ltd.) ("Anhui Yongheng”) at a consideration of
RMB22,672,000. After the acquisition, the Group holds 100% equity interest in
Anhui Yongheng.

On 31 October 2016, the Group acquired 10% equity interest in a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, & &l T #7 a8 R % A R & £ 2 & (Chongging
Chuangyuan New Power Technology Co., Ltd.) (“Chongging Chuangyuan”) at a
consideration of RMB1,000,000. After the acquisition, the Group holds 100%
equity interest in Chongging Chuangyuan.

BHIEZEMBRRLZEXEHNREER AR ([ZH
X8 1) 35% K RE4E - R (B A AR 22,672,000 45
% AEERFBLTEKERIPIRAE -

R-ZE—RE+A=+—8 FAEEKREELIEZEHEB
AR EERITHERNEEREEARTEELRIT))
10% RO R%AE - R{B/BARE1,000,0007T - WEE%E - K&
B ERAITEIPARAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE_Z—XF+_A=+—HBLFE

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE AREFT ARETTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KESEE
Profit before tax R %54 A A1) B 705,070 545,872
Adjustments for: K
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF A A B WA 6 (22,767) (31,942)
Interest income on loan receivables FEW & KA A B A 6 (16,665) (15,433)
Share of result of joint ventures EIEEEREFER (273) (646)
Share of result of associates FERES & R R SEE 6,685 3,679
Gain on disposal of an associate & — KB A R = (43,258)
Finance costs & Bl A 8 193,123 223,837
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BEMREITE
equipment 15 348,646 319,550
Depreciation of investment property KREMFENE 17 2,212 1,737
Amortization of intangible assets B E B 20 2,376 2,376
Prepaid lease payments released to profit FFABEMEMEE
or loss FQE] 16 5,800 5,631
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEREE
equipment [=gi! 7 15,522 22,754
Gain on changes in fair value of financial DERFEEE LR
assets classified as held for trading BEAFEZEH NS 6 (2,154) =
Release of government grants from FR IR S WA B OB
deferred income ey 6 (14,510) (9,353)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts on FEURE 5 BR TR RERER
trade receivables B 7 76,433 34,093
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts on Hth fE U RIE B R EEBR
other receivables B 7 3,815 17,649
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts on TE SRIB R REEBR B
prepayments 7 178,014 =
Allowance for inventories FERE 9 6,807 2,557
Provision for warranty REBERE 35 799,720 573,001
Operating cash flows before movements EEESEHANKCERS
in working capital meE 2,287,854 1,652,104
Increase in inventories FEEmnm (255,845) (346,682)
Increase in receivables, deposits and FEWGRIE « e KT EIR
prepayments N (1,907,586) (443,897)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from JRE it B B 5 SR (38 00)
related parties N (9,593) 68,222
Increase in payables, deposits received and  FEfTFIE - B YIRS K TEIR
accrued charges 2 RN 744,645 1,280,959
Utilisation of provision for warranty ) IRE B 35 (718,661) (551,639)
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to JE (<t BEES 5 ZRIE 8 A OFi4)
related parties 10,157 (6,029)
Cash generated from operations EEBES 150,971 1,653,038
Income tax paid B FSH (95,664) (91,704)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BHE-_E—RE+-A=1+—HIEE
2016 2015
—E-XE —ET-hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR®T T ARET T
Net cash from operating activities R SE BN TSR £ %58 55,307 1,561,334
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEEW%¥ - K= REE (673,711) (555,387)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, IKEEZE ~ BRI AR
plant and equipment Fiftiz & (59,350) (55,207)
Purchases of financial instrument classified EEBESHEARBIEES Y
as held-for-trading SRTH (5,781) (9,681)
Disposal of financial instrument classified as HESEARIEEE 2
held-for-trading SRTH 5,757 18,195
Purchases of investment property BEREME 17 (7,159) (12,445)
Addition to prepaid lease payments B EFIRIE AN 16 (28,805) (6,747)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plantand &% « R LR
equipment Fr 153008 8,763 1,992
Cash paid for establishment of joint ventures &3 & &M NIRE (72,500) (57,000)
Proceeds on disposal of an associate & — AR RS
I8 - 20,000
Cash paid for establishment of associates BUBERRTES (8,400) (10,551)
Collection of loan to an associate BURESE R R E K 3,488 -
Government grants received BB T 1 B 34 80,785 38,805
Interest received BUF B 39,432 47,375
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits TR PR I SR 1T 17 3K 2,744,295 4,433,616
Placement of restricted bank deposits TR R SR TR (2,866,350) (4,563,285)
Purchases of derivative financial instruments B4+ 7 T A (65,900) =
Disposal of derivative financial instruments — HESTES R TE 48,767 =
Advance of loan receivables FEWE FRE K 24 (47,911) (210,850)
Collection of loan receivables B ERE K 24 86,900 83,140
Advance to related parties ) BE s 5 Bk (43,203) (20,010)
Net cash used in investing activities B e AIR & e (860,883) (858,040)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE_Z—RE+A=1T—RHILLFE

2016 2015
—E—XKF —T—REF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 7E AREFT ARKETT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RESEE
New bank borrowings raised FERNRTEE 4,041,429 3,571,369
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (3,272,613) (3,854,672)
Proceed from finance leases BE RS TS RIA = 250,000
Repayment of finance lease payables EEREHERNHIE (50,000) =
Repayments of short term financing notes BERNRERRE - (200,000)
Dividends paid BERE (99,385) =
Interest paid BRHE (187,940) (281,062)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest BT IEIE AR E IR B (15,856) (1,901)
Acquisition of additional interest in a U BE — R B A B EESN
subsidiary s (23,672) =
Capital contribution by non-controlling SRR iR R E B
interests 41,133 1,400
Redemption of convertible bonds fBE e ES 39 = (243,000)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities mEEEFTE (FTA)
I ERE 433,096 (757,866)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  R& RIRSZEBYR A FEE (372,480) (54,572)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUREMREEEYD
of the year 960,960 1,016,555
Effects of exchange rate changes [EREFB) & (41) (1,023)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, E4&R 4 RIRSZEY) -
represented by bank balances and cash LASRITHE A RIR SRR 588,439 960,960
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18 January 2010 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands and its shares have been listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 7 July 2010. The
addresses of the registered office is P.O. Box 31119 Grand
Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman,
KYI-1205 Cayman Islands, and its principal place of business in
the PRC is No. 12 zZhizhou Road, Xinxing Industrial Park,
Zhicheng, Changxing, Zhejiang Province, PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) operate (the functional
currency of the Company and most of its subsidiaries). The
Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 21.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS")
2.1 Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year
The Group has applied the following amendments to
IFRSs for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Amendments to I1AS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods

and IAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to IAS 16 Agriculture. Bearer Plants

and IAS 41
Amendments to IFRS 10,  Investment Entities: Applying the

IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Consolidation Exception

Amendments to IFRSS Annual Improvements to IFRSS

2012-2014 Cycle
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

2.1

2.2

926 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current year
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’

IFRS 16 Leases?

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and IAS 28 between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative*

Annual Report 2016
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

2.2 New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses*

Amendments to IFRSS Annual Improvements to IFRSS
Standards 2014-2016 Cycle®

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

or 1 January 2018, as appropriate

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements
for financial assets.

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. BRENHHE] RIS PR B IS iR 5 %
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING B (EBRE RS REXER| |) (48)
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

2.2 New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but 2.2 CEMERRERNIT RKIET

not yet effective (continued) BB B A 5 2E B (/)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) BMEBREENFEIRIMT A
(#8)

Key requirements of IFRS 9: BIPR B 5 S5 2E RSB O SRV E EARE

all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at ‘fair value
through other comprehensive income’ (“FVTOCI").
All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair value at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

2.2 New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

RAHE RIS R BRI 3R 5 2
B (T B B ot 15 3 5 22 A 1) ()

2.2 CHEMERAREMBHET REEET
B PR B R 3R 5 2 B (4
B EREERNFEIRIEMTA]

with regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change
in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as fair value through profit or loss is presented in
profit or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under I1AS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

2.2 New and amendments to IFRSS in issue but

not yet effective (continued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Application of IFRS 9 in the future may have a material
impact on the classification and measurement of the
Group's financial assets. The directors of the Company
(the "Directors”) are of the view that the expected credit
loss model may result in early and additional provision of
credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the
Group's financial assets measured at amortised costs.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS
15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it

becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach

to revenue recognition:
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)
2.2 New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)
o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

In April 2016, the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB") issued Clarifications to IFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal
versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The Directors anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 in
the future may result in more disclosures, however, the
Directors do not anticipate that the application of IFRS 15
will have a material impact on the timing and amounts of
revenue recognised in the respective reporting periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e hasthe ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on combination.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently whenever
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination with finite useful lives are reported at
costs less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses/revalued amounts, being their fair value at
the date of the revaluation less subsequent accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment loss, on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

The licensed technology and trademark are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Deposits received from customers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders' rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes other than construction in progress
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or for
its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at
cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the consolidated statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets,
in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the
Group's general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payment can be made
reliably, whilst the building element is classified as property,
plant and equipment or investment property, as appropriate,
interest in leasehold land is accounted for as an operating
lease and presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group entity are
presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (its functional
currency, i.e. RMB).

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss for
the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or 10ss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Government grants related to
depreciable assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful
lives of the related assets. Other government grants are
recognised as revenue over the periods necessary to match
them with the costs for which they are intended to
compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants that
are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits schemes,
including state-managed retirement benefits schemes in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme, are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax’ as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or
expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
each reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of each reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and the deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. When current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

3 how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated

intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable,
directs labour costs and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price less all estimated costs to completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease under that standard.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under
the relevant sale of goods legislation are recognised at the date
of sale of the relevant products, at the Directors’ best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the Group's obligation.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transactions costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through
profit or loss’ (“FVTPL") and ‘loans and receivables’. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments, of which interest income is included in other
income, other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gain or
losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is (i) contingent consideration that may be paid by an
acquirer as part of a business combination to which IFRS 3
applies, (i) held for trading, or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

3 it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets and is
included in the other expenses and other losses line item. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in Note 45(e).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loan and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables, bills receivable, other
receivables, loan receivables, amounts due from related
parties, restricted bank deposits and bank balances) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on loans and receivables below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables when the effect of
discounting is immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or

prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counter
party; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

. disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and other receivables, that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period of
15 days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable and other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade payables,
bills payable, other payables, amounts due to related parties,
corporate bonds, obligations under finance leases and
convertible bonds are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both the
liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceeds
of the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the convertible
bonds into equity, is included in equity (convertible bonds
equity reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Convertible bonds (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component, representing
the option to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in which case
the balance stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will be
transferred to share premium). Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in
convertible bonds equity reserve will be released to the
retained earnings. No gain or 0ss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subseqguently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature
of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or 10ss.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Warranty

The Group provides a warranty up to fifteen months on all lead-
acid motive battery products. Under the terms of warranty, the
Group undertakes to repair or replace the battery free of
charge in the event of any malfunctioning within the warranty
period.

Estimated costs related to product warranty are accrued at the
time of sale and are based upon past warranty claims and unit
sales history and adjusted as required to reflect actual costs
incurred, as information becomes available. As at 31 December
2016, the Group recognised provision for warranty amounted
to RMB543,949,000 (2015: RMB462,890,000) and details are
disclosed in Note 35.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated impairment of receivables

Trade receivables, bills receivable, other receivables and loan
receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit and
loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired.

In making the estimates, management considered detailed
procedures have been in place to monitor this risk. In
estimating whether allowance for bad and doubtful debts is
required, the Group takes into consideration the aging status
and the likelihood of collection. When there is objective
evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes into
consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 December 2016, the aggregate carrying amount of trade,
bills receivable, other receivables and loan receivables (net of
allowance for doubtful debts), was approximately
RMB3,132,572,000 (2015: RMB2,063,906,000). Details of
movements of allowance for trade receivables, other
receivables and loan receivables are disclosed in Notes 26, 29
and 24 respectively.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2016, the
carrying amount of goodwill is RMB49,447,000 (2015:
RMB49,447,000). Details of the recoverable amount calculation
are disclosed in Note 19.

Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2016, deferred tax assets of
RMB353,028,000 (2015: RMB266,848,000) in relation to
allowances for doubtful debts and inventories, deferred
income, accrual and provision, tax losses and other temporary
differences have been recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the unused tax losses of
RMB142,154,000 (2015: RMB211,380,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisation of the
deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated
are more or less than expected, a material adjustment of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which such an adjustment takes
place. Details of deferred taxation are disclosed in Note 18.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant
and equipment

The Group’s management determines the residual value, useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment, as disclosed in Note 15. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual residual value and
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and keen competitions from competitors.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where
residual value or useful lives are less than previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete assets.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The licensed technology and trademark are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The Group's
management determines the useful lives of these intangible
assets to be 10 years. The carrying amount of intangible assets
as at 31 December 2016 was RMB17,818,000 (2015:
RMB20,194,000). The Group assesses annually the useful lives
of these intangible assets and if the expectation differs from
the original estimate due to changes in the expected level of
usage and/or technological developments, such difference will
impact the amortisation charge in the year in which such
estimate is changed.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment being
lower than its carrying amount. As at 31 December 2016, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment was
RMBA4,081,373,000 (2015: RMB3,728,701,000).
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets are allocated to respective cash-generating
unit for the purpose of impairment testing whenever there is
indication that the intangible assets may be impaired. The
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been
determined based on value in use calculation. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. Details of the calculation
of the recoverable amount are set out in Note 20. No
impairment loss of intangible assets was recognised in current
year. The carrying amount of the intangible assets as at 31
December 2016 was RMB17,818,000 (2015: RMB20,194,000).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and
sales of lead-acid motive batteries and other related items. The
Group's revenue primarily represents the amount received and
receivable for sale of lead-acid motive batteries during the
year.

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
("CODM”) in order to allocate resources to segments and to
assess their performance. The information reported to the
executive Directors of the Company, who is the Group’s CODM
for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
performance, does not contain profit or loss information of
each product line and the executive Directors reviewed the
gross profit of the Group as a whole reported under the
relevant accounting policies and financial regulations in the
PRC (the "PRC GAAP”), which is the same as the gross profit
reported under IFRSs. Therefore, the operation of the Group
constitutes one single operating segment. Accordingly, no
segment information is presented.

No segment assets and liabilities, and related other segment
information were presented as no such discrete financial
information is provided to the CODM.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(continued)

Most of the external revenues of the Group during the year are
contributable to customers established in the PRC, the place of
domicile of the Group'’s operating entities. Most of the Group’s
non-current assets are located in the PRC.

No revenues from a single external customer amounted to 10
percent or more of the Group’s revenue during the year.

/ww:/ﬁﬁk¥&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BEZZT—R"F+_A=1T—HILFE

WA K7 2R E ¥ ()
FR - ARERBAIERASR AR EK

VHWEF -HFBEAAEEKEEEMEL
B o NEBARDIERBEEDUNRTHE -

FRN - BEREE—
B A 10% kA E o

SNERE P VAR AR SR

An analysis of revenue by products is as follows: WAIRERAITIT
2016 2015
AL —ZT—hfF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETTT
Lead-acid motive battery INERE) B
Electric bike battery BHETEEM 15,507,058 14,195,693
Electric vehicle battery and special- BHESE /@&fhﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁ
purpose electric vehicle battery ESEEES 3,791,789 3,544,518
Li-ion battery $BEEFE) 329,488 208,158
Materials include lead and active additives MBI RIEEY) 1,826,421 921,836
21,454,756 18,870,205
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE_Z—RE+A=1T—RHILLFE

6. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS 6. HMUWARHMKE
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT
Government grants B
— grants related to income (Note) — B A B AR (M) 74,505 193,578
— grants related to assets (Note 34) —HEERBENME(FE34) 14,510 9,353
Interest income on bank deposits RITE A A B WA 22,767 31,942
Interest income on loan receivables FEUE A F B A 16,665 15,433
Interest income on outstanding HE—FRES DA% NRER
consideration of disposal of an associate F B U A 1,413 1,203
Change in fair value of derivative MTESBITAQNTEES
financial instruments 1,772 -
Change in fair value of held-for-trading BIrEERE AT EEDH
investments 2,154 -
Rental income LA 5,243 4,237
Sales of scrap materials $HE R 6,651 5,410
Gain on disposal of an associate s —REE D RIS = 43,258
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading HEFEEEREN K
investments 371 4,536
Gain on disposal of derivative financial HEMESm A K
instruments 4,036 -
Exchange gain B 3 W o 34 -
Others Hifb 9,534 4,217
159,655 313,167
Note: Government grants include various government subsidies received by the Bzt « BRTHEBY 6195 Z (BB AT 4L BRIl 2K 22 R I 2 B %
Company’s subsidiaries from relevant government bodies in connection B BB F IR - SR - RRIEM A
with enterprise expansion, technology advancement, environmental REEMFEFEZHBTHEY c RZFE—NF1+Z
protection measures enhancement and product development. There A=1—H ' ZZ/8) R B 0 5 5 K EK R IF
were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants e BEE ©

and subsidies as at 31 December 2016.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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OTHER EXPENSES AND OTHER LOSSES 7. HiBAZRHMER
2016 2015
— NI —hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Depreciation of investment properties KEMENITE 2,212 1,737
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts of  EUE 5 EERRIEERE
trade receivables 76,433 34,093
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts of  E fh FE U 5k T8 R i AR 4
other receivables 3,815 17,649
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts of — &E{J 318 R BR 48 (MH3E ()
prepayments (Note (i) 178,014 -
Donations 186% 5,858 4,343
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BERRENEIER
equipment (Note (ii)) (HF=E D) 15,522 22,754
Exchange loss i H 518 - 1,264
Others HAit 5,646 6,379
287,500 88,219
Notes: HtaE -
():  Amount represents allowance for bad and doubtful debts of prepayments () - EAIEEARFAAEER (T HTEEE AT
as a result of the failure to deliver certain quantity of lead to the Group. THRIZARIEN ©
(i) During 2015, certain of the Company's subsidiaries upgraded their (i): R=ZF—AF ARAEFHERAIEARLE

production processes to expand production capacity, relocate to new
production plants and improve production efficiency and hence, relevant
machinery and equipment were disposed of and replaced by new
machinery and equipment, resulting in loss on disposal of certain pieces

of machinery and equipment.

TR ABERER - WEBEEERERNEEE
HE - FU - AR R RS R AR I B I AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_T—"F+-A=+—HBLLFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WEMRAE
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT
Interest expenses on: MERE -
Bank borrowings IRITEE 120,400 147,083
Short term financing notes RHRE Z - 770
Corporate bonds TEEH 49,845 49,845
Finance lease BAEHEE 7,860 6,641
Convertible Bonds (Note 39) AR ES (5 39) 23,239 44,438
Total borrowing costs BERAEE 201,344 248,777
Less: amounts capitalised in B RN ERIBPERMEESRE
construction in progress (8,221) (24,940)
193,123 223,837
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 HE_ZT—"F+ZA=+—HLFE &
December 2016 arose on the general borrowing pool and are FREAZEEXNATRE —REERE - Wik
calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 4.63% per annum AEBREERAYAL%(ZE—HF: FF
(2015: 5.73% per annum) to expenditure on qualifying assets. L& 5.73%) AR FELL R E o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BEZZT—R"F+_A=1T—HILFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. BRFAIAE
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging: MRELRIAEE 0B 5% 18 -
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETIT
Salaries and other benefits costs e REAER A 865,229 726,092
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R & Fl 5T 214 3¢ 32,541 27,995
Labour cost (Note) B TR (BfaE) 215,191 248,099
Total staff costs B IR A BEE 1,112,961 1,002,186
Cost of inventories recognised as expense RERINEFEEKA 17,562,548 15,883,346
Allowance for inventories FEREGIAHEERA)
(included in cost of sales) 6,807 2,557
Prepaid lease payments released to STABRHBENEERKIE
profit or loss 5,800 5,631
Auditors’ remuneration 1% EREN BN & 6,672 5,654
Amortization of intangible assets ERAESEGIATTHRASR)
(included in administrative expenses) 2,376 2,376
Depreciation of property, M - WEREHETE
plant and equipment 348,646 319,550
Depreciation of investment properties WEMERE 2,212 1,737
Note: The Group has entered into various labor dispatch agreements with Miat - RNEE SR B A EEIEHL T IREHIREEIE
several service organisations which have provided labor service to the T4 TRE % o
Group.
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

138

EMOLUMENTS

Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the Directors

during the year are as follows:

10. EERTHRARNE

AEERNFAREEIOMESFBENT

Salaries Contribution
and other to retirement
benefits- benefit
Fees in-kind scheme Total
HeK ERER
e HMBEWEF FTEIf &t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETRE AR¥Tn ARBTR AR%Tx
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZE-Z—X<&F
TZA=t-HLEE
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Zhou Mingming (Note (i)) JEIRA AR 5% A (B 7E () - 1,980 10 1,990
Mr. Zhou Longrui BESsr e - 379 - 379
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERZLT - 379 - 379
Mr. Yang Xinxin DL ipites - 1,992 10 2,002
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Ms. Fang Jianjun FEELL 350 - - 350
Mr. Ng Chi Kit (Note (i) REBGEEE () 350 = = 350
Independent non-executive BYFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR 350 - - 350
Prof. Ouyang Minggao O LIS 65 350 - - 350
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FREEE 350 - - 350
Total st 1,750 4,730 20 6,500
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EERTHEARNE (B)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Salaries  Contribution
and other  to retirement

benefits- benefit
Fees in-kind scheme Total
ek BIRER
we  HiEWRER FrEER &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREBTT ARETT AREBTE ARETRT

Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-Z-—1&

+tZA=t—-HLEE
Executive directors: BITES:
Mr. Zhou Mingming (Note (i)) AR5 A (R () = 1,720 6 1,726
Mr. Zhou Longrui EESi - 438 - 438
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERLL - 393 - 393
Mr. Yang Xinxin D Eik b - 2,048 6 2,054
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Ms. Fang Jianjun FEELL 350 - - 350
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REMEL 350 S - 350

Independent non-executive BYkHTES:

directors:
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR 350 - - 350
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B3 R i 350 = = 350
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai TRELE 350 - - 350
Total BEr 1,750 4,599 12 6,361
The directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their LR ESHFNEEARARRIZEEFRME
services as directors of the Company. KRR 7% o
Notes: Kt
@):  Mr. Zhou Mingming is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company ():  JEEHEESEENBARBIRITTEARE - T £ XX AT
and his emoluments disclosed above also include those for services FERF NI IE R EETBARS IFHY

rendered by him as the Chief Executive Officer.

(i):  Mr. Ng Chi Kit has been re-designated from a non-executive Director to (i): REGAER-F—F_A+HHIHTEE
an independent non-executive Director with effect from 10 February AEBUIFHITEE -
2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE_Z—RE+A=1T—RHILLFE

11. EMOLUMENTS OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID 1. EBREFALTHEHE
INDIVIDUALS
The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
included two Directors (2015: two Directors), details of their
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the

FR - ARENAEESFALEEREE
E(ZT0F MBESR) HMEHEH
MEX - FR - BTI=BAL(ZZE—0F:

remaining three individuals for the year (2015: three individuals) —RADHBESHT ¢
are as follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
Salaries and other allowances e R EAbERL 2,450 3,058
Retirement benefits scheme contributions  :RKtE R 5H 21 10 7
2,460 3,065
The above employees’ emoluments were within the following LRSS EATEHE :
bands:
Number of individuals
AT EE
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
Nil to Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$") 1,000,000 &2 1,000,000% 7t ([ 77T 1) 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T 2 1,500,000 7 7T -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T 2 2,000,000 % 7T 1 -
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the FR - AEBYERNESIAERERTALT

Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement T ME 0 EAIASRINAZ S B B ry 42
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of Bhek (EBEBLH1E - £ - BIEESREMLW
office. None of the Directors waived any emoluments during B o

the year.

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FRBBIAX

2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT

The charge comprises: T HBE
PRC current income tax fR B BN EAFT 1SR 176,038 119,630
Deferred tax (Note 18) EFEFRIE (FI5E18) (90,026) (61,764)
86,012 57,866
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12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. The EIT
Law provides that qualified dividend income between two
“resident enterprises” that have a direct investment
relationship is exempted from income tax. Otherwise, such
dividends will be subject to a 5% to 10% withholding tax under
the tax treaty or the domestic law. The Group is currently
subject to withholding tax at 5%. During the year ended 31
December 2016, withholding tax on intra-group dividend
amounting to RMB7,947,368 (year ended 31 December 2015:
RMB16,737,368) was paid by the Group to relevant tax
authorities.

In accordance with the “Notice of the State Tax Bureau of the
Ministry of Finance Regarding Certain Preferential Treatment
Policies on Enterprise Income Tax”, New and High Technical
Enterprise was subject to income tax at a tax rate of 15%. The
following subsidiaries of the Company were recognised as New
and High Technical Enterprises in accordance with the
applicable EIT Law of the PRC and are subject to income tax at
a tax rate of 15% for the respective years set out below:

Jiangsu Chaowei Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Chaowei")
IE R ERGR AR (NIFFBE])

Jiangxi Xinwei Power Technology Co., Ltd. (“Jiangxi Xinwei")
PR ECED S e IR B AR A R (DI AFTEL)
Shandong Chaowei Power Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Chaowei”)
IR EIRBR AR ([URER])

Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang Power Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang")

MIRESABERERAF (DNIRESKE])

Zhejiang Chaowei Chuangyuan Industrial Co., Ltd. (“Chaowei Chuangyuan®)

AL AT EE AR AR ([HEEITT))

Jiangsu Yongda Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Yongda")
TEOXEBRRMDERA A (NIFKE]D

Anhui Yongheng

ZEKiE

Chaowei Power Co., Ltd. (“Chaowei Power”)
HBERERARAR ([HBEER])

Henan Chaowei Power Co., Ltd. (“Henan Chaowei”)
B ERERAR (IEEER])

Anhui Chaowei Power Co., Ltd. (“Anhui Chaowei")
ZHREBHERER AR ([ LREEE])

| nanual Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_E—RFt+-_A=1+—"HIEFE

12. FiiSHRAx< (&)

BIB(PEAREMBCERERE) ([1DE
FIEFE]) RO EFEFAE HIEH) » S E
BB AR KR B25% - DEFREHIER
T MERBAECEEREBENIERLE]
ZHEMEERBREWA - BRRAHER - B
BEASN - IRIEFRIEIEO KB RERE - RES
BT 5% = 10% 5 M) B R BN TBINEL -
B AT ANEEEIE 5% R MIEFT -
B Z—XRF+_-_A=1+—HItFE =K
& B2 s E R A 7R B A7 BT 75 R
XNFENHARK7947368T(HE-F
—hAE+-_A=+—BILEE: AR
16,737,368 7T) °

RE(IBHHBABREEMERETE
BERERRXNEMN) SMBREEAIR
15% B R BUAAFTIS B © LA T BIRIBE A H
PR EMSHREER SRR EERN
A R B B B 15% O P S B0 B R
HIRRHEEE

2016 t0 2018
—E-REEET)\HF
2016 t0 2018
—E-REFEE-)\F
2016 t0 2018
—E-REEZZT-N\F
2016 t0 2018
—E—REFEZZ-N\F
2016 t0 2018
—E-RFEET)N\HF
2016 t0 2018
—B- A EE-B—)\F
2014 t0 2016

T NFEET—RF
2014 t0 2016
E$1_¥ /_\E
2014 t0 2016
—HEEZE—RF
2015 to 2017
—E-hFFE_ZE—+F
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE_Z—RE+A=1T—RHILLFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
Other subsidiaries established in the PRC were subject to
income tax rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: 25%). The Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), Germany and Hong Kong
had no assessable profits during the year (2015: nil).

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

12. FrERIRAX ()
BE_Z—RFTA=+t—BHLFE R
TEAKTOEMHBRBNAEHRER
25%(ZF—H%F : 25%) - AAR RHERE
BeBrEs(XBEARAS]) BER
FAEMAZEM B AR - F AL HEERM
ME(CZ—HF &) -

FAMBHAX ARG BREREM2ER
SRTPORBAABEERDT

2016 2015
—E—AE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETTT
Profit before tax B 5 A1 A1 B 705,070 545,872
Tax at the applicable income tax rate of 25% 1% 3@ FA AT 1S 5 5 2k 25% =1 E 8518 176,268 136,468
Tax effect of income tax deduction granted A1t B A =11 H &9 2 5 5%
to subsidiaries in research and FIS BN R TS s 2
development expenditure (62,581) (55,559)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A H0FL 5 S BB S 2 2 4,054 5,456
Effect of preferential tax rates on income BRI R EE THE QA
of certain subsidiaries L ON:o)-7 (23,973) (17,825)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRBEENT BT E 16,296 5,784
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B 2 BIARTER < IR E 18
recognised (33,602) (22,711)
Tax effect of share of loss of associates FEML B R R IE R IB & 1,671 920
Tax effect of share of profit of joint ventures FE{E4& &% EH B2 (68) (162)
Deferred tax associated with withholding gt BB A Tk 9 B AE A
tax on undistributed profits of PRC TEFN R B AR B 0 3B E R IR
subsidiaries 7,947 5,495
Income tax expense for the year FRAEHAY 86,012 57,866

The details of deferred tax for the year are set out in Note 18. FARREER BRI BN E18 -
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. 8RER

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

ARRERARENERERLE SR T
RIBIA TR E

2016 2015
= —T—h%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Earnings &%
Earnings for the purpose of basic RERERBFIMEWEF
earnings per share 503,796 331,669
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: — #5& % 7 @ IR i 5 28
Interest on convertible loan notes AT AR B BB TS 23,239 -
Earnings for the purpose of diluted TR E R T E KRBT
earnings per share 527,035 331,669
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
‘000 ‘000
T B& T A%
Number of shares ROEE
Weighted average number of ordinary HBRERRZF M S /LB
shares for the purpose of basic hnkEFEHEE
earnings per share 1,043,091 1,016,759
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: #5&/&E BRI E -
Convertible loan notes AR EREE 64,821 -
Weighted average number of ordinary SLEREER M S MK
shares for the purpose of diluted IniEFIE B
earnings per share 1,107,912 1,016,759

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2015 does not assume the conversion of
the Company’s outstanding Convertible Bonds since their
exercise would result in an increase in earnings per share.

BE_Z-RF+_A=+—RILFENSE
P EEE RN T B P IR R R AR QAN
RARITEABRRES - W TIRRITEZFE
SRS BB A IR o
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14. DIVIDEND 14. RE
2016 2015
—E-RE —EF—RHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFIT
Dividends declared for distribution FREMREMRE
during the year:
2015 final dividend — RMB0.097 per “E-RFEREKE — K
share (2014 final dividend — nil) AER#0.097 7T (ZZE—PU4F
REARR B — %) 99,385 =

A final dividend of RMBO0.068 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2016 has been proposed by the Directors
and is subject to the approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

/\\/\m/ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_T—

15. W% - MERR®E

NE+ZA=1+—HILFE

Furniture,
Plant and Motor fixturesand Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total
& BE
BF RER#ES AE EBRRE HEIR #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
COST BA
At 1 January 2015 “Z-HF5—-F—H 1,395,763 1,616,824 164,700 148,725 774,074 4,100,086
Additions NE 91,647 155,144 32,028 30,283 337,026 646,128
Transfers EZN 181,640 150,908 422 1,780 (334,750) -
Disposals HE (12.457) (73,687) (12,192) (1,761) - (100,091)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ—h%F
+-A=+t—H 1,656,599 1,849,189 184,958 179,027 776,350 4,646,123
Additions NE 89,146 165,691 42,353 25,318 416,531 739,039
Transfers A 137,439 119,624 2,135 1,193 (260,441) =
Disposals HE (6,225) (53,788) (20,438) (2,228) - (82,679)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE
+-A=1+—H 1,877,009 2,080,716 209,008 203,310 932,440 5,302,483
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT & R RE
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-1F—A—H 198,625 323,661 66,669 63,822 - 652,777
Provided for the year FRERE 81,062 173,356 38,221 26911 - 319,550
Eliminated on disposals HER S (8,865) (35,224) (9,356) (1,460) - (54,905)
At 31 December 2015 —T-ThfF
+-A=t—H 270,822 461,793 95,534 89,273 - 917,422
Provided for the year FREBE 98,243 186,332 37,555 26,511 - 348,646
Eliminated on disposals HE R 2,379) (25,460) (15,105) 2,014) - (44,959)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF
+=-A=1+—H 366,691 622,665 117,984 113,770 = 1,221,110
CARRYING AMOUNT FEE
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—R
+-A=1+—-H 1,510,318 1,458,051 91,024 89,540 932,440 4,081,373
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1F
+-A=1+-H 1,385,777 1,387,396 89,424 89,754 776,350 3,728,701
BEBOZERERRA  2016FHR 145



Y
AR

M)~

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE_Z—RE+A=1T—RHILLFE

15.

16.

146

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BMERRE (E)
(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than i - BMEMEENER  BREZIRE
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line O HABERRIRIA T FRFHENE -

basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings EF 4.75%9.5%
Plant and machinery 7 K as 9.5%
Motor vehicles RE 19%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment B BERERR 9.5-19%
Details of property, plant and equipment pledged are set out in EERNYE - BEMREOFBHRNE
Note 46. 46 o
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. ERHEERIE
2016 2015
—E—XEF —EF-HF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
At beginning of the year REH] 258,981 257,865
Additions NE 28,805 6,747
Released to profit or loss as expense SFABREERAY (5,800) (5,631)
At the end of the year NG 281,986 258,981
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-—RHE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®ET T
Prepaid lease payments related to land use 75 @8+ & FAE Y TE N E 5008
rights analysed for reporting purposes as:  t¥reE B 9T A ¢
Current assets mENEE 6,128 5,636
Non-current assets SERBEE 275,858 253,345
281,986 258,981
Details of land use rights pledged are set out in Note 46. BER T AR IBE AR 46 o
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BE_Z—"F+t-_A=+—H1LFE
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REWEE

RMB'000
ARET T

CoST B
At 1 January 2015 RZE—hF—HA—AH 31,219
Addition IN=E 12,445
At 31 December 2015 R-_E—RAF+-_A=+—H 43,664
Addition NS 7,159
At 31 December 2016 R-E—XRF+-_A=+—H 50,823

DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2015 R-E—hF—HA—H 5,059
Provided for the year FNEAE 1,737
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RF+-_A=+—H 6,796
Provided for the year FREE 2,212
At 31 December 2016 RZE—XRF+=-A=+—H 9,008

CARRYING VALUES ARMEE

At 31 December 2016 RZE—XRF+=-A=+—H 41,815
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RF+-_A=+—H 36,868

BRBAZERERAF o
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17.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2016 was RMB62,674,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB58,013,000). The fair values of the commercial properties
located in the PRC and Germany have been arrived at based
on valuations carried out by Huzhou Zhongchen Guorui
Property Valuation Limited (4 1 # fx B I & 2= 5114 = 75 FT)
("Huzhou Zhongchen”) and Duff & Phelps, two independent
and professional qualified valuers not connected with the
Group at 31 December 2016, respectively. Huzhou Zhongchen
and Duff & Phelps have appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. The valuation for the property located in the
PRC were determined by direct comparison method based on
market observable transactions of similar properties and
adjusted to reflect the locations and conditions of the subject
properties. The valuation for the properties located in Germany
were determined by capitalisation of net income method,
where the market rentals of all lettable units of the properties
are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved in the
lettable unites as well as other lettings of similar properties in
the neighborhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is estimated
by considering mortgage and equity return requirements, the
age and condition of the respective properties, market
conditions, and an overall rate as shown in the general real
estate market in the local areas.

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2016
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AEBREVER-_ZE—R"F+_A=1+—
B AQAFESARK62674007T(=F
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. REYE (E)
Details of the Group's investment properties and information of R-E—RFt+_A=1+—"HAEEKREY
the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016 are as follows: LEERNTEBEHERNT
Fair value as at
31 December
Level 2 2016
R=B—REF
+=HA=+—8
28K HAFE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETTT
Commercial property unit located in the PRC 7B FS B YI Br 4,840 29,428
Commercial property units located in Germany Sz EBREIE B B i 36,975 33,246

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-

line basis at the following rates per annum: E:
Commercial property units located in the PRC AR B A E B
Commercial property units located in Germany R R RYESN
HEE NERER QA

ERBEMRIAEREIZIA D FREFRN

6.33%
5.60%

2016
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18. DEFERRED TAXATION 18. IEEBIIE
The deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised by the Group AEBRFRAERNELHEBEELEE (BB R
and the movements thereon, during the year are as follows: HEEHMT :
Allowance
for doubtful Fair value
debtsand  Deferred Accrual/ Tax  Withholding  adjustment
inventories income  provision losses tax  onassets Others Total
Eit5E/ BENATE
RERFERRE  BERA BE  BEEE bl oL - &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2015 R=Z-1F-F-H 7517 25838 158,745 15478 (11,242) (342) 3476 199,470
Credt (charge) to profitor loss A (&) B 13,889 3939 3,107 5511 1202 (4232) (369) 61,764
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1F
+-A=1+-H 21,406 2,171 193,852 20989 = (4574) (216) 261234
Credit (charge) to profitor loss A (&) 85 62,065 11528 14514 3825 = 190 209) 90,02
At 31 December 2016 RIB-—RE
T-A=1-H 83471 41,305 208,366 2314 = 4.384) 2312) 351,260
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for AT AR BIRE AR IB AR -
financial reporting purposes:
2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETT
Deferred tax assets BLEHIBEE 353,028 266,848
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFHIBAE (1,768) (5,614)
351,260 261,234
Details of the Group’s unused tax losses are as follows: REERBANBIEBEFBOT
2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—hF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Tax losses already recognised as deferred B HER BRI E ER
tax assets MIEEE 99,256 83,956
Tax losses unrecognised for deferred tax ~— IEIEFIIB E E K R FER
assets MIEEE 142,154 211,380
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18. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The unrecognised tax losses will be expired in the following
years:

nancia tS
For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-R—~F+-A=t+—ALER

18. JRFERH IR ()
KR BIB IR A T FEEIE

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—0F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

31 December 2016 —E-RFt+ZA=+—H - 688
31 December 2017 —E—+F+_/F=1+—H - 13,287
31 December 2018 —E-N\F+=-_A=1+—H - 21,184
31 December 2019 —E-NF+=-A=1+—H 53,835 153,084
31 December 2020 —E-FF+_A=+—H 23,137 23,137
31 December 2021 —E-_—F+-_A=+—H 65,182 -
Total @t 142,154 211,380
No deferred tax assets have been recognised in relation to R AR TERIR R A% Fm - B &R £

certain tax losses as shown above due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with undistributed earnings of PRC subsidiaries for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised was
approximately RMB3,167,627,000 as at 31 December 2016 (31
December 2015: RMB2,369,534,000). No deferred tax liability
has been recognised in respect of these differences because
the Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that such
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

METHABREDRERALE

F R EA R AERECHBABNRD
KB ETHERREZEABN _S— A F
+TZA=+—RA% A ARY3,167,627,000 T
—TE-RAFE+-_A=+—HH: AR
2,369,534,0007T ) ° FH A ZN £ B A 47 ) G B
ERER DR R IR RS RE M= 6
TERE - RIE S EEERELEHE
BE-

HBEBNZERERDA o 2016F#H 151

_’



~
AR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE-_T—"F+-A=+—HBLLFE

19. GOODWILL 19. &
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT
COST PR
At beginning and the end of the year RE) R F L 49,447 49,447
Goodwill of the Group was resulted from the acquisition of the REEREETRERBEHFEERETI
subsidiaries below for the past few years. WA= -
Goodwill
5k
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETT
Auhui Chaowei LB, 14,956 14,956
Anhui Yongheng ZEKE 9,342 9,342
Huzhou Changguang Haotian Power MINRESEREIRBREA A
Co., Ltd. ("Huzhou Changguang Haotian”)  ([#iM &EEX]) 754 754
Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang AL RS K 576 576
Jiangsu Yongda TLERIKE 23,524 23,524
Qinyang Libiao Plate Co., Ltd. WS AERIR B R A A
("Qinyang Libiao") (b2 ]) 295 295
Total =t 49,447 49,447
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19. GOODWILL (continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill set out above
has been allocated to one individual cash-generating unit
("CGU") as the six acquired subsidiaries all engaged in
manufacturing of motive batteries or accessories of motive
batteries. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
management of the Group determines that there is no
impairment of its CGU. The basis of the estimation of the
recoverable amount of the above CGU and the major
underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount has been determined based on a
value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management of the Group covering a 5-year period, and
discount rate of 13% (31 December 2015: 13%). The CGU’s cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady
2% growth rate in revenue (31 December 2015: 2%). The
growth rate used is based on management’s best estimation
on growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant markets. Other key
assumptions for the value-in-use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based on the unit’s
past performance and management’'s expectations for the
market development. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed
the aggregate recoverable amount.

19.

inancial S!e! nts

e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_T—XFt+-_A=+—HILFE

BmE (&)
RETREAR - BRATKRENASKKE A
AN EE B M E) N B R GEE - W
EXFENEEEIRE—EBVREES
B ([BREEEEMN]) - RBEE_T—RF
TZA=+—HLEFE AEEEEEET
ZRESEEBNIWEBE - Bt LR E
B AT Bl S M EER F ERBERR
N

AREeEIE BT EEREBEMNETE © &
HrtEMAERAREEEEMLERER
FHRNMBREEASNRERERR - M
FERANITRERIB%(ZE—RF+-A
=+—H:13%) c ZHEELBELRFIA
B HIR AR R E IR E M 2% WAL K
K(ZE—RAF+TA=+—H : 2%)HE& -
PrER ARG R R A E 2 B HIE R I MR E
BErRIKE - BEXTNEEEEMENFEE
HIRE - TEEREENEMEERERE
ReRA/ RENGET(BEREHERE
ME)ER - ARG ERZEMLBERR
MREREHMSERNEY - EEERS
ERZERRNAEFAEEHIECZAS
ELEUAREREBRBTROESE -
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. BLEE
Intangible assets are the specific technologies and know-how EREEAREXRMEESMEEZHBEET
relating to the production of start-and-stop batteries for R REENE  URAKEBNBEGEE
automotive industries and a licence right to use the brand ZREEMFEAMOLL mEEH (EE BT
name of MOLL (see Note 22 for definition) in the start-and-stop 22) ZHEETRE - BEEFIREHNMIEE22

batteries to be produced by the Group in the future, further
details of which are set out in Note 22.

RMB'000
ARETTT
COST R
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and 2016 “ET-—HF—A—H ZE—AHFEK
—E—RFt+-HA=t—H 23,758
AMORTISATION sy
At 1 January 2015 —E—HF—HF—H 1,188
Provided for the year FNE A 2,376
At 31 December 2015 —E—AF+=-A=+—H 3,564
Provided for the year F N 2,376
At 31 December 2016 —E-RF+-A=+—H 5,940
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 December 2016 —E—RF+=-_A=+—H 17,818
At 31 December 2015 —E—RF+-A=+—H 20,194
The useful life of 10 years is used in the calculation of ZEBRVEEZHEL0FERFERFERE
amortization of these intangible assets. H o
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21. SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BEZZT—R"F+_A=1T—HILFE

21. MBAT

Details of the Group'’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are as follows.

Issued and fully

4 55 B B 2 )R 5 B SRS B RS
T o

Equity interest

Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December Principal activity
HMmAL/ BETRBRE AXIMTZA=t-H
INCER R RE/EmEx kAR FTEEE
2016 2015
ZB-RE ZB-0E
% %
Directly held
EBRA
Chaowei Power Group Limited BVI US$100 100 100 Investment holding
BEBNEEERAF ABERREE 100%7T RARR
Indirectly held
BERE
Chaowei Power (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
BEEN (BE)BERAR &b 10,000 87T RARR
Chaowel Power Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Research and development
ERBARHER AT i 10,0007%7C e
Chaowei Power (Note i) PRC RMB1,063,800,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
R ER (M) i AR H1,063,800,0007T BEFNEH
Changxing Zhongcheng Power Co., Ltd. PRC RMB50,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
(Note i) M AR50,000,0007T HEENEN
REAZHBRAB AR (i)
Henan Chaowei (Note i) PRC RMB10,000,000 60 60  Manufacture of motive batteries
e () el AR10,000,0007T HEH NS
Shandong Chaowei (Note i) PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
L3R R (B ) i AR 100,000,000 HEH NS
Jiangsu Chaowei (Note i) PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
L R (1) i AR 100,000,007 HEH NS
Anhui Chaowei (Note i) PRC RMB10,000,000 75 75 Manufacture of motive batteries
RHER (M) G ARH10,000,000 7 HEHNER
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21. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Details of the Group's subsidiaries at the end of the reporting
period are as follows. (continued)

21. B2 7 (&)
REE B A RN RE PERENE T
T o ()

Issued and fully Equity interest

156

Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December Principal activity
ML/ ERTRAR AAARTZA=t-H
INEER R RE/EmEx FEfL AR TREY
2016 2015
“E-NE C—T-1%
% %
Zhejiang Chaowei Power Energy Co., Ltd. PRC RMB150,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries and
(Note i) i AR 150,000,007 materials
MIBEE N RERAR (M) HEYNENRIH
Jiangxi Xinwei (Note i) PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
igAUED)) e AR 100,000,007 HEHNEH
Anhui Yongheng (Note i) PRC RMB65,500,000 100 65 Manufacture of motive batteries
K E (i) el AR 65,500,000 HEH N
Huzhou Changguang Haotian (Note ) PRC RMB500,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
HNREER (3t e ARH500,0007T HEHNEH
Zhejiang Changxing Jlintaiyang (Note i) PRC RMB10,000,000 51 51 Manufacture of motive batteries
MIRESAR (i) el ARKH10,000,0007T HEH N
Golden Chaowei Technology Limited BVI HK$3,000,000 80 80  Research and development
(“Golden Chaowei") KBERRES 3,000,000 it
SRERMERAR (@]
Chaowei Chuangyuan (Note i) PRC RMB83,333,333 60 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
BFAIT () il ARH¥83333,3337T HEH NS
Jiangsu Yongda (Note i) PRC RMBB0,000,000 60 60 Manufacture of motive batteries
TL&RKE (W) i ARH80,000,000 7 HEPNEN

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited
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SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
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21. B2 7 (&)

Details of the Group'’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are as follows. (continued)

Issued and fully

AEE KB R BN R AR AR
W e ()

Equity interest

Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December Principal activity
ML,/ BETRER AXAMTZA=t-H
INEER R BE/EMEx s AR TREY
2016 2015
ZE-xF —T-af
% %
Qinyang Libiao (Note i) PRC RMB63,240,769 85 85  Manufacture of electrode plate
NGavEEl{iE)) i AR 63,240,769 7T dividing paper
HEFRRFRA
Zhejiang Yueda Plastic Co., Ltd. (Note ) PRC RMB40,350,000 51 51 Manufacture of plastic battery
IR EEERNERAR (W) i AR 40,850,000 7 cases
HEBHER
Hebei Chaowei Power Co., Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB120,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
M REERARAR (i) e AR 120,000,000 BEHNED
Anhui Xinwei Power Trading Co., Ltd. (Note ) PRC RMB20,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries and
ZRFABNEREHERAR (i) i AR 20,000,0007T materials
HEBNTHRIH
Zhejiang Xinwei Power Trading Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries and
(Note) i AR 10,000,000 materials
MIFEERE 28R AR (M) HERNEHRIE
Henan Chaowei Zhengxiao Power Co., Ltd. PRC RMB60,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
(Note ) i AR 60,000,000 HEH NS
MERHERERERAR (M)
Xinhe County Battery Trading Co., Ltd. PRC RMBS500,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries and
(Note ) H AR#500,0007C materials
Mg AN REEERAR () HEBNTHRIH
Leadnew Limited BVI UsD100 100 100 Investment holding
RBERRES 10£7T RARR
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21.

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

21.

Details of the Group's subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are as follows. (continued)

Issued and fully

B8 2 B (&)

REE B A RN RE PERENE T

T o ()

Equity interest

Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December Principal activity
ML/ ERTRAR AAARTZA=t-H
INEER R RE/EmEx iR A R TREY
2016 2015
“E-NE C—T-1%
% %
Shandong Chaowei Ciyao Power Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
(“Chaowei Ciyao™) (Note i) i AR 10,000,000 HEH N
WRBRHEERERAR ((BRHE])
i)
Ningyang Chaowei Land Co., Ltd. (Note i PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Property development
EGBRERARAR (M) G AR#10,000,000 7 NEER
Moll Grundstucks-und Vermogensverwaltungs — Germany EUR1,500,000 100 100 Property investment
GMbH & Co. KG 28 1,500,000 7 nERE
Znhejiang Chaowei Chu Network PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Network technology and
Technology Co., Ltd. (Note i) H AR10,000,0007T E-business technologies
LR RBA R ERA A () BERMRETHEHRN
Jiangsu Changxing Packaging PRC RMB20,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of glass
Materials Co., Ltd. (Note i i AR 20,000,0007T fiber separator and
IHEREOEMRERAR (M) plastic battery cases
HERELRRRRT LR
Beijing Chuangyuan Wanwei Power PRC RMB2,000,000 60 60 Sales of motive batteries
Technology Co., Ltd. ("BJ Chaowei") (Note i) & AR 2,000,000 and materials
G REI B R RARAT HEYNEHRIH
(Memdm)) ()

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited
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21. B2 7 (&)

Details of the Group's subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are as follows. (continued)

Issued and fully

AEE KB R BN R AR AR
W e ()

Equity interest

Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December Principal activity
AL/ BRIRME  AARRT=A=t-H
GIES L RE/EMEx R A ER TEEH
2016 2015
¥-~F ZF-nf
% %
Chongging Chuangyuan (Note i) PRC RMB50,000,000 100 90  Manufacture of motive batteries
BEAIT(MED) i AR 50,000,000 HEH NS
Zhejiang Anan New Power Technology PRC RMBS5,000,000 100 - Sales of motive batteries and
Co., Ltd. (Note i) (Note i i AR5,000,00070 materials
MIZZH R AR AR (WD) (i) HERNEHRIE
Znhejiang Weihua Intelligent Device Co., Ltd. PRC RMBS5,000,000 66.67 - Notyet commence husiness
(Note ) (Note i i ARH#5,0000007 RAREE
MIREE R EBRAR (k) (i)

Zhejiang Senyue Cultural Transmission PRC RMBS5,000,000 100 - Sales of motive batteries and
Co,, Ltd. (Note i) (Note il i AR 5,000,0007T new energy automobiles
IR BRERAR () (M) HEBNTRRINERAE

Changxing Yiwei New Power Co., Ltd. PRC RMB2,000,000 100 - After-sales services of
(Note ) (Note i) M AR 2,000,000 new energy automobiles
RABFHERARAR (M) (i) MRS SRS
Shandong Yueda Plastic Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000 100 - Manufacture of plastic battery
(Note i) (Note: i) i AR #10,000,000 75 cases
R EREERE AR (WaEi) (Fiakii) HEEHER
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21. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

21.

Details of the Group's subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are as follows. (continued)

Issued and fully

B8 2 B (&)

REE B A RN RE RERENE T

T - ()

Equity interest

Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December Principal activity
RilAYe ERTRAR AAARTZA=t-H
INEER R RE/EmEx FEfL AR FTEEE
2016 2015
“E-NE C—T-1%
% %
Hebei Yueda Plastic Co., Ltd. (Note i) (Note i) PRC RMB2,000,000 90 - Manufacture of plastic battery
W EER AR (k) (H3Ei) i AR2,000,00070 cases
Znhejiang Heniu Power Co., Ltd. (Note ) (Note i)~ PRC RMB10,000,000 100 - Sales of motive batteries and
AL e A B A R (Fitati) (Rakin) t AR#10,000,000 7 materials
HEBHE MR
Zhejiang Golden Chaowei Power Co., Ltd. PRC RMB3,000,000 80 - Sales of motive batteries and
("Golden Chaowei PRC") (Note 1) (Note i) i AKH30000007 materials
MIsREERARAR ((PERH]) HEDH TR
(Bitsxi) (o E i)
Henan Chaowei Zhengxiao Power Sale PRC RMB10,000,000 100 - Sales of motive batteries and
Co., Ltd. (Note i) (Note fi i AK10,000,0007T materials
MERRENEREEER AR () HEB TR
(i)
Changxing Jujiu Plastic Co., Ltd. (Note ) PRC RMB10,000,000 70 - Sales of motive batteries and
(Note i i AR 10,000,000 materials
REEAEEAR AR (i) (HzEi) HEHNEHRIH
Notes: Bist -

0]

(i

(i)

160 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e

The English names of these companies are for reference only and have
not been registered.

Newly established during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Other than the convertible bonds issued by the Company and the
corporate bonds issued by Chaowei Power, none of the subsidiaries had
issued any debt securities at the end of the year.
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21. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Composition of the Group

Principal activity

v’ /\"\Izlxﬁ%&#&

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BEZZT—R"F+_A=1T—HILFE

21. B2 7 (&)

Place of incorporation

and operation

REENAS

Number of wholly-

owned subsidiaries

FEEK FE B 3L R 0 th B EENBARINEER
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-—hE
Investment holding BVI 2 2
KEZERR REEBARES
Investment holding Hong Kong 1 1
REER o
Research and development Hong Kong 1 1
s BB
Manufacturing of motive batteries PRC 13 11
SUEB N EM 215
Sales of motive batteries and materials PRC 8 4
HEB N E M R A
Property investment Germany 1 1
MEKE =E
Property development PRC 1 1
ek =
After-sales services PRC 1 -
EI&ARTS Fh
Network technology and E-business technologies PRC 1 1
LRI R BT R HiT o Y
29 22
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21. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21. B AT (&)
Ccomposition of the Group (continued) AEBRNAES ()
Place of incorporation Number of non-wholly-
Principal activity and operation owned subsidiaries
FEEKR 1B 3L R % 0 it B F2EMBARNEE
2016 2015
—E—-XREF —EF—hHF
Research and development BVI 1 1
3% EBERRES
Manufacturing and sales of motive batteries PRC 6 6
BERHESH NE) [
Sales of motive batteries and materials PRC 1 -
HEB N B RAME [
Manufacturing of electrode plate dividing paper ~ PRC 2 1
B13E B RIR R IR A H
Manufacturing of plastic battery cases PRC 3 2
BUETMBR H
13 10
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that BEEARFEREZNIEZENBLT
have material non-controlling interests A
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TR ASEEEEAERERDIES
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling =N
interests:
Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation interests and voting Profit allocated to
and principal rights held by non- non-controlling Accumulated non-
place of controlling interests interests for the year controlling interests
Name of subsidiary business at 31 December ended 31 December at 31 December

R+-=ZB=+—H¥E BE+-A=1t—-HL
SRR RESFTSEERER FEIREEER RTt=-A=+—-H#H
HEAREE TEEEE Eb I % 5 ERE L 51 R KA R FEERES
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-NE —T-HF ZBE-XE —ZT-HF ZB-RE —T-HF
RMB'000 RVB'O00  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARETT AR¥TE ARETT AR¥TR ARETRT

Henan Chaowei PRC 40% 40% 83,236 88,768 517,966 446,730
A E R H
Anhui Chaowei PRC 25% 25% 14,774 13,39 94,187 79,413
TR R
Jiangsu Yongda PRC 40% 40% 35,329 39,431 129,225 93,89
TERoKE R
Individually immaterial EAEERERD

subsidiaries with ERIZEER

non-controlling interests HEBAR (18,077) 14,742 | 107,079 110,853
Total st 115,262 156,337 848,457 730,892
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21. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

21.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests

(continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

nancial St
YN

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BEZZT—R"F+_A=1T—HILFE

By X 8 (AR)
BEE/FERERNFZENBLOR
HYF1E ()

AEERBEAFERESOZHBATN
PRSI ERETIT T I BERS B 75 B
REREBE AR A B R H 2R

Henan Chaowei SRR
2016 2015
—RE —hE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Current assets MEVEE 1,210,088 1,018,487
Non-current assets EMENEE 664,437 777,876
Current liabilities mENAaE 339,686 404,187
Non-current liabilities EmEaE 239,923 275,351
Equity attributable to owners of the RAREE AELER
Company 776,950 670,095
Non-controlling interests JEIERR i = 517,966 446,730
2016 2015
—E—RE — A
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFIT
Revenue PN 2,479,553 2,537,762
Expenses M 2,271,463 2,315,842
Profit for the year FRFHE 208,090 221,920
Profit attributable to owners of the Company  ANA &% A AFE(S 124,854 133,152
Profit attributable to the non-controlling IR EREE AR
interests 83,236 88,768
Profit for the year FANFE 208,090 221,920
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT IEE R i = AR B 12,000 =
Net cash inflows from operating activities LEEENIR SR AFRE 100,885 133,792
Net cash outflows from investing activities KEEEIR SN HFE (174,446) (275,556)
Net cash (outflows) inflows from financing MEFTEFES CRd) RAFE
activities (22,432) 194,928
Net cash (outflows) inflows Re R mAFE (95,993) 53,164
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21.

164

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

21. B2 7 (&)

Anhui Chaowei ZEBR
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—RHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Current assets MEVEE 291,302 254,239
Non-current assets EREEE 224,023 165,580
Current liabilities mENA & 114,361 90,369
Non-current liabilities EmEBIE 24,219 11,798
Equity attributable to owners of the KARHE AEGER
Company 282,558 238,239
Non-controlling interests SRR S 94,187 79,413
2016 2015
—E—XEF —ET—hHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Revenue g A 911,587 965,061
Expenses 5 852,491 911,477
Profit for the year FAFH 59,096 53,584
Profit attributable to owners of the Company A2 S A AR5 FI5E 44,322 40,188
Profit attributable to the non-controlling FEIE Rt R R A FE
interests 14,774 13,396
Profit for the year FAFHE 59,096 53,584
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 215 JEHEARE S O AL 2 = =
Net cash inflows from operating activites ~— L& EEIR L mAFE 34,194 60,231
Net cash outflows from investing activities & EENIR & HF 58 (55,898) (49,3517)
Net cash (outflows) inflows from financing BB ESNIRE Gt ) RAFEEE
activities (7) 141
Net cash (outflows) inflows B (Rl mAFE (21,711) 11,021
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21. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 21. B2 T (&)
Jiangsu Yongda SLERKE
2016 2015
—EB-RE — R
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Current assets MEAE 321,255 305,208
Non-current assets ERBEE 196,795 177,063
Current liabilities nBBE 187,915 240,202
Non-current liabilities FRBALE 7,074 7,330
Equity attributable to owners of the RARIHEE ANEIEER
Company 193,836 140,843
Non-controlling interests IR 129,225 93,896
2016 2015
— R =
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETF T ARETIT
Revenue A 1,537,710 1,535,348
Expenses i 1,449,387 1,436,770
Profit for the year FRHHE 88,323 98,578
Profit attributable to owners of the Company N2 =B A FE(E K H 52,994 59,147
Profit attributable to the non-controlling FEVEAR M 2 FE A FI
interests 35,329 39,431
Profit for the year F R 88,323 98,578
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 215 JEHEARRE 25 O AL 2 = =
Net cash inflows from operating activities ~— &&/EEIR TR AFEE 47,755 85,290
Net cash outflows from investing activities 1% &E IR & 7 H F 58 (30,536) (58,749)
Net cash outflows from financing activities @& & EhEE £ 7 H 58 (28,904) (15,925)
Net cash (outflows) inflows BRe (R mAFE (11,685) 10,616
BRABANZERBRAAF 201658/ 165
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. A& RATHES
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—h5F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT

Cost of unlisted investments FELETIRERIRKAR 50,453 42,053

Share of post-acquisition losses WhE& BB (14,438) (7,753)

Share of net assets EHEEFE 36,015 34,300

Loan to an associate BERT—MBE A 12,987 14,191

49,002 48,491
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had interests inthe #Hz—Z=—XxE&+-A=+—H0 A=ERUT
following associates: B N B MRS
Country of Proportion of nominal value
Date of incorporation Fully paid-up/ of registered capital and
incorporation/ and registered voting power held by Principal
Name of entity establishment operation capital the Group as at 31 December  activity
BZ2+-A=t-H4A%KH
MR MR LK i mERNEER
ERER B3 B Ef EEMEER B/ EMmER Fiie iR R LB TEER
2016 2015
—EB-RE “E-nf
% %

Akkumulatorenfabrik 1945 Germany EUR2,302,000 46 46 Manufacture of
MOLL GmbH & Co.KG  —hME% ZE 2,302,000 BT start-and-stop
(“MOLL") batteries

BUERUZE

Zhejiang Yige Power 25 July 2016 China RMB10,000,000 49 N/A Manufacture of
Co,, Lid. —ERF H AR#10,000,000 7T TER  lithium-ion
(“Zhejiang Yige™) +A-+HH battery pack

IS RERAR SRR T E A
(M1 =Em])

Zhejiang Yuanli Power 31 August 2016 China RMB50,000,000 45 N/A Manufacture of
Technology Co., Ltid.  —ZT—R%F F AE#50,000,0007% TEA  newenergy
(“Zhejiang Yuanli”) NA=+—H storage system

LR NREREHR SUERTR IR
BRARA (IR AI) S
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22.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

On 25 July 2016, Chaowei Power established Zhejiang Yige with
an independent third party of the Group. The principal activity
of Zhejiang Yige is engaged in manufacturing of Lithium-ion
battery pack. Upon establishment, Zhejiang Yige is owned as to
49% by Chaowei Power and 51% by the other investor. At least
half of the shareholding interest in Zhejiang Yige are required
for decision on directing the relevant activities of Zhejiang Yige
and hence in the opinion of the Directors, the Group's interest
in Zhejiang Yige is accounted for as an associate. During the
current year, the Group made capital contribution of
RMB4,900,000 to Zhejiang Yige.

On 31 August 2016, Chaowei Power established Zhejiang
Yuanli with Mr. Zhou Mingming, who is the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company, and other two independent
third parties of the Group. The principal activity of Zhejiang
Yuanli is engaged in the manufacturing of new energy storage
system. Upon establishment, Zhejiang Yuanli is owned as to
45% by Chaowei Power, 48% by Mr. Zhou Mingming, 5% and
2% by the other two independent investors respectively. At
least half of the shareholding interest in Zhejiang Yuanli are
required for decision on directing the relevant activities of
Zhejiang Yuanli and hence in the opinion of the Directors, the
Group's interest in Zhejiang Yuanli is accounted for as an
associate. During the current year, the Group made capital
contribution of RMB3,500,000 to Zhejiang Yuanli.

The associates of the Group are accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

nancial S nts
e M EHRRNEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_E—RFt+-_A=1+—"HIEFE

22. REHENFVES (F)

RZE—R"FLtAZTHHE  BEBRER
SEBUE=FKIIANIEM - TS
IE%%%%L%%%%M@ AL E MK
VRBERERES - 2REESERA
49% K2 51% ° AL =R E T T7 $T R BIR K
AR D 50% BB E ALLE - Fit - &
$wu#’! ZKE.Fﬁ'?—r;ﬁ/IE_ﬂTEEﬁAEEE
ERF - NFEE - AEBEFEMNISMEEA
R # 4,900,000 7T °

75/\\\:? NENA=+—H  BEERERK

NEIEFEFRTHRARFERRLERRNERE
tRBIBIE =TT RIIATIR A - HTRA
T EEBEREEFERITFRRS - LR
NI REBELEIR - FEBRER A R E bR
FRIIREE D RFHA%  48% - 5% K
2% - IR NEBHSHOERRERLEE
DE0% A ER TR AR E - Atk - EER
R AKREFRFNIR IS ARAKE A
Al AEE - AEEENIRDEIEARK
3,500,000 7T °

N6 B g
i% o

SN A AR SRR AR B TS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE_Z—RE+A=1T—RHILLFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22. REEENTRIRES (8)
An unsecured loan was granted by the Group to MOLL in an 7K £= B [5) MOLL 12 £ /& 211,520,000 BX 7t (75
amount of EUR1,520,000 (equivalent to approximately —E—XFtT-A=1T—HHEENRHARE
RMB12,987,000 as at 31 December 2016) at an interest rate of 12,987,000 ) M EE A E R FH X A
4.9% per annum with the maturity date at the end of 2018. 49%  BRZZE—N\FFEEH - FR - K
During the year, the Group received settlement of loan £ E U ELMOLL B) B Z 45 & 30 480,000 Bl T °

amounting to EUR480,000 from MOLL.

The summarised financial information in respect of the BRSNS ER ST -
associates is set out below. The summarised financial SRS B RS B R R R B IR B PR B 75 sl 5 2
information below represents amounts shown in the B4R BB 2N ) T IS SRR AT AU RS
associates’ financial statements prepared in accordance with
IFRSS.
MOLL MOLL
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(REEERZ) (REEEZ)
Current assets RENEE 107,394 94,118
Non-current assets EMBNVEE 65,938 51,628
Current liabilities mEAE 124,783 28,385
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - 61,635
2016 2015
—E—XRE —ZE-—RHE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR®ET T
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
Revenue WA 462,174 355,181
Loss for the year FREIE (7,175) (8,760)
Total comprehensive expense for the year &2 H R X 4258 (7,175) (8,760)

168 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2016



22.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

/\\/\m/ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BEZZT—R"F+_A=1T—HILFE

. REFE QT HER (&)

MOLL (continued) MOLL (#&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information B RE B RS A R B4R A B IS SRR PR AR
to the carrying amount of the interest in MOLL recognised in MOLL A4 2 /9 BR E B £/ R
these consolidated financial statements:
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hHF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® TR AREETIT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
Net assets of MOLL MOLL #) & & FE 48,549 55,726
Proportion of the Group’s ownership R EE B {5 MOLL A ¥ A # £t 51
interest in MOLL 46% 46%
Goodwill P 8,666 8,666
Carrying amount of the Group’s AREBMRMOLL M= A BREE
interest in MOLL 30,999 34,300
Zhejiang Yige WL =M
At
31 December
2016
R-ZE—RE
+=—HA=+—H
RMB’'000
ARET T
(unaudited)
(REER)
Current assets mBEE 47,333
Non-current assets IERBEE 9,602
Current liabilities mEaE 58,310
Non-current liabilities IERBEE =

BRBAZERERAF o
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

170 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e

22. REFE QTR (F)

Zhejiang Yige (continued) AI=M (&)
2016
—E—RF
RMB'000
ARET R
(unaudited)
(REEEZ)
Revenue WA 2,669
Loss for the period from the date of establishment BV BEHZ -—ZFT—XF+_A=+—H
to 31 December 2016 HNEsE (6,274)
Total comprehensive expense for the period from BERBRZE_FT—R"F+_A=+—H
the date of establishment to 31 December 2016 HANEERAX B (6,274)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information

R BE A BB R R AR & B RS R P RE R AT

to the carrying amount of the interest in zZhejiang Yige SHEEZAREELAR :
recognised in these consolidated financial statements:
2016
—EB-NF
RMB'000
ARBT R
(unaudited)
(REEEXR)
Net liabilities of the Zhejiang Yige ISR EEFAE (1,374)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in NG B (5T T = A B B A R L 15
Zhejiang Yige 49%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AEENINIEMMNERNERRE
Zhejiang Yige (673)
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22. REFE DRI RER (&)
Zhejiang Yuanli IR A
At
31 December
2016
R-ZE—RE
+=—B=+—H
RMB’'000
ARE TR
(unaudited)
(REBTER)
Current assets BB E 3,589
Non-current assets EMENE E 20
Current liabilities mEaE 796
Non-current liabilities IERBEE =
2016
—E—RE
RMB’000
ARETT
(unaudited)
(REER)
Revenue WA -
Loss for the period from the date of establisnment B BHZ T — A F+-_A=+—
to 31 December 2016 B ERNEE (687)
Total comprehensive expense for the period fromthe B B ZE —Z—XRF+=-A=1+—
date of establishment to 31 December 2016 BEAZMmAS B85 (687)
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22. ABE QTR (B)
Zhejiang Yuanli (continued) LR ()
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information R R BA RS B R B AR A B TS SRR T RE R D
to the carrying amount of the interest in Zhejiang Yuanli AL R 1 ) e 2 ) BR E B 9 B -

recognised in these consolidated financial statements:

2016
—EB—RF
RMB’000
AR® T
(unaudited)
(REER)
Net assets of the Zhejiang Yuanli IR NN EEFE 2,813
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in NEBLAT IR 8% A R 5]
Zhejiang Yuanli 45%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in REBNIIR DR REE
Zhejiang Yuanli 1,266
23. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 23. REELENER
Details of the Group’s investments in joint ventures are as REEREGEEEMNREFBOT
follows:
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(REEZ) (REEEZ)
Cost of unlisted investments FEETIRE KA 129,500 57,000
Share of post-acquisition profit L B 1 FE A A1) 919 646
130,419 57,646
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23.

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had interest in the

nancia

= 2 B 75 4R 2= I

it

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BEZZT—R"F+_A=1T—HILFE

. REERENES (B)

RIE—RF+ZA=1+—H AEERNA

following joint ventures: e EREE R
Country of Proportion of nominal value
establishment Fully paid-up/ of registered capital and
Date of and registered voting power held by Principal
Name of entity establishment  operation the Group as at 31 December  activity
Rt=A=+-HAAKHE
FisaMEANEER
EREHR FX 3 A RYREEREER MR/ EmER FrisREERLL Al TEER
2016 2015
E-RE —Z-1f
% %

Changxing Kewei Venture ~ 1January 2015 China RMB100,000,000 57 57 Venture capital
Capital InvestmentLLP. =Z—H1% H AR 100,000,0007C investment
(“Changxing Kewei") —A—H HIEERRE

RERBAFREAY
ERENR])

Zhejiang Pulangte 21March 2016 China RMB150,000,000 43.33 N/A Technical service
Electric Vehicle Co,, Ltd. —F—7& H AR 150,000,000 7 @R ofnewenergy
(“Zhejiang Pulangte”) ZA=t+-8 vehicles

HIERREDTEAR M RNE R

AT LK) %

On 15 January 2015, Chaowei Power entered into a joint
venture agreement (the “JV Agreement”) with other three
independent third parties of the Group for the establishment of
Changxing Kewei. The principal activity of Changxing Kewei is
investment in high growth potential enterprises. Upon
establishment, Changxing Kewei is owned as to 57% by
Chaowei Power, 30%, 12% and 1% by the other three
independent investors respectively. The board of directors of
Changxing Kewei comprise 5 directors, 3 of which are
appointed by Chaowei Power. Under the JV Agreement, at
least two-third of the board of directors are required for
decision on directing the relevant activities of Changxing Kewei
and hence in the opinion of the Directors, the Group's interest
in Changxing Kewei is accounted for as a joint venture.

RZE—AF—A+HH  BEEREHEA
_%$$@@**_ﬁ%&4§ﬂﬂmJi
D RERENEEE
@ﬁ&ﬁ%@%ﬁﬂﬁ%oﬁz&~ﬁmﬂ
BB ERES 57% & B H M =2B &
12% K2 1% » & BRI
EESREAILES  HYF-—ZHBEER
BEL=DZ_MES

Tﬁ‘!uiﬂ%(r = %%n

BE D RI%EA 30%

RIE - AEBERTE

REIRFEZ

ERERREBRENBEINEE  8E
ERB  AEERNREMEOHREARSA

SEMAERE -

BEENIZERABRAF
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23.

174 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

On 21 March 2016, Chaowei Power entered into a joint venture
agreement (the “2016 JV Agreement”) with Mr. Zhou Mingming,
who is the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company, for the establishment of zZhejiang Pulangte. The
principal activity of Zhejiang Pulangte is provision of technical
service of new energy vehicles. Upon establishment, Zhejiang
Pulangte is owned as to 48.33% by Chaowei Power and 51.67%
by Mr. Zhou Mingming. Under the 2016 JV Agreement, at least
three-fifth of the shareholding interest in Zhejiang Pulangte are
required for decision on directing the relevant activities of
Zhejiang Pulangte and hence in the opinion of the Directors,
the Group'’s interest in Zhejiang Pulangte is accounted for as a
joint venture.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method
in these consolidated financial statements.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group'’s
joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the joint
venture's financial statements prepared in accordance with
IFRSS.

23.

REELXENER (F)
R-ZB-RE=ZA-+—HB BEERER
DA EFEFRITBARE R AR ST AL SLANT
BRI AEHE( SR FEE1H
@) T ERRNEEES RIRHER
FTERMTARTS © BXIZIR » T & BA%E R
ER & AP B ELED BB F4833% %
51.67% - —T—RNERLZHHRENT LN
REBTHWBAARALEL AN Z =K
RO AARLE  HEERR  ARERA
TEABNESARSASENGERE -

BEDEARRET ANFHAMBREK

BERAKEG 2D XM ER S0
T o TEIRBEES 81 15 B BHR R R IR BIRR 81 75

SEAREN G B XM ERRATHE
%’E o

Changxing Kewei RERE
At At
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
R-ZF—RFE RZZE—1F
+=A=+—H +-A=+—8H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETIT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
Current assets mBEE 4,439 74,534
Non-current assets IERBNEE 97,080 26,600
Current liabilities mBAE - -
Non-current liabilities IERBEE = =

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the
following:

PREENBESEEEATIAR :

Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEYD

4,439

42,534
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INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
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23. REELENER (F)

Changxing Kewei (continued) RER R (&)
2016 2015
—EB—XRE —T—HhHEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(RESEZ) (REEER)
Revenue WA - -
Profit for the year FRFHE 384 1,134
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FRZ2FE WA 4258 384 1,134
Dividends received from Changxing FRUE R ERE B
Kewei during the year = -
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information LB ER 2 AR S M TS R PR
to the carrying amount of the interest in Changxing Kewei RERIE R REEYR
recognised in these consolidated financial statements:
At At
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—NE —E—RF
+=A=+—-H +t=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETTT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(REEX) (REEEZ)
Net assets of Changxing Kewei RER B EEFE 101,519 101,134
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBE R BRI A LB
interest in Changxing Kewei 57% 57%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest REE N RER BB A R E(E
in Changxing Kewei 57,866 57,646
BEBNZERERRA e 2016FHR 175
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23. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 23. REELENER (F)
Zhejiang Pulangte AL E B
At
31 December
2016
R-ZZB—XRE
+=—A=+-—H
RMB’000
AR®Tx
(unaudited)
(REEERZ)
Current assets mENEE 8,024
Non-current assets EMENE EE 106,579
Current liabilities mENEE 30,994
Non-current liabilities JEmEIaE -
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the L EERAEBESERENTIEAE ¢
following:
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBReEEY 3,594
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and nEPEMAE(TeERENESERK
other payables and provisions) H b S sRIBANEAE) 2,000
2016
—E-XKE
RMB’000
AR® TR
(unaudited)
(REEER)
Revenue A -
Profit for the period from the date of establishment BV HZ-FT— X XF+-_A=+—H
to 31 December 2016 LEHRREFIE 110
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEEREE =
Total comprehensive income for the period fromthe BV BE—ZE—X"E+=-A=+—H
date of establishment to 31 December 2016 IS PN 110
Dividends received from Zhejiang Pulangte during  “F RUKEUHTIL & BAEFAZ B
the year -
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23. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
Zhejiang Pulangte (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in Zhejiang Pulangte
recognised in these consolidated financial statements:

24.

inancial State

¥

nts
e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_T—XFt+-_A=+—HILFE

23. REERENER (H)

WL

% ()

LR B E R B AR A B TS R P AR Y
T & BARr 4 ot 1O i T (BB

2016

—E—REF

RMB’000

AR® TR

(unaudited)

(REERZ)

Net assets of Zhejiang Pulangte AT ERARFREEFE 83,610

Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in RNEBENTT L BA R B RELL B

Zhejiang Pulangte 48.33%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in REEMHT L E SRR ARE(E

Zhejiang Pulangte 40,409

LOAN RECEIVABLES

(a)

Entrusted loan granted to Chisen Electric
Jiangsu Co., Ltd. (“Chisen Electric”)

Chaowei Power, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an entrusted loan agreement with
CITIC Trust Co., Ltd. (“CITIC Trust”), a fiduciary company
incorporated in the PRC, on 17 December 2012 (the
“Chisen Entrusted Loan Agreement”), pursuant to which,
Chaowei Power, through CITIC Trust, would provide the
entrusted loan of RMB200,000,000 (the “Chisen Entrusted
Loan”) to Chisen Electric, a company established in the
PRC with limited liability which was held as to 98% by
Zhejiang Chisen Electric Co., Ltd (“Zhejiang Chisen”) and
2% by Mr. Xu Kecheng as at the date of the Chisen
Entrusted Loan Agreement, for a term of three years.

The Chisen Entrusted Loan is charged at a fixed rate of
interest of 8% per annum.

Chisen Electric shall repay not less than 25%, 50% and
75% of the outstanding principal under the Chisen
Entrusted Loan on or before the expiry of the 27th, 30th
and 33rd months from the date of the Chisen Entrusted
Loan, with balance repayable in full upon expiry of the
Chisen Entrusted Loan.

24. ERER

(@)

BEREBNZERERAF o

RTERERIHARLA(ER
ER)NERTER

R-_ZE——F+_-_A++H8 AQ7
—XRXE2EWNBARBHER  #H—XR
R B M L EE R RIFEERT
EREBEERAR(THRERFFED LA
ZaEF R EBRETERBE])
BHERGERTEETRN—BRF
BN HWBERAFEREA(RERZ
AEXBEAHANIERESR
BRAG(INIER]) RIFRALE
DBl 8% N2%) IR H AR
200,000,000 Tt ZFEER ([ BB ZT
B®]) » BHI=F -

BE

o

oIk

T8 IR EE F B 8% H) F K Uy

i

ERERENEBRZEENA R
2718 A - 253018 A &% 3318 A f&im
Z BHZAERE T D R25%  50% K
75% M BB EFERE N HAEEAR
TR BRBERERZTEREWE

2016 F®/ 177



[\\/ AY

L e s

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE_Z—RE+A=1T—RHILLFE

4= —=

24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

178

(a)

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e

Entrusted loan granted to Chisen Electric
(continued)

In 2015, Chaowei Power, Chisen Electric and CITIC Trust
entered into a supplementary entrusted loan agreement
to (1) reduce the principal amount of the Chisen
Entrusted Loan from RMB200,000,000 to
RMB160,000,000; and (2) extend the term of Chisen
Entrusted Loan till 17 December 2017 with the first
repayment instalment due in March 2017. Except for the
details set out in the supplementary entrusted loan
agreement above, all other terms and conditions of the
Chisen Entrusted Loan remain unchanged.

Prior to the end of 2016, an amount of RMB32,000,000
was repaid by Chisen Electric. As at 31 December 2016,
the outstanding amount of Chisen Entrusted Loan was
RMB128,000,000 (31 December 2015: RMB160 million)
pursuant to the Chisen Entrusted Loan Agreement and
the supplementary entrusted loan agreement.

Guarantee and security of the Chisen Entrusted
Loan

Chisen Electric and Zhejiang Chisen would assume joint
and several obligations regarding the repayment of the
principal and interest of the Chisen Entrusted Loan, in
addition to which, the full repayment of the principal and
the interest of the Chisen Entrusted Loan would be
secured by:

()  a pledge of 98% equity interest in the Chisen
Electric by Zhejiang Chisen for a term commencing
from the date of approval of such pledge by the
competent governmental authority up to expiry of
the limitation period for action by CITIC Trust under
(i) the loan agreement entered into between CITIC
Trust and Chisen Electric in relation to the Chisen
Entrusted Loan dated 17 December 2012 (“Loan
Agreement”) and (i) the joint payment agreement
dated 17 December 2012 entered into between
Chisen Electric, Zhejiang Chisen and CITIC Trust in
relation to the repayment of the Chisen Entrusted
Loan (the “Joint Payment Agreement”);

Annual Report 2016
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24. BWER (&)

(a)

RTERERNETLTER(H)

R-ZF—HF BHER BHER
R EERILMBARTE R B -
MWHERZAEERASHEAARKE
200,000,000 7T & 2 A £ #& 160,000,000
T RQEBERZEERBREE
F—tHF+-_A+tHL BEER
KR _T—tF=HBH - Lt
ARFEERBHEAAFBHRIN S8
REERIBHEE B A IRR I ARIHR

B o

R-B—ARFFER - EREREE
EAR32,000,0007T c BEZZT—7X
F+-A=1t—HB BREERETE
RELARAETEER DH SRE
TERREERXRERAREK
128,000000( ZFE —HF + = A
=+—8 : AK%160,000,0007T) °
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24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

Entrusted loan granted to Chisen Electric
(continued)

Guarantee and security of the Chisen Entrusted
Loan (continued)

(a)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

a pledge of 100% equity interest in Zhejiang Chisen
by Fast More Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liabilities, which was wholly-
owned by Chisen Electric Corporation, a Nevada
corporation in the United States, which was
beneficially owned as to 65.8% by Mr. Xu Kecheng
as at the date of the Chisen Entrusted Loan
Agreement, for the period up to expiry of the
limitation period for action by CITIC Trust under the
Loan Agreement and the Joint Payment Agreement;

floating charges over the current and future
inventory of each of the Chisen Electric and
Zhejiang Chisen for the period up to expiry of the
limitation period for action by CITIC Trust under the
Loan Agreement and the Joint Payment Agreement;

chattel charges over all the machinery and
equipment of each of the Chisen Electric and
Zhejiang Chisen for the period up to expiry of the
limitation period for action by CITIC Trust under the
Loan Agreement and the Joint Payment Agreement;
and

personal guarantee by Mr. Xu Kecheng, the
ultimate beneficial owner of the Chisen Electric, for
a term of two years from the expiry of the Loan
Agreement and the Joint Payment Agreement.

¥

ents

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_T—XFt+-_A=+—HILFE

24. BRER &)
(@) RTEBRERNETER(E)

ERZTERNRERER (H)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

BEREBNZERERAF o

EIMERAR(—MREEEM
MYKERAR  AEXERE
FRAR(—MEEBAREEZEMN
NAE)2EHE - -REBRERAE
A E ERTERBERAT
R TE K SC £ B S 65.8% 18
=) B E T S 2% 100% A% & B
B KR FHEEREERD
ZRARMRBEPEELAIR
BATE RS PR B mEs B LE

ERERNMANTI SRS BB A
RARREFEHFEEM - HIRF
HIE ERBE KR M AR R
W 55 5t Al BRI T BN A I RR
EmE AL

ERERMNIERSBHMA
MR B ERR - EKRFH
HERBE S MR 3R
&P EERERRITSMNERE
mEFALE R

BREKEE(ERERNZRE
SHAN) iR EAZR
B &R KRR i EE W
ZBERHME
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24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 24. BWER (&)
(@) Entrusted loan granted to Chisen Electric () RTFERERNZTER(E)
(continued)

Other commitments of Chisen Electric ERERNEMEE

Chisen Electric has also agreed that, during the term of ERBRNERE  REBREZTLER
the Chisen Entrusted Loan Agreement: R A ¢

() it shall not increase its registered capital or total iy MRIFEHRERAZEERARNRFE

investment in any form unless agreed by Chaowei
Power in writing, except for investment into Chisen
Electric made by Chaowei Power;

BRIEAFAMEREZ AL INEE
MEARBIRERE  EEBHER
AERERMFEHRERRIN

(i) it shall accept investment proposals from Chaowei (il HEBRMBHRERRONEES
Power; £

(i) Chaowei Power shall have the right to appoint one (i) BHEREEZE—RBESNA
director to the board of directors of Chisen Electric; ERERNESE &
and

(iv) it shall amend its articles of association to confirm (v) HZEEFTHABZEZMA] - DATE
the director appointment by Chaowei Power. RERERGEFNELE -

it S REAFEORMARER
REBAERGET - BATRY S
BRERLFEEAGYE - Bt - B5L
BRLFSEEROBHEAT -

The aforesaid other commitments undertaken by Chisen
Electric only give Chaowei Power protective rights rather
than significant influence over Chisen Electric. As such,
Chaowei Power does not account for Chisen Electric as
an associate.
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24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) Entrusted loan granted to Changxing

Yongcheng Power Co., Ltd. (“Changxing
Yongcheng")

On 26 November 2014, Chaowei Power entered into an
entrusted loan agreement with CITIC Trust, pursuant to
which, Chaowei Power, through CITIC Trust, provided
entrusted loan of RMB5,000,000 (the "Yongcheng
Entrusted Loan”) to Changxing Yongcheng, an
independent third-party company, with a maturity date
on 29 November 2015, which is charged at a fixed
interest rate of 8% per annum.

Guarantee and security of the Yongcheng
Entrusted Loan

The full repayment of the principal and the interest of the
Yongcheng Entrusted Loan is secured by:

(i)  a pledge of 95% equity interest in the Changxing
Yongcheng; and

(i) personal guarantee by Mr. Zou Yongshun, the
ultimate beneficial owner of the Changxing
Yongcheng.

The Yongcheng Entrusted Loan agreement was renewed
in November 2015 and the maturity date of Yongcheng
Entrusted Loan was extended to 29 November 2016.
Except for the extension of the maturity date, other terms
and condition of Yongcheng Entrusted Loan remain
unchanged.

On 29 November 2016, Chaowei Power, Changxing
Yongcheng and CITIC Trust entered into a supplementary
entrusted loan agreement to (1) reduce the principal
amount of the Yongcheng Entrusted Loan from
RMB5,000,000 to RMB3,600,000; and (2) extend the term
of Yongcheng Entrusted Loan till 29 November 2017.
Except for the details set out in the supplementary
entrusted loan agreement above, all other terms and
conditions of the Yongcheng Entrusted Loan remain
unchanged.

Prior to the end of 2016, an amount of RMB1,400,000 was
repaid by Changxing Yongcheng. As at 31 December
2016, the outstanding amount of Yongcheng Entrusted
Loan was RMB3,600,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB5,000,000) pursuant to the Yongcheng Entrusted
Loan Agreement and the supplementary entrusted loan

agreement.

-

~Inancial Statements

e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 24
(c) Entrusted loan granted to Huangshan

Zhenlong Power Co., Ltd. (“Huangshan
Zhenlong")
On 26 November 2014, Chaowei Power entered into an
entrusted loan agreement with CITIC Trust, pursuant to
which, Chaowei Power, through CITIC Trust, will provide
the entrusted loan of RMB50,000,000 (the “Huangshan
Zhenlong Entrusted Loan”) to Huangshan Zhenlong for a
term of three years.

The Huangshan Zhenlong Entrusted Loan is charged at a
fixed rate of interest of 8% per annum.

As at 31 December 2016, Chaowei Power released an
amount of RMB2,500,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB2,500,000) to Huangshan Zhenlong.

Guarantee and security of the Huangshan
Zhenlong Entrusted Loan

Huangshan Zhenlong, Xuzhou Zhenlong Power Co., Ltd.
("Xuzhou zhenlong”) and Zhejiang zhenlong Power Co.,
Ltd. (“Zhejiang Zhenlong") would assume joint and several
obligations regarding the repayment of the principal and
the interest of the Huangshan Zhenlong Entrusted Loan,
in addition to which, the full repayment of the principal
and the interest of the Huangshan Zhenlong Entrusted
Loan is secured by:

()  floating charges over the current and future
inventories of Huangshan Zhenlong, Xuzhou
Zhenlong and Zhejiang Zhenlong; and

(i) chattel charges over all the machinery and

equipment of Huangshan Zhenlong, Xuzhou
Zhenlong and Zhejiang Zhenlong.
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24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)
(d) Entrusted loan granted to Xuzhou Zhenlong

On 26 November 2014, Chaowei Power entered into an
entrusted loan agreement with CITIC Trust, pursuant to
which, Chaowei Power, through CITIC Trust, will provide
the entrusted loan of RMB30,000,000 (the “Xuzhou
Zhenlong Entrusted Loan") to Xuzhou Zhenlong for a term
of three years.

The Xuzhou Zhenlong Entrusted Loan is charged at a
fixed rate of interest of 8% per annum.

As at 31 December 2016, Chaowei Power released an
amount of RMB2,500,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB2,500,000) to Xuzhou Zhenlong.

Guarantee and security of the Xuzhou Zhenlong
Entrusted Loan

Xuzhou Zhenlong and Zhejiang Zhenlong would assume
joint and several obligations regarding the repayment of
the principal and the interest of the Xuzhou Zhenlong
Entrusted Loan, in addition to which, the full repayment
of the principal and the interest of the Xuzhou Zhenlong
Entrusted Loan is secured by:

(i)  floating charges over the current and future
inventories of Xuzhou Zhenlong and Zhejiang
Zhenlong; and

(i) chattel charges over all the machinery and
equipment of Xuzhou Zhenlong and Zhejiang
Zhenlong.
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24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

(e) Entrusted loan granted to Jiangxi Changxin

Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangxi Changxin”)

On 29 June 2015, Chaowei Power entered into an
entrusted loan agreement with CITIC Trust, pursuant to
which, Chaowei Power, through CITIC Trust, will provide
the entrusted loan of RMB20,000,000 (the “Changxin
Entrusted Loan”) to Jiangxi Changxin, an independent

third-party company, for a term of one year.

Changxin Entrusted Loan is charged at a fixed rate of

interest of 8% per annum.

The Changxin Entrusted Loan agreement was renewed in
July 2016 and the maturity date of Changxin Entrusted
Loan was extended to 29 June 2017. Except for the
extension of the maturity date, other terms and condition

of Changxin Entrusted Loan remain unchanged.

The Group has released additional entrusted loan of
RMB30,000,000 to Jiangxi Changxin for a term of one year
according to the entrusted loan agreement entered into

with Jiangxi Changxin on 14 January 2016.

The Changxin Entrusted Loan agreement was renewed in
January 2017 and the maturity date of Changxin
Entrusted Loan was extended to 28 November 2017.
Except for the extension of the maturity date, other terms
and condition of Changxin Entrusted Loan remain

unchanged.

As at 31 December 2016, Chaowei Power released an
amount of RMB50,000,000 (31 December 2015:

RMB20,000,000) to Jiangxi Changxin.
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24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)
(e) Entrusted loan granted to Jiangxi Changxin

()

Power Co., Ltd. (“Jiangxi Changxin”)
(continued)

Guarantee and security of the Changxin
Entrusted Loan

Changxin Entrusted Loan provides the following
guarantees:

()  floating charges over the current and future
inventories of Jiangxi Changxin;

(i) chattel charges over all the machinery and
equipment of Jiangxi Changxin; and

(i)  personal guarantee by Mr. Yuan Wenyong, the
ultimate beneficial owner of Jiangxi Changxin, and
his wife, Ms. He Maoyi.

Entrusted loan granted to Binhai Changxing
Plastic Co., Ltd. (“Binhai Changxing")

On 6 September 2016, Chaowei Power entered into an
entrusted loan agreement with Bank of China Binhai
Branch (“BOC"), pursuant to which, Chaowei Power,
through BOC, will provide the entrusted loan of
RMB5,000,000 (the “Binhai Entrusted Loan”) to Binhai
Changxing, an independent third-party company, for a
term of one year.

Binhai Entrusted Loan is charged at a fixed rate of
interest of 7% per annum.

Prior to the end of 2016, the Binhai Entrusted Loan has
been repaid in full.

Guarantee and security of the Binhai Entrusted
Loan
Binhai Entrusted Loan provides the following guarantees:

Binhai Changxing would assume obligations regarding
the repayment of the principal and the interest of the
Binhai Entrusted Loan. The full repayment of the principal
and the interest of the Binhai Entrusted Loan is secured
by chattel charges over all the machinery and equipment,
furnitures and motor vehicles of Binhai Changxing.
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N RECEIVABLES (continued)

Loan granted to Qinyang City Construction
Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (“City
Construction”, a company as to 49% owned
by State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of Qinyang City
(“SASAC of Qinyang City"))

On 20 September 2015, Henan Chaowei, a subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a loan agreement with City
Construction, pursuant to which, Henan Chaowei
provided a loan of RMB96,000,000 (the “City Construction
Loan”) to City Construction for a term of five years
repayable on a five-year annual instalment basis from
2016 to 2020. In 2015, an amount of RMB290,000 was
repaid by City Construction. The City Construction Loan
is charged at a floating rate of 4.3% per annum, a floating
rate based on the borrowing rate announced by the
People’s Bank of China.

During 2016, an amount of RMB25,000,000 was repaid by
City Construction. As at 31 December 2016, the
outstanding amount of City Construction Loan was
RMB70,710,000 (31 December 2015: RMB95,710,000).

Guarantee of the City Construction Loan

The City Construction Loan is guaranteed by Qinyang
Qinbei Construction Investment Co., Ltd., a company
wholly-owned by SASAC of Qinyang City.

Annual Report 2016
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24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)
(h) Loan granted to the government of

()

Guangchen Town, Ningyang County
(“Ningyang Government”)

In 2015, Chaowei Ciyao, a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a loan agreement with Ningyang
Government, pursuant to which, Chaowei Ciyao provided
a loan of RMB32,000,000 (the “Ningyang Loan") to
Ningyang Government for a term of five years. In 2015,
an amount of RMB5,000,000 was repaid by Ningyang
Government. The Ningyang Loan is charged at a floating
rate of 4.3% per annum, a floating rate based on the
borrowing rate announced by the People’s Bank of China.

During 2016, an amount of RMB23,500,000 was repaid by
Ningyang Government. As at 31 December 2016, the
outstanding amount of Ningyang Loan was RMB3,500,000
(31 December 2015: RMB27,000,000).

Guarantee of the Ningyang Loan

The Ningyang Loan is guaranteed by Ningyang County
Jincai Investment Co., Ltd. which is owned as to 40% by
the government of Ningyang County and 60% by another
State-owned entity.

Loan granted to MOLL

During the current year, the Group granted to MOLL an
unsecured loan in an amount of EUR1,767,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB12,911,000 as at 31 December
2016) at a fixed interest rate of 5% per annum with the
maturity date at 30 June 2017.
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24.

25.

188

LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 24.

(i) Loan granted to MOLL (continued)
Set out below are the summary of various entrusted

R ER (&)
(i) T MOLLHE R (&)

TXHIBZERFEER

loans:
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Chisen Entrusted Loan EREZFEENR 128,000 160,000
Yongcheng Entrusted Loan KB E R 3,600 5,000
Huangshan Zhenlong Entrusted Loan  ZHILUIRFEZR T E X 2,500 2,500
Xuzhou Zhenlong Entrusted Loan BINREZEER 2,500 2,500
Changxin Entrusted Loan EMZEEER 50,000 20,000
City Construction Loan WMERER 70,710 95,710
Ningyang Loan EBER 3,500 27,000
MOLL MOLL 12,911 -
273,721 312,710
Analysis for reporting purposes as: RHEENSNMA -
Current assets MENE 199,511 46,000
Non-current assets ERBEE 74,210 266,710
273,721 312,710
INVENTORIES 25. 78
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Raw materials R R 394,131 365,297
Work in progress TEB 1,780,793 963,034
Finished goods K 140,906 738,461
2,315,830 2,066,792
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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26. ERE ZIRM

2016 2015

—E—XEF —ET—hF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETIT

Trade receivables JEWE 5 BR5K 1,755,565 1,197,181
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B SRR (144,991) (68,558)
1,610,574 1,128,623

The Group normally allows a credit period of 15 days to its
trade customers with good trading history, or otherwise sales
on cash terms are required.

The aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for
doubtful debts presented based on the goods delivery date,
which is the same as revenue recognition date, at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

AEE-RARFEHRIFNRZFEFIRM
15HMEEH  BRIHEARSET -

RS ERE - HIBREREROBKE
A Rk D TR E B H (B ARER
BE) 2518 :

2016 2015

—E—XEF —ET—hHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETF T ARETIT

0-15 days 0-15H 506,571 498,475
16-90 days 16-90 B 800,019 474,440
91-180 days 91-180 H 159,170 74,360
181-365 days 181-365 H 144,814 81,348
1,610,574 1,128,623

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will internally
assess the credit quality of the potential customer and define
appropriate credit limits.

Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade
receivables and considers the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality.

ERMEAHELR - AEE K ARFEE
EEPHEEER  YETEANEERE -

EEERTERRKBEIRANEEEER
RRRFPRRENERE ZEREE RIF
MEEEER-

BEBAZERERRA o 2016FHK 189



=

12\\/_\|:|/\

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE_Z—RE+A=1T—RHILLFE

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The aged analysis of trade receivables which are past due but

26. B E 5 iR ()
B EIHIE AR AN IR R 5 B3R 2 BRk AT

not impaired is as follows: AN
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
16-90 days 16-90 H 800,019 474,440
91-180 days 91-180 H 159,170 74,360
181-365 days 181-365 H 144,814 81,348
1,104,003 630,148

The Group does not hold any collateral over those balances
which are past due but not impaired.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade receivables, with exposure spread over a large number
of counter parties and customers.

Impairment for trade receivables over credit period are
provided for based on estimated irrecoverable amounts from
the sale of goods, determined by reference to past default
experience and objective evidences of impairment.

AEBEHZEFC I HERREN BRI ERF
B E A -

AEENERESERTEEANEESTR
B BROHMERENRZHFRES -

AEEZ2EBRAERRLERZEREER
EREFHHEE RO TR REIFOR - BEE
EEHNEKE 5RFGHRRERE -

Movements in allowance for trade receivables during the year: FARKE SRRBEES -
2016 2015
—g-Xf  —2-0%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T AREFTT
At beginning of the year F7) 68,558 34,465
Provided for the year FAEE 76,433 34,093
At end of the year F 144,991 68,558

BERWEZ RN AR ERE - ARE
EFFEARNEEEEEREDREREDN
EREZEREEER - REAKEAEE
K EFER/ERFLE—TRBE -

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the
Group reassesses the credit quality of the trade receivables
since the credit was granted and up to the end of the reporting
period. Based on the historical experience of the Group, the
Directors believe that no further allowance is required.
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BILLS RECEIVABLE 27. ERERE
The aged analysis of bills receivable presented based on the MNEREHIAE R - EIRE iR AR
issue date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BT :
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—AhF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
0-90 days 0-90H 484,830 320,705
91-180 days 91-180 H 683,743 219,563
1,168,573 540,268
TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 28. HESREE
The following were the Group's financial assets as at 31 IWThAEEEE —_ZE—A"F+_A=+—
December 2016 that were transferred to suppliers by endorsing HEBEEAEREENMEEENHZE
those bills receivable to suppliers on a full recourse basis. As FEWE= R AEEmEENSMEE - ARA
the Group has not transferred the significant risks and rewards SEVEERHEZEEIEEREBHELRR
relating to these bills receivable, it continues to recognise the b B3R - He@ERERGRE KR
full carrying amount of the bills receivable and the RNBBERARREENRAEREBNE
corresponding trade payables in the consolidated statement of NEFER - I EREEREHEKARAE
financial position accordingly. These financial assets are carried SEMERE M BEHRARATIER o
at amortised cost in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position.
As at 31 December 2016 BE-Z—Xx"E+=-A=+—H
Bills Bills
receivable receivable
discounted to  endorsed to
banks with full suppliers with
recourse full recourse Total
PRAEAREE L2HEBAREE
EERITREIRM mEER#H
EWEE EkERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T AREFTT ARETR
Carrying amount of transferred — #:% & ZE N IRE(E
assets 19,300 168,264 187,564
Carrying amount of associated BRI AERIRHEE
liabilities (19,300) (168,264) (187,564)
Net position FEE - - -
BEREBHNERAERAA o 2016FH 191
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28. TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 28, ®EESRIEE (&)
As at 31 December 2015 BE-E—H%+=-H=+—H

Bills receivable  Bills receivable

discounted to endorsed to
banks with suppliers with
full recourse full recourse Total

NEEBRERE UEEBREE
[FIERTTREIRAY (AL AERIHE I A

R ES e RIE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARETT ARETT

Carrying amount of transferred &2 & ERIRMEE

assets 26,412 130,912 157,324
Carrying amount of associated B/ & E/IRME(E

liabilities (26,412) (130,912) (157,324)
Net position pEit=C - - -
In addition, included in the bills receivable as at 31 December o RZE—RF+ZA=+—H ' B
2016 was an amount of approximately RMB23,460,000 (31 EEB S ARE2346000T(ZF—H
December 2015: RMB4,911,000) which was endorsed with full F+ZA=+—8: AR%¥4,911,0007T) LA
recourse to third party suppliers as deposits paid for purchase EHBREENFE = HHEMILLELEER
of machinery and payments for construction in progress. The W iRe RERTIRERNR - AEEeE
Group continues to recognise the bills receivable in the BRERE VBN REREW TR

consolidated statement of financial position.
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29. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
An analysis of prepayments and other receivables is as follows:

/\\/\m/ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2016
E_FT—RF+_A=1+—HIFE

B

29. FANE
A 5 R TE R E At FE U R IE D mmr:

R B2 HL At FE UK

2016 2015

—E—-XREF — T 4E

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARETRT AREFIT

Other receivables H b fE U FRIE 678,255 483,919
Less: allowance for doubtful debts on B H AL FEUGRIE R R AR A

other receivables (33,887) (30,072)

644,368 453,847

Prepayments to suppliers TR FE R YRR 676,015 333,072

1,320,383 786,919

An analysis of other receivables is as follows: HAEUHRIBBAITIAT :

2016 2015

—E—REF — 4

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARETT AREFIT

Value-added tax recoverable AT B E R 449,872 252,437

Income tax recoverable EIEEEES 61,418 75,511
Receivable from disposal of an associate  Hi& — KBt A Al H) FE Uk IR

(note (a)) (P @) 23,996 35,583

Interest receivable on loan receivables FEWE FF B 6,725 5,277

Prepayments to employees TR B 5KIE 29,615 18,322

Deposits b 13,055 7,627

Service fee A% & 12,417 5,544

Others Hi 81,157 83,618

678,255 483,919
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29. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

194 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited

2T

29. FNREREEYRIE (&)

(continued)
Analysed for financial reporting purpose: EF B 2mBAE DT
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Non-current JERNER 28,153 44,808
Current BNEA 1,292,230 742,111
1,320,383 786,919
Notes: HteE -

(@) The outstanding receivable from disposal of an associate is unsecured,
bears interest at a rate of 5.25% per annum and to be settled at
RMB 13,000,000 and RMB 12,000,000 on 28 April 2017 and 2018,

(@

B — S & A R AR R R JE MR A AT
UEFEE25%51 8 R-BE—+tFR T/
FEP9A =+ /\A 5 FIEEA B # 13,000,0007T &

respectively. AR # 12,000,000 °

Movements in allowance for other receivables during the year: TR EMERGRIERESEWNT
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETTT
At beginning of the year REA]) 30,072 12,423
Provided for the year FAEE 3,815 17,649
At end of the year F 33,887 30,072

Annual Report 2016



30. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK

BALANCES AND CASH

Restricted bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to banks to secure certain facilities granted to the
Group by banks.

The restricted bank deposits carry market interest rate of 0.35%
per annum as at 31 December 2016 (2015: 0.35% per annum).

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less
which are held with banks and carry interest at prevailing
market rate.

Bank balances and cash at 31 December 2016 were mainly
denominated in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency
in the international market. The exchange rate of RMB is
determined by the Government of the PRC and the remittance
of these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange
restrictions imposed by the Government of the PRC.

nancia
kR & B 1

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z— X E+-_A=+—HL=FE

30. ERFIBITEFRRBITEHRREAES

RRHIRITFFIEAEEE T IRITAIRTT
T (ERIRITAAEER L E TRENE
& o

MR-ZE—RFE+-A=+—08  ZBRHIRT
TFRIETIBEMNEKOIBB( - T —HF:
0.35%)ET 8 °

FTEBRIREERSRRHEE A= A
SUARMEBTERAR - BRI BRR
7 REBTHRETS -

R-ZE—XR"FE+-_A=+—8 HBIT&EHEK
REFEUAREE  MAREATITR
B MS EERERHNER  HEXKHHEH
BFEE  mMEEEEcEHPRAZPH
TR B He 9 N GEE PR 1] FT 45 &6 ©
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31.

196

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purchases and ongoing costs. The Group normally settles
its trade payables within 30 days from the material receiving
date.

Included in the balance of trade payables as at 31 December
2016 of RMB168,264,000 (31 December 2015: RMB1,490,253,000)
aged within 180 days has been settled by endorsed bills
receivable but not matured at the end of the reporting period
(see Note 28).

The aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the
material receiving date at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

31.

FEfS & 5 BRX
ENESERIEBERNNRZERES
B - AKE— R A HIRE B #5130
BABERNE SRR -

R-ZB—RF+-_A=+—8 ENZ5E
REEB R REBAEISOB LA AR
168,264,000C(ZE—RHF+_-_A=+—H :
AR #1,490,253,00070) B &L LAE B E B
FIRBE - BERE RS RE SR
(RLMI5E28) »

R BERE - BN E S RIRMRE
BHRBRE DT ¢

2016 2015

—E—REF —ET—hF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT

0-30 days 0-30H 867,674 1,059,253
31-90 days 31-90H 301,636 484,761
91-180 days 91-180H 381,262 147,150
181-365 days 181-365H 54,828 46,752
1-2 years 1-2%F 28,025 67,846
over 2 years w2F 18,614 16,113
1,652,039 1,821,875
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32. BILLS PAYABLE 32. ERERE
The aged analysis of bills payable presented based on the issue RERE B RE - ENZRREE L B MR
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BT :

2016 2015

—REF —hF

RMB’000 RMB000

ARET T AREFTT

0-90 days 0-90H 427,783 278,584

91-180 days 91-180H 648,708 363,332

1,076,491 641,916

FIERNZEABI ZIEE L KRG A M
EENEARRE -

H £t PB4 5B I FE ST
HAREHKEA NN -

All the bills payable are of trading nature and will mature within
six months from the issue date.

33. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 33. k
An analysis of other payables is as follows:

2016 2015
—E-XREF —hHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARKETT
Deposits received from distributors o tH e R B Ath 5 ECER Y 1R &

and others 150,756 113,936
Accrued commission fEEH RS 60,341 51,854
Other payables Eﬁﬁﬁé NS 264,397 281,139
Interest payable on Corporate Bonds FEfS Jt%{s\%ﬂ%\ (M95E38)

(Note 38) 35,787 32,573
Advance from customers TR P KRIE 664,039 354,836
Accrued payroll and welfare FEETEr & R AE A 149,301 129,047
Other tax payables HAth ERTFRIE 130,987 9,103

1,455,608 972,488
BREBHNERAERDA 201653k 197
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34. DEFERRED INCOME 34. EERA
Arising from
government
grants
REBUSHE
RMB'000
ARETT
At 1 January 2015 R-ZZE—HF—H—H 153,559
Additions NE 38,805
Release to income (Note 6) AL (FiFEE6) (9,353)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—hFE+-_H=1+—H 183,011
Additions NE 80,785
Release to income (Note 6) AL (FiFEE6) (14,510)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—XRE+-A=+—~H 249,286
Deferred income arising from government grants represents REBRMHPHEEWAERKRERN SRS
the government subsidies obtained in relation to the T B /B 7 B B - b {55 R AR SR ER A T I 1S BV IR
acquisition of land use right or equipment of certain 8L - RERE B IE AR R AR B IE T U
subsidiaries of the Group, which were included in the A WA E AR E R 13 {5 AR 2 AR R sk ER
consolidated statement of financial position as deferred BT {2 S AART AdE % ©
income and credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term of the land use right or the useful life of the
equipment.
35. PROVISION 35. #&E
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
At beginning of year REH] 462,890 441,528
Provision for the year FREAE 799,720 573,001
Utilisation of provision B EE (718,661) (551,639)
At end of year RF L 543,949 462,890
The warranty provision represents management’s best REBEEENBEAMER  ~5EERE
estimate of the Group’s liability within fifteen months’ warranty [E $98h ) Bt EE mn HR -+ {8 A AR EB PRI
granted on motive battery products, based on prior experience BEEMEREMET -

for defective products.
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36. BANK BORROWINGS 36. RITEE
2016 2015
— R —ET—hF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETT
Secured bank borrowings BEBRITEE 931,831 534,650
Unsecured bank borrowings EIRIRITIEE 1,998,652 1,627,017
2,930,483 2,161,667
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BRI NEEIEENEE :
Within one year —FR 1,681,831 1,389,729
More than one year but not exceeding —F A E AT EBBAMRE
two years 877,496 219,200
More than two years but not exceeding MELA BTN ERAE
five years 371,156 552,738
2,930,483 2,161,667
Less: Amount due for settlement within one & : B —FREEI 27
year and shown under current RRB B ENTKIEA
liabilities (1,665,025) (1,389,729)
Amount due after one year — R HARRIA 1,265,458 771,938
Total borrowings BEE
— at fixed rates — & 1,984,037 1,391,150
— at floating rates —FE 946,446 770,517
2,930,483 2,161,667
Analysis of borrowings by currency: EBEREBE DT
— denominated in RMB — UAREEE 2,862,542 2,094,412
— denominated in EUR — UABUTEHE 16,806 17,738
— denominated in HK$ — OB TTEHE 51,135 49,517
2,930,483 2,161,667

BEBNZERERRA o 2016FHR 199
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36. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 36. SRITRE (&)

Fixed interest rate borrowings were charged at the rates BHE_Z—XRFE+-_A=+—HItFE " F
ranging from 3.03% t0 5.91% (2015: from 1.98% to 7.40% per BEEENT3.08%E591% (= E—FHF :
annum) per annum for the year ended 31 December 2016. T 1.98% £ 7.40%) VFFIEETE -
Interest on RMB borrowings at floating rates is calculated FEARBESHNTN SIEFEAREITAM
based on the borrowing rates announced by the People’s Bank MESFXRAE  ZEETEENF B1%3
of China. Interest on HK$ borrowings at floating rates is BREBRITRIERBE275%TE - HEZ
charged at 2.75% over 3 months Hong Kong Interbank Offer Z—RNFE+_A=1+—HILEFE  FEEE
Rate. Floating interest rate borrowings were charged at the BN FI302%ET7U%(ZE—FHE: N F
rates ranging from 3.92% to 7.04% (2015: from 4.35% to 7.38% 4.35% £ 7.38%) EF|EETHE ©

per annum) per annum for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Details of pledge of assets for the Group’s secured bank AEFBAFRBRTEENEERBABER
borrowings are set out in Note 46. Bit5E 46 ©
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37. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The Group has entered into a finance leases of certain
machineries with an independent third party. In accordance
with the lease agreement, the term of the lease was 3 years at
a floating rate calculated based on the borrowing rates
announced by the People’s Bank of China and the Group has
an option to purchase the assets at a nominal consideration
upon the end of the lease term.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s total future
minimum lease payments under finance leases and the
present value of which is as follows:

Minimum lease payments

37.
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RMEHESEE
AEERHE-ZBUE =G THEETY
MEHE - RIBEEEW R HHRAR=F - %
BERPBEARRITAMGHEBENEAE - M
REETRERTEREZENEEREREE
REBE -

RFEMERE - AREETREHEENR
RREHSERNMARRENT

Present value of
minimum lease payments

REHSE REHSBRE
At December 31 At December 31
Rt+t=A=+-—8H R+=A=+—8H
2016 2015 2016 2015
—~E —T—RF —NE —ZET—RF
RMB ‘000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB ‘000
ARETR AREFIT ARET R ARETT
Amounts payable: ANE O
Within one year —FR 107,821 60,259 100,781 51,555
In the second year NE—F 76,791 107,821 74,219 100,621
In the third year RE=F - 76,791 - 73732
Total minimum finance lease MEHEREHES AT
payments 184,612 244,871 175,000 225,908
Future finance charges RIRFEER (9,612) (18,963) - -
Present value of finance lease  ERFEIEHERE
payables 175,000 225,908 175,000 225,908
Less: Amount due for settlement & : + =& A A&
within 12 months (shown NEE(RRE
under current liabilities) BEHR) (100,781) (51,555)
Amount due for settlement T EA%ENZE
after 12 months 74,219 174,353
The carrying amount of the underlying machineries held under REBEHEMFEAKSENR _T—RF

finance leases as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
RMB239,774,000 (31 December 2015: RMB277,874,000). Leased
assets are pledged as security for the related finance lease

liability.

T A=+t -"BEREREERARK

239,774,00070(=F—
AR # 277,874,000 7T)
AEHREHEABENER-

BEREBNZERERAF o

2016 F #

EE+-A=+—8:
- HEBEECHMIE
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38.

39.

202

CORPORATE BONDS

On 14 August 2014, Chaowei Power issued a six-year term
corporate bonds (the “Corporate Bonds”) in the PRC with a
principal amount of RMB600,000,000. The effective interest
rate of the Corporate Bonds is 8.31% per annum for the first
three years up to 13 August 2017. At the end of the third year,
on 13 August 2017, the bonds holders have a right to redeem
all or part of the Corporate Bonds to Chaowei Power at its face
value and Chaowei Power has a right to adjust upward the
interest rate of the Corporate Bonds from a range of 1-100
basis points (both fingers inclusive). The Company has provided
an irrevocable guarantee on the entire principal amount and
interest of the Corporate Bonds.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 24 September 2012, the Company issued a United State
Dollar ("US$") settled 7.25% convertible bonds due 2017 in an
aggregate principal amount of RMB633,000,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds"). The Convertible Bonds are listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The net
proceeds from the issue of Convertible Bonds are mainly used
to fund future expansions of production capacities of the
Group, the upgrade of production facilities, debt repayment,
selective acquisitions and other general corporate purposes.

The Convertible Bonds constitute direct, unconditional,
unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Company,
and shall at all times rank pari passu and without any
preference or priority among themselves.

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2016
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RZZE-—WFNATEHE  BEHERNH
1T A AR 600,000,000 7T 2 7N
HERES(EEER])  CXEFE=F
MERFNXR831% BAE_T—LFN
A+=BAL -RE=ZFKR  R-_T—tFN
AT=B BEFFAARRREERNBHRE
FEL2HHMAEEES  MERERA
BEFBREFOFER - AN F1-1002F
(BREREF) AR - RARERERES
ZEBASENNSRETAHE 2 ERF -

AR ES
R=ZFE—=—FhLA=-1+WAH  KRARETA
& #4858 5 A R ¥ 633,000,000 7T LAZE T ([ 3
T EER T —FEIHR7.25 B Al %
B ([FRRES]) o TR EH RTINS
BEXSGARAR LT BT RBRES
AT FEETERANABERBARNER
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39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS(continued)
The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds are as follows:

(a) Conversion right

The conversion right attaching to any Convertible Bonds
may be exercised, at the option of the holder thereof, at
any time on and after 4 November 2012 up to the close
of business (at the place where the certificate evidencing
such bonds is deposited for conversion) on 17 September
2017 or, if such bonds shall have been called for
redemption by the Company before 24 September 2017
(the "Maturity Date"), then up to the close of business (at
the place aforesaid) on a date no later than seven
business days (both days inclusive and in the place
aforesaid) prior to the date fixed for redemption thereof,
or if notice requiring redemption has been given by the
holder of such bonds, then up to the close of business (at
the place aforesaid) on the day prior to the giving of such
notice.

The number of shares to be issued on conversion of the
Convertible Bonds will be determined by dividing the
RMB principal amount of the Convertible Bonds to be
converted (translated into HK$ at the fixed exchange rate
of RMB0.8165 = HK$1.00) by the Conversion Price (as
defined below) in effect at the conversion date.

The price at which shares will be issued upon conversion
(the “Conversion Price”) will initially be HK$5.20 per
share, but will be subject to adjustment for, among other
things, consolidation, reclassification or subdivision,
capitalization of profit or reserves, distributions, rights
issues of shares or options over shares, dividend
adjustments and other dilutive events. In the opinion of
the Directors, the adjustments to Conversion Price in
those circumstances are all for anti-dilutive purpose to
protect the right of bondholders. In 2013, an adjustment
had been made to the conversion price from HK$5.20 per
share to HK$4.93 per share as a result of the dividends
paid. In 2014, an adjustment had been made to the
conversion price from HK$4.93 per share to HK$4.76 per
share as a result of the dividends paid. On 2 June 2016,
an adjustment had been made to the conversion price
from HK$4.76 per share to HK$4.63 per share as a result
of the dividends paid.

-
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39. AR ES (&)

AHE SR E B IR T

(a)

BinmE
ARREFNKAEANEER_-F
——F+-ANBRNUNREE_Z
—tFNATLREESHERRLL
(A ERZEEZERERA XM E
&t - AMMZFEFN_F—LFN
AZ+HAT2HE D RERARF]
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Mg tEEXR (BERERMRAMAL
A BRI ET) & R R AR A L (BA
b FRREE) - KHBRERTE
ABBEHERBEOMNBM  BEEH
ez BANA— B2 KB RA RS LE (A
bt B REET) - BERTTER BE AR
AARE 7 R R HE o

HeEsmal A E S E TR R J)
BRRGTEROTBRRESFHAR
TR (REEERARE0.81657T
=1.00/8TT R BB TT) bR A A B
BRzEHRE(EERTXOEE

E AW A% T 2 1TH IR () B4 ([ 8k
B BT BERE.20%87T - B
IAT&IBER THAEEFBE) - &K
G0t EFMOBSIFMA - FHFHEE
B kB - AR SRR E B E
FARREREMEEEIR SERE
EZEBATHEENERERRET A
REEMEL - MREEHFIFE AN
R RZZE—=F  ARNIRFERE
EREEHSRKRM5208 TAE S
SR MHA93ETL - KT —UF -
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39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(a)

(b)

204 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e

Conversion right (continued)

In May and June 2015, certain holders of the Convertible
Bonds exercised their right to convert certain Convertible
Bonds, consisting of principal amount of RMB75,000,000
and accumulated unpaid interest payable of
RMB2,687,000, into share capital and share premium of
RMB1,180,000 and RMB76,507,000 respectively, as a
result of which 19,297,363 new ordinary shares were
issued in 2015.

During 2016, all holders of the Convertible Bonds
exercised their right to convert all of the outstanding
Convertible Bonds, consisting of principal amount of
RMB315,000,000 and accumulated unpaid interest
payable of RMB7,178,000, into share capital and share
premium of RMB5,641,000 and RMB339,705,000
respectively, as a result of which 83,324,616 new
ordinary shares were issued during the current year
(Note 42).

Final redemption

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased
and cancelled, the Company will redeem the Convertible
Bonds on the Maturity Date at the US$ equivalent of their
RMB principal amount together with accrued and unpaid
interest thereon. All amounts due under, and all claims
arising out of or pursuant to, the Convertible Bonds, and/
or the trust deed (as amended or supplemented from
time to time, the “Trust Deed"”) from or against the
Company shall be payable and settled in US$ equivalent
of the RMB amount only.

Annual Report 2016
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(a)

(b)

HIAK (&)
R-E—RAFRAKNA  EFF AR
REHFRFBATERESEAGE T
BREF(BEELABBARE
75,000,000 7T & RET AR AT EF B A
R #2,687,0007T) 2 Bl 8 ¥ & j% 2R A
R #1,180,0007T K f% 15 & B A R #&
76,507,0007T @ Bt =T — A F BT
19,297,363 & L i@A% o

R-ZE—RTF TEABRBRESEE
ATTEERER S 2 30 M R 7715 o] AR &
H(BIEKR4 5 A R #315000,000 7T
REFAIHESANBARE
7,178,0007T) 7 Bl 82 5 I AR A R
5641000t & i 0 @ B A R &
339,705,0007C © & 1t A& & F % 17
83,324,616 f% 37 X imA% (FisE42) o
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39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(0

(d)

Redemption at the option of the Company

At any time after 24 September 2015 and prior to the
Maturity Date, the Company may, having given not less
than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the bondholders
and the trustee, redeem all, but not some only, of the
Convertible Bonds at the US$ equivalent of their RMB
principal amount together with interest accrued on such
redemption date, provided, however, that no such
redemption may be made unless the closing price of the
shares (as derived from the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange) translated into RMB at the prevailing
rate applicable to the relevant trading day, for each of 20
consecutive trading days, the last of which occurs not
more than 30 days prior to the date of such notice, was
at least 130% of the Conversion Price then in effect,
translated into RMB at the fixed rate of
RMB0.8165=HK$1.00.

The Company may, on giving not less than 30 nor more
than 60 days' notice to the trustee and the bondholders,
redeem all, but not some only, of the Convertible Bonds
at the US$ equivalent of their RMB principal amount
together with interest accrued on such redemption date
if at any time, prior to the date the relevant notice is
given, at least 90% in principal amount of the Convertible
Bonds has already been converted, redeemed or
purchased and cancelled.

Redemption at the option of the bondholders
According to the terms of the Convertible Bonds, on 24
September 2015, the holders of the Convertible Bonds
would have the right, at such holders’ option, to require
the Company to redeem all or some only of the
Convertible Bonds of such holders at the US$ equivalent
of their RMB principal amount together with interest
accrued to such date.

On 10 August 2015, the Company received a notification
from the holders of the Convertible Bonds that
Convertible Bonds with a total principal amount of
RMB243,000,000 were redeemed on 24 September 2015.

()

(d)

BEREBNZERERAF o

-
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39. AR ES (&)
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39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(e)

206

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e

Negative Pledge

The Company has, among other things, also undertaken
that, so long as any Convertible Bonds remain
outstanding (as defined in the Trust Deed), the Company
will not, and will ensure that none of its subsidiaries will,
create or have outstanding, any mortgage, charge,
pledge, lien or other security interest, upon the whole or
any part of their respective present or future undertaking,
assets or revenues (including any uncalled capital) to
secure any Relevant Indebtedness (as defined below),
without at the same time or prior thereto according to
the Convertible Bonds the same security as is created or
subsisting to secure any relevant indebtedness, or any
guarantee or indemnity in respect of any such Relevant
Indebtedness as either (i) the trustee shall in its absolute
discretion deem not materially less beneficial to the
interests of the holder of the Convertible Bonds or (ii)
shall be approved by an extraordinary resolution (as
defined in the Trust Deed) of holders of the Convertible
Bonds.

For the purpose of the negative pledge as described
above, “Relevant Indebtedness” means any indebtedness
which is in the form of, or represented or evidenced by,
bonds, notes, debentures, loan stock, bearer
participation certificates, depositary receipts, certificates
of deposit or other similar securities or instruments
which for the time being are, or are intended to be or are
capable of being, quoted, listed, dealt in or traded on any
stock exchange or over-the-counter or other securities
market.

Annual Report 2016
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39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
The net proceeds received from the issue of the Convertible
Bonds have been split between a liability component and an
equity component in its initial recognition as follows:

0]

(iii)

Liability component is initially measured at fair value,
which represents the present value of the contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted at
the prevailing market interest rate at that time applicable
to instruments of comparable credit status and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms,
with the bondholder redemption option but without the
conversion option. It is subsequently measured at
amortised cost by applying an effective interest rate of
10.55% per annum after considering the effect of the
transaction costs.

In the opinion of the Directors, the economic
characteristics and risks of the early redemption options
are closely related to the host debt contract of the
Convertible Bonds. Therefore, the Company does not
account for the early redemption options separately; and

Equity component is initially measured at an amount
equivalent to the difference between the net proceeds
received and the fair value of the liability component,
amounted to approximately RMB62,109,000.
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39. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

39. ARKRES (F)

The movements of the liability component and equity FR - AIEKRESREEISSD ERAZEDH
component of the Convertible Bonds for the year are set out FE)Ey|IMT ¢
below:
Liability Equity
component component Total
=Rt [ &N #st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTIT ARETT AR®ET T
As at 1 January 2015 R-—FE—HF—HA—H 593,305 59,643 652,948
Conversion of Convertible Bonds & #a a] # [% (& % (70,620) (7,067) (77,687)
Redemption of Convertible Bonds & 5] 7] #2 j% (& % (220,104) (22,896) (243,000)
Interest charged for the year FREEENFE (FES)

(Note 8) 44,438 = 44,438
Interest paid BHE (43,174) = (43,174)
As at 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RHF

+=—HA=+—H 303,845 29,680 333,525
Conversion of Convertible Bonds & #a ] #{% (& 5 (315,665) (29,680) (345,345)
Interest charged for the year FREEENFE (FIFES)

(Note 8) 23,239 - 23,239
Interest paid BFE (11,419 = (11,419)
As at 31 December 2016 RIE—RF

+=-A=+—H - - -

All outstanding Convertible Bonds had been fully converted
and subsequently cancelled up to 31 December 2016.
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40. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 40. fTESRT A
The Group uses commodity derivative contracts (standard lead AEEFERAERTETEAN(ESHER

forward contracts in Shanghai Futures Exchange) to manage its
exposure against lead price fluctuations. This arrangement is

SR ENEHREHN) ERMERSDER -
ST HFE R R R EmEREIREX

designated to address significant fluctuations in the price of TERS) o AT - RIBAEBESEEBUR » %%
lead concentrate and lead related products which move in line B IR @ A AR ©
with the price of lead. However, this arrangement is not
accounted for under hedge accounting according to the
Group's accounting policies.
Details of the contract value and the related terms are SRBEEEBBETEBRRNT
summarized as follows:
As at
31 December
2016
RZB—XRE
+=—A=+—H
RMB’000
AR® T
Commodity derivative short-position contracts: HRITETAERAEEL
— Volume (tons) — 2 (WA) 875
— Executed contract value — BEOEE 48,767
— Fair value of derivative financial assets —TEERMEERNTE 18,905
Contract maturity date SHFIHRE 02/2017
41. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 41. HEEERE
Held for trading investments include: BIEEERE B -
2016 2015
—NEE —RF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARE TR ARETTT
Listed securities: ERES
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — REBLEWHRAES 2,178 =
BEBOZERERRA  2016FHK 209
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42. SHARE CAPITAL 42. BB
The details of the Company’s share capital are as follows: RARIMBRAFFIBLOT ¢
Number of Shares
shares capital
BHEHE [} &
US$'000
T
Authorised: VETE
Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each Fi&0.01ETHEBERK
At 31 December 2015 and RZZFE—RAF+ZA=+—HBK
31 December 2016 —E-RF+-A=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRARE
Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each BA%0.01 £ A E AR
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+=-A=1+—H 1,024,587,363 10,246
conversion of Convertible Bonds (Note 39) &t a] i % (&4 (K131 39) 83,324,616 833
At 31 December 2016 RZE—ARF+=-A=+—H 1,107,911,979 11,079
RMB’'000
ARET
Presented at 31 December 2016 RZE—ARF+_A=+—HBHEHER 74,961
Presented at 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+_A=+—HBHEHER 69,320
43. RESERVES 43. f#fE
Reserves of the Group other than retained earnings include BREBRMNIN AEBRBBIEET AR

statutory surplus reserve, share premium, convertible bonds
equity reserve, other reserves and exchange fluctuation
reserve, which form part of the equity holders’ equity.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the articles of association of all subsidiaries
established in the PRC, those subsidiaries are required to
transfer 5% to 10% of the profit after taxation reported under
the relevant accounting policies and financial regulations in the
PRC to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be
made before distributing dividends to equity owners. The
statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up previous
year's losses, expand the existing operations or convert into
additional capital of the subsidiaries.
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43. RESERVES (continued)

Other reserves

Other reserves are mainly arising from (i) the difference
between the fair value of the consideration paid/received and
the carrying amount of the net assets acquired from/disposed
to the non-controlling shareholders; (ii) equity-settled share-
based payment transactions entered into and fully vested
before 1 January 2007; (iii) debt waived by a related party; and
(iv) paid-in capital of Chaowei Power transferred during the
Group’s reorganization made on 9 March 2010 for the purpose
of listing on the Stock Exchange.

Convertible bonds equity reserve

Convertible bonds equity reserve is arising from the initial
recognition of the Convertible Bonds. On the initial recognition,
the fair value of the liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
Convertible Bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the holder
to convert the Convertible Bonds into equity and the
redemption option for the holder to require the Company to
redeem the Convertible Bonds, is included in equity as
convertible bonds equity reserve. The reduction of the
Convertible bonds equity reserve during the year was due to
the conversion of the outstanding Convertible Bonds (Note 39).

nancral St
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43. % (1)

Hibf#E

HipfREEBRA ) BN BURBRREHAD

FEERIFEERB RIS HENEEFE
REEMNZRE: (VE_ZZ2tF—A—H8#5
IV REARBHNERSEEURG AR
S (iVERB B eNES  RiVIEBERE
BRASEARBI EMMR - —ZFF
—“ANBETEAREENEERA -

RRESERREE
ﬂ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%&”ﬁ?&ﬁ%ﬁ?\%ﬂﬁﬁﬁwu—fﬁﬂxﬁ%
BEL - RIIPHRE - AESINAFE
TR FE R AR B M RIT IS N R B
T o BT MREFNAERIRAREER
EREMINATFEZANEZRAFEA
1 AT AR 55 S R A R R ) S AR IR AR A N 85
B ANBE SRR R)E B ] A E 77 A0 R 2
) St AR ER AT RRES Ea i -
FAAHRRRE FHE S R D ) R B
AT AR E S (HEE39) ©
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44.

212

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged during the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
comprising the bank borrowings disclosed in Note 36, the
corporate bonds disclosed in Note 38, the Convertible Bonds
disclosed in Note 39, the derivative financial instrument
disclosed in Note 40, held-for-trading investments disclosed in
Note 41, finance leases disclosed in Note 37, bank balances
and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves as disclosed in
Notes 42 and 43, in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debt.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 45. €@ T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) &@TEEHR
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETIT
Financial assets SREE
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): i#3i@i8z5i% A FE58E -
Held-for-trading investments RIEEBIRE 2,178 -
Commodity derivative contracts BmITETAEEDN 18,905 -
21,083 —
Loans and receivables: Bk ERGRIE
Trade, bills and other receivables FEUWE SRR - BREE R
HAth R U IR 2,858,851 1,751,196
Loan receivables FEWE 273,721 312,710
Amounts due from related parties JiE Uk RA B 5 SR8 96,538 43,742
Restricted bank deposits ZRRFISRITEK 526,778 404,723
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 588,439 960,960
4,344,327 3,473,331
Financial liabilities csREE
Liabilities at amortised cost: BB ERAGTEMNRE -
Trade, bills and other payables BB SRR - BRNEER
E At R RIR 3,239,811 2,943,293
Bank borrowings RITEE 2,930,483 2,161,667
Convertible Bonds AR ES = 303,845
Corporate Bonds EESH 595,287 593,987
Obligations under finance leases RMEMREET 175,000 225,908
Amounts due to related parties JFE <t B 75 g8 10,358 201
6,950,939 6,228,901
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Market risk
The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial
risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates,
interest rates and lead prices.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
market risks, nor the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk.

()

214 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e

Foreign currency risk management

The Group has certain foreign currency bank
balances and cash denominated in HK$, EUR and
US$, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amount of the Group'’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets at the end

45. TR T A (§)
(b) WHEEMR
AEENEBEEMBHHEINEEE -
Fl& R EEHNTBERR -

AEBAZOTISRARKEEE MG
ERRNTADEED -

(i SERRERE
AEBBEETAET  BUTRE
TLRHERSNERITRABR MRS
SASEEEINER R - ANEE
B A IF #& B RT SME H R BR » R
- EEEERMNEAR XS
R HEEE B EKRINE R

% -

RREERE - AEEASNE
RAEMEBEEREEZIN

of the reporting period are as follows: T -
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT
Assets BE
HK$ BT
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIRS 66,457 57,332
us$ =
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 15,678 26,276
EUR BT
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB RIS 1,121 679
Liabilities =F
HK$ BT
Bank borrowings RITEE 51,135 49,517
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Market risk (continued)

0]

Foreign currency risk management
(continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in
HK$, EUR and US$ against RMB.

The Directors’ assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rate is 5%, 1%
and 5% for RMB against HK$, USD and EUR
respectively (2015: 5%, 1% and 5% for RMB against
HK$, USD and EUR respectively), which is also the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management
personnel.

For a 5% (2015: 5%) weakening of RMB against HKS,
there will be an increase in the post-tax profit for
the year of RMB574,000 (2015: increase
RMB293,000) and there would be an equal but
opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year
for a 5% (2015: 5%) strengthen of RMB against HKS.

For a 1% (2015: 1%) weakening of RMB against USS,
there will be an increase in the post-tax profit for
the year of RMB117,000 (2015: increase
RMB197,000) and there would be an equal but
opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year
for a 1% (2015: 1%) strengthen of RMB against US$.

For a 5% (2015: 5%) weakening of RMB against EUR,
there will be an increase in the post-tax profit for
the year of RMB42,000 (2015: increase RMB25,000)
and there would be an equal but opposite impact
on the post-tax profit for the year for a 5% (2015:
5%) strengthen of RMB against EUR.
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45. €RT A (&)
(b) TIEESR (&)
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Market risk (continued)

216

(i)

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e

Interest rate risk management

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to its fixed-rate loan receivable, fixed-rate
bank borrowings and the Convertible Bonds. The
cash flow interest rate risk of the Group relates
primarily to the restricted bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, variable-rate bank borrowings
and the Corporate Bonds. The Group currently does
not use any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk. However,
management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this note. The
Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of borrowing rates
announced by the People’s Bank of China arising
from the Group’s RMB denominated borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for financial instruments at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate bank borrowings,
restricted bank deposits and bank balances and
cash, the analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year. A 27 basis points (2015: 27 basis points)
increase or decrease is used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 27 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2016 would increase/decrease by
RMB413,000 (2015: RMB1,329,000).

Annual Report 2016
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Market risk (continued)
(iii) Commodity price risk

45. €RT A (&)
(b) TIEESR (&)
(i) HRERRE

The Group’s commodity price risk refers to the
exposure to fluctuations in the prevailing market
price of lead which are the major raw materials
purchased by the Group and the details of which
are set out in Note 40.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the Group’s exposure to lead
price risks arising from derivative financial
instruments outstanding at the year end of the
reporting period. It is based on the assumption that
there would be a 5% change in lead forward
contract prices with all other variables held
constant.

If the lead forward contract price had been 5%
higher, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2016 would decrease by
RMB915,000, if the lead forward contract price had
been 5% lower, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the post-tax profit.

AEENEmEBRRRIEAEE
BEIZEMHMNERHER
R - FBEENMIEEL

B S

TR BRI T T4 R 4 H
R AREAERHTELMIA
M ERREE  BERANA
WUEES% BB - T FA R
BB -

HERBAAME LTT5%  N&E
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B 1E4F 2 & BR TR R HR A A
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

()

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables, bills receivable, other receivables, loan
receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank
balances and restricted bank deposits. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counter
parties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Other than loan receivables as disclosed in Note 24, the
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
bills and trade receivables, with exposure spread over a
large number of counter parties and customers.

The Group’'s loan receivables amounting to
RMB273,721,000 (2015: RMB312,710,000) (see Note 24 for
details) exposed the Group to concentration of credit risk.
The Directors continue to monitor and assess the
financial status of the counterparties, and they believe
the exposure to credit risk on these receivables is not
significant as these loan receivables are guaranteed and
secured, and certain borrowers also undertook various
commitments to enable the Group to have reasonably
protective rights.

The credit risk on bank balances and deposits is limited
because the counter parties are various banks and
financial institutions with good credit ratings in the PRC
and Hong Kong.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk management

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining a level of
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings
from time to time.

The Group relies on cash flow from operating activities,
bank borrowings, the Convertible Bonds, corporate
bonds and finance leases as a significant source of
liquidity. At 31 December 2016, the Group has available
unutilised short-term bank loan facilities of approximately
RMB761,830,000 (2015: RMB673,211,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the
end of reporting period.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 45. ERIT R (&)
(d) Liquidity risk management (continued) (d) RBESEKREE(HE)
Weighted Total
average 6 undiscounted Total
interest on months 6-12 12 25 cash carrying
rate demand orless months years years flows amount

AHRRE
WETERE  BEREE 6EAIUT  6-12{R 12§ 256 REAR  AKEE
%  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETz ARETR ARETR

At 31 December 2016 WZB-XE
TZA=1+-H

Non-derivative financial ~ $f44RERE

liabilities
Fixed-rate bank borrowings EBBIEE 4.50 = 665,105 761,398 496,214 104,015 2,026,732 1,984,037
Variable-rate bank borrowings [ 8RTEE 478 - 90,289 189,375 410,540 274,411 964,645 946,446
Trade payables ENEAER 228,696 1,162,111 261,232 - - 1,652,039 1,652,039
Bills payable IESH - 1,076,491 = = - 1076491 1,076,491
Other payables EHERE 39886 236471 234924 - - 511,281 511,281
Amounts due to related JEf BB 7 308

parties 10,358 - - - - 10,358 10,358
Corporate Bonds PEES 8.31 - - 647,880 = - 647880 595,287
Obligations under finance leases BETREE T 475 - 29,179 78,642 76,791 - 184,612 175,000

278940 3,259,646 2,173,451 983,545 378,456 7,074,038 6,950,939

At 31 December 2015 R=%-1f%

tZA=1-A

Non-derivative financial ¥4 4REE

liabilities
Fied-rate bank borrowings — EBHRITEE 563 - 727768 872,603 1732 1608 1618131 1391150
Variable-rate bank borrowings 2.8 ${7{2E 615 - 108,453 607,179 8448 130,519 854,599 770517
Trade payables ERESER 30578 1427597 88,550 - - 1885 1821875
Bils payable ERZE - 641916 - - - 641,916 641,916
Other payables HitENTE 58,083 261,229 160,190 - - 479,502 479,502
Amounts due to related FERTEE AR

parties 201 - - - - 201 201
Convertible Bonds hRES 725 - 11,419 11,419 326438 = 319,276 303845
Corporate Bonds PEES 831 - - 47880 647,830 - 695,760 593987
Obligations under finance leases BETREE(T 475 - 30403 29856 107,821 76,791 24871 225908

0012 3208785 1817677 1092319 23338 6706131 6208901

The amounts included above for variable interest rate i ) 3= 4 B B 3R 25 HR 45 SR IR 7B T WO %
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if ZFTAEDR - LiOFEETES
changes in interest rates differ to those estimates of REEMNSEN AR -
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
period.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(e) Fair value

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair value of certain financial assets.

The derivative financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The derivative
financial assets with carrying value of approximately
RMB18,905,000 at 31 December 2016 was Level 1
measurement.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during
2016.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but

| nancial St

1 A B SR R I o

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HEe—T—R"Ft+-A=1+—HILFE

45. €RT A (&)

(e)

AT
WM ERAEENAEES TERE
ENRTEEHRER -

TESCREERSRERERFAA
FTEFE - R_FT—X"F+=A
—+t—HEBEEHARK18,905000

TTHTEEREERE —HETE
R-ZE—RF Z Rz B
EEEE o

WHRBEFHEEEQNFETEDN
FEEEMEENDIFEMERAREL

fair value disclosure are required) TE)
Except as detailed in the following table, the Directors BRINRATEIEI  EFERE 58
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets HERRPEERANESREERS R
and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated BEMNEEEEENTERS
financial statements approximate their fair values:
31/12/2016 31/12/2015
—E-ARE+=-H=t-—H —hRAFE+=—_A=1+—H
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
BREE ATE AREE ~NEE
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AR%T R ARETT ARETTT
(Note) (Note)
(B =E) (B 5E)
Financial liabilities 4£®&&
Convertible Bonds A% (&%
(liability component) (BaE3D) - - 303,845 381,556
Corporate Bonds TEESH 595,287 641,495 593,987 645,554
Note: Fair value of the Convertible Bonds at the end of 2015 was et ATRREFR T —AFFEZAFET

estimated based on the quoted bid prices from Bloomberg, which
included liability component and equity component of the
Convertible Bonds. The equity component of the Convertible
Bonds at 31 December 2015 was RMB29,680,000. As at 31
December 2016, the equity component of the Convertible Bonds
was nil as all outstanding Convertible Bonds were fully converted
during 2016.

BEREBNZERERAF o

RIBZIEHEANE G & et R AT
REFHRELFD R ERED  R=F
—AFET-—A=+—H FHEREZAOE
w E 5 BA R 29,680,000 ° £ R AT H
HRITIE TR R EH N =B — N F R
# R FE—NFFZA=1—HA#
RIEFA BB BT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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46.

47.

222

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group's
assets were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group. The aggregate carrying amount of the assets of the

46. EEEF
RREPERE - AEBERETEEFER
RITETAKBRITEENEN - REHRE
HIGRE - ARBCEHEENAREEN

Group pledged at the end of each of the reporting periods is as T
follows:
2016 2015
—E—XREF —F—hHF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Buildings EF 410,621 369,949
Land use rights b A 28,301 99,642
Bills receivable P = I 811,109 26,412
Restricted bank deposits PR ISR ITIE R 526,778 404,723
OPERATING LEASES 47. KEHE
The Group as lessee KEBIEAFEBEA
2016 2015
— NI —EF—RHF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARKETT
Minimum lease payments paid for the year RERIBIEY 2 ELTAE
under operating leases for premises BRI REREE K 8,565 11,573
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RMERERE - AEERBE I REGHLE
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- TG AT 2t AR iE o B0 2R 2R B A A AT R
cancellable operating leases which fall duge as follows: BT
2016 2015
— NI —E-—RHE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Within one year —F R 4,991 6,370
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_ZFhE(PREEME) 5,719 8,472
10,710 14,842

terms of 2 to 5 years.
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47. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

48.

The Group as lessor

/\\/\m/ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BEZZT—R"F+_A=1T—HILFE

47. KEHE (8])
REBERHAA

Property rental income earned for the year ended 31 HE_Z—X"F+_-_A=+—HBILtEE 9

December 2016 was approximately RMB5,243,000 (2015:
RMB4,237,000). The properties held has committed tenants up

EHSW AN/ ARES24300T(=F
—h%F: AR¥4,237,0007T) © FB M

t0 2017 and 2021 respectively. BEHEFAM 2R EE_ZT—tFE—
ke
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted e B4 RS - NEE RS R Ttk kK
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: HEBEEMRETAMT -
2016 2015
—~E —AfF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Within one year —FR 3,507 3,532
In the second to fifth year, inclusive ZEFLF(BREEEMRT) 5,270 8,777
8,777 12,309
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 48. BEAEIE
2016 2015
— N —E—hEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Contracted but not provided for EEESHEER 3
— acquisition of property, plant and — WEME - BE R
equipment 245,647 296,140
BEBAZERERRA o 2016FH 223
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49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) Name and relationship with related parties

Name
=L

49. BEAERS

(@) EABSEMWKEE

Relationship
2hES

Henan Yifeng Electric Bikes Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
(“Henan Yifeng")
Al BEBEREFR AR (DMEIZE )

Henan Yilin Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. (“Henan Yilin")
A EBR AR ([AmIZR])

Henan Gaoyuan Aluminum Development Co., Ltd.
(“Henan Gaoyuan”)
MEERREFEERERAR(DIESE])

Zhejiang Zhenlong (Note (i)
AT HREE (PR EE ()

MOLL
MOLL

Xuzhou Zhenlong (Note (i)
HINIREE (BIEE ()

Huangshan Zhenlong (Note (i)
= ILIREE (FFEE )

Zhejiang Pulangte
AL E BRI

Zhejiang Yige
IS

Wu Rongliang (Note (ii)
RER (FEE (i)

Zhang Yongxuan
SRIKEF

Kai Mingmin
7R ER

224 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2016

Controlled by non-controlling shareholder
of Henan Chaowei
F AT o 7R B ) 47 AR AR R 42

Controlled by Henan Yifeng
FH A g Uiz U 22

Controlled by non-controlling shareholder
of Henan Chaowei
i ] i AR ) S 4% AR S PR A2

Associate
il /NE|

Associate

N

Subsidiary of Zhejiang Zhenlong
AIIRBER B A 7]

Subsidiary of Zhejiang Zhenlong

AT HRBEEV P 1 7]

Joint venture

aBLE

Associate

- /N

Non-controlling party of Anhui Yongheng
LK BRI IEZER TS

Non-controlling party of Jiangsu Yongda
TTERICGERIEIER T

Non-controlling party of Zhejiang
Changxing Jintaiyang
AT RE S KGR FEZER T



49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

kR B S R T R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_Z— X E+-_A=+—HL=FE

49. BB LR 5 (&)

Name and relationship with related parties (a) BEEEH BREKRER(E)
(continued)
Name Relationship
=18 2RES
Qian Haichun Non-controlling party of Anhui Chaowei
ST =S LR R IR
Guo Yonglang Non-controlling party of Golden Chaowei
FBIK and Golden Chaowei PRC
B RBREL N & B R B A IR AR
Chen Liweli Non-controlling party of BJ Chuangyuan
FRFIE LR AT R TR 5
Ke Ke Non-controlling party of Chaowei Chuangyuan
A7, FBEL AT R FEERR
Song Wentao Non-controlling party of Chaowei Chuangyuan
RX & HE BB TTE IR T

Zhejiang Doulan Intelligent Equipment Co., Ltd
(“Zhejiang Doulan”)
AT RS R @R AR AR (IR ])

Xiamen Mate High-Tech New Power Co., Ltd (“Xiamen Mate”)
EFSFSHERER AR (EMFR])

Notes:

(i): The Group disposed of its entire equity interest in Zhejiang
Zhenlong on 28 April 2015 and Zhejiang Zhenlong, Xuzhou
Zhenlong and Huangshan Zhenlong ceased to be the related
parties of the Group from then.

(ii): Wu Rongliang disposed of its entire equity interest in Anhui

Yongheng on 31 January 2016 and Wu Rongliang ceased to be the

related party of the Group from then.

Controlled by Zhou Mingming
A /R AR AR 4R

Controlled by Zzhou Mingming
A /R AR AR 4R

HfeE

(): AEBR=-F—AFHA=+/\AHER
T IREER 2 SBARHE + B AT TR BE
RN HREE 2 22 1L # BE T~ . 23 AN £ 1 £ B
]}‘ °

RERR-_F—NF—A=+—HHEH
RLBUKEA AR - B RERTH
RAEBAIGEH T o

(ii)
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BHE_Z—RE+A=1T—RHILLFE

49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 49. BB AR5 (&)

(b) The Group has entered into the following (b) XEERWEFERELRBE SR
significant transactions with its related Y TRHINERRS :
parties during both years:
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
Sales of goods HE & m
— Henan Yilin — Az AR 1,846 4,572
— Zhejiang Pulangte — AT ERAR 138 -
— Zhejiang Yige — IS 18,354 -
— Xuzhou zhenlong — HINIREE = 10,950
— Huangshan Zhenlong — &= ILREE - 15,537
20,338 31,059
Purchase of materials EEMR
— Xiamen Mate — EPISR 13,980 -
— Zhejiang Yige — AIEMN 3,786 -
— Xuzhou zZhenlong — HINIREE = 13,701
— Huangshan Zhenlong — = iR = 9,166
— Zhejiang Zhenlong — T IREE = 70,789
— Henan Gaoyuan — A =R 46 45
— Henan Yifeng — Az & - 15,000
— Zhejiang Doulan — IR 13,169 1,127
30,981 109,828
Income earned by the Group from G B & RS BERA UL A
provision of rental services
— MOLL — MOLL 1,465 1,472
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49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BEZZT—R"F+_A=1T—HILFE

49. LR 5 (&)

(c) Balances with related parties (c) BAEEL#&eR
2016 2015
—E—XF —T—RHE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Amounts due from related parties: JE U B Bt 5 SROE
Trade nature HE5MHE
— Henan Yifeng — Az = 15,315
— Henan Yilin — AUz AR = 1,920
— Zhejiang Yige —WTI=EM 21,134 -
— Zhejiang Pulangte — IR 29 -
— Zhejiang Doulan — TSRS 6,744 1,079
Non-trade nature HFEZHHEE
— Wu Rongliang —RER = 2,418
— Chen Liwei — AR 908 -
— Guo Yonglang — ZPoKAB 600 -
—Ke ke — % 500 =
— Song Wentao — RXE 200 -
— Zhang Yongxuan — SROKEF 28,000 18,000
— Kai Mingmin — A 4,600 3,010
— Qian Haichun — 85 5,000 2,000
— Zhejiang Pulangte — LR 800 -
— Zhejiang Yige — WIS 28,023 -
Total HRET 96,538 43,742
BREBHNERAERDA e 201653 227



Y
AR

M)~

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BHE_Z—RE+A=1T—RHILLFE

49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

228

(c) Balances with related parties (continued)

The amounts due from related parties were denominated
in RMB, unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

49.

BB L X5 (&)
(c) FEAmETS AR ()

FEW BRSO RIBAA RSB E - B
BER  RENRBRERER -

2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®ET T
Amounts due to related parties: FE 1~ BB 77 5R0E
Trade nature B 4E
— Henan Gaoyuan — A =R 20 33
— Henan Yilin — AUz AR 298 =
— Xiamen Mate — EFE%R 3,204 -
— Zhejiang Yige — I EM 4,430 -
— Zhejiang Doulan — I 1,866 48
Non-trade nature B SMHE
— Guo Yonglang — ZFoKAHP 160 -
— Kai Mingmin — FRAE 80 -
— Qian Haichun — B85 300 120
Total st 10,358 201

All amounts due to the related parties were denominated
in RMB, unsecured, interest free and to be settled on
demand.

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2016
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49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

inancial State

nts
e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_T—XFt+-_A=+—HILFE

49. AR5 (&)

(d FEEBEAESNHE

2016 2015

=B-AF —T-hF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETIT

Short term employee benefits MHES R 8,327 8,724
Retirement benefits scheme RIRERIET B3R

contributions 60 42

8,387 8,766

50. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

51.

CONTRIBUTIONS

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their employees’ payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme which are calculated based on
18% to 20% of the employee’s basic salaries during the year.

In accordance with the relevant mandatory provident fund laws
and regulations of Hong Kong, the Group operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong
Kong employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group and under the control of an
independent MPF service provider. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the
rules. The only obligation of the Group in respect of the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During 2015, the Group early terminated the entrusted loan
granted to Changxing Tiandu Power Co., Ltd. (“Changxing
Tiandu) and recovered RMB33 million prior to the end of 2015
by means of taking over certain machinery and equipment
from Changxing Tiandu of RMB21 million and offsetting trade
payable to Changxing Tiandu of RMB12 million.

50. RIRBRIFHEIHK

51.

ARRHEMEARRES ST BEBRFEE
MBI ZURINEHETEBIMAK R - AR EF B
BRRIBZEEHSE T BDLRZENRE
MEEEFAMERRNE R - AEBERK
BAE B MM — B ERRBEZABELAT
K HERDREEFAERFEN18%E
20% &1 -

AEBERBEEBNETERIIELTESIEI R
BBl RETARERNEBEERL —HR
HHEATEEF B ([RERFTE)) - FEEE
EASEEENRIEA YHBYRESR
BHERERE - REBESHENRA - B
TREEEEBARRAIEENL K@ ZET
R - AEEHBRBESAINE—EEIR
IR EIE TR MK -

EXRFREXRS

R-ZT—hF AREEMRERTRAX
HWERERAR ([ RERFOETER -
WiEEEEREREE THELRBARE
21,000,000 7T 2 35 55 & 1+ &= LK AP & 5 AR 30
AR¥12,0000007T * *=F—RFFEA
/8] A R 8 33,000,000 7T °

BRONERERAT o 20165% 229

&

-3



=

llﬁ\\/_\lzl/\

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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52. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the

52. EBA LA RMBERRARRRBEES
&R

R EERE - BRAARAMHIRRRD

Company at the end of the reporting period includes: BEEE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—HRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Office equipment BN 10 30
Investment in subsidiaries R B A REIRE 302,490 302,490
Amounts due from subsidiaries S NGIE 244,108 313,231
546,608 615,751
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR {5 R I8 I E At FE W R IE 7,069 308
Held-for-trading investments BIEEB®RE 2,178 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A R FIE 29,996 41,806
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 20,089 43,281
59,332 85,395
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBaE
Other payables H e FUR 3,391 833
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT BB A B FE = 12,328
Short term loans RHIE 51,135 49,517
54,526 62,678
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 4,806 22,717
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERREIERE 551,414 638,468
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR#E
Share capital [N 74,961 69,320
Reserves B 464,125 265,303
TOTAL EQUITY R 539,086 334,623
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries EANLRIENGIE 12,328 =
Convertible bonds Al ES - 303,845
551,414 638,468
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_Z—"F+t-_A=+—H1LFE
52. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 52 EAARAMBRARRFEREE D
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE HEFR (&)
MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Convertible
bonds
Share Share equity Retained
capital premium reserve earnings Total
AR ES
[ & % 105 8 B fEE RERE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT AR®TT ARETT ARETIT ARETT
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF
—H—H 68,140 1,089 59,643 177,623 306,495
Loss and total FRNEEREE
comprehensive F 85
expense for the year - - - (19,596) (19,596)
Issue of shares upon  #E#aA] #a A% (H 514
conversion of BIRG
convertible bonds 1,180 76,507 (7,067) - 70,620
Redemption of fE O AR E 5
convertible bonds — — (22,896) — (22,896)
At 31 December 2015 R—-Z— R4
+=—HA=+—H 69,320 77,596 29,680 158,027 334,623
Loss and total FREEREE
comprehensive sz 4858
expense for the year - - - (11,818) (11,818)
Dividend paid to BENAREIHEE A
owners of the [N
company - - - (99,385) (99,385)
Issue of shares upon  #E¥AAT A RS (E 5 1%
conversion of BT,
convertible bonds 5,641 339,705 (29,680) - 315,666
At 31 December 2016 AT —/R4E
+=-—A=+—H 74,961 417,301 = 46,824 539,086
HBEBNZERERDA o 2016F#H 231



The following table summarizes the consolidated results, assets and
liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 December:

TR AKEREBET —_A=1T—HLAEF

EMGRERE BERABBAME -

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-XE —T-RF ZTWHF —T-=F —T—=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Results E3
Revenue A 21,454,756 | 18,870,205 18,187,060 14,973,221 9,559,439
Profit before taxation B 25 BT 1) 705,070 545,872 73,355 501,716 752,471
Taxation TIE (86,012) (57,866) (35,067) (113,179) (132,537)
Profit and total comprehensive FAMBER
income for the year FHEBALREE 619,058 488,006 38,288 388,537 619,934
Profit attributable to FEE R
non-controlling interests FE(G ) 115,262 156,337 67,243 78,299 123,606
Profit/(l0ss) attributable to RRREB AEMNL
owners of the Company AE(BE) 503,796 331,669 (28,955) 310,238 496,328
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE 5,160,473 | 4828265 4,142,232 3598945 2,879,344
Current assets REEE 7,825,684 5,938,855 5,303,859 4,425,544 4,238,568
Total assets BEE 12,986,157 | 10,767,120 9,446,091 8,024,489 7,117,912
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities ERERE (1,590,731)| (2,032,748)  (1,276,630)  (1,341,543) (868,494)
Current liabilities REEE (7,244,005)| (5,418,840) (5,388,135  (3,835,533)  (3,623,230)
Total liabilities BaE (8,834,736)| (7,451,588)  (6,664,765)  (5,177,076)  (4,491,724)
Capital and reserves EXR R
Equity attributable to owners of RABHEBA
the Company FE(h R 3,302,964 | 2,584,640 2,206,270 2,328,174 2,167,048
Non-controlling interests FErE i e 848,457 730,892 575,056 519,239 459,140
Total Equity B 4,151,421 3,315,532 2,781,326 2,847,413 2,626,188
Current ratio (current assets/ B R (RBEE
current liabilities) mEaE) 1.08 1.10 0.98 1.15 1.17
Gearing ratio (total bank BEREREE(BRT
borrowings, short term financing ~ {&& - HREZHE -
notes, corporate bonds and EEHFRATHRR
convertible bonds/total assets) &% HBEE) 29% 31% 41% 36% 32%

The results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2016 and its assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2016 are set
forth on pages 88 to 231, and are presented on the basis set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.
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